
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

November 19-20, 2025 

Missoula County Public Schools, 
Administration Building, Board Room 

909 South Ave. West, 
Missoula, MT 

November 21, 2025 

University of Montana  
Phyllis J. Washington College of 

Education, Room 334 
32 Campus Drive 

Missoula, MT  



AGENDA 



 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 1 

 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

 

November 19-20, 2025 
Missoula County Public Schools, Administration Building, Board Room 

909 South Ave. West, Missoula, MT 
 

November 21, 2025 
University of Montana, Phyllis J. Washington College of Education, Room 334 

32 Campus Drive, Missoula, MT 
 
 
Wednesday, November 19, 2025 

Missoula County Public Schools 
10:30 AM 
 

❖ PERKINS COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
10:30 AM  Missoula County Public Schools, Administration Building, Board Room 

909 South Ave. West, Missoula, MT 
   AGENDA 

 

❖ BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND MONTANA COUNCIL OF DEANS OF EDUCATION 

LUNCH AND DISCUSSION  

 
12:00 PM  Missoula Butterfly House and Insectarium 

1075 South Ave. West, Missoula, MT 

 
***************************************************CONVENE AT 1:30 PM*************************************************** 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the public both in 
person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom 
link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time 
to participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members of the public who wish to share written public comment 
with the Board members must submit written public comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two 
(2) business days before the start of the meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared 
with the Board members after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official publi c record. 
 
Action may be taken on any item listed on the Board agenda. Per §2-3-103, MCA, the Board encourages public comment on 
any item prior to Board final action. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA – page # 

(Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda upon request) 
 

A. September 11-12, 2025 and October 17, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

    
ADOPT AGENDA 

https://bpe.mt.gov/Perkins-State-Plan-Committee-Meeting-Fall-2025-BPE.pdf
mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 2 

 

❖ REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1- 4) 
 
Item 1   CHAIRPERSON REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #25 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
      
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #26 
   McCall Flynn 
 
Item 3 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT – 20 Minutes, page #27 
   Dr. Angela McLean 

• College Access Arc of Events, ACT Connections for 2025-26  

• Future Ready Efforts 

• MUS Workforce Training Update 

• Montana State University Northern Traffic Education Summer 2024 

• GEAR Up Update    
    
Item 4   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #35 
   Lydia Comstock 
 

❖ MSDB COMMITTEE – Lisa Schmidt (Item 5) 
 
Item 5   MSDB REPORT – 30 Minutes, page #36 
   Superintendent Paul Furthmyre 
 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Action on Personnel Items 

• Action on Out of State Travel Request 

• Action on OPI SPED Discretionary Grant 
 

❖ ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Renee Rasmussen (Item 6)  
 

Item 6 INITIAL REVIEW AND WORK SESSION OF EARLY LITERACY AND NUMERACY 

ADVISORY COUNCIL’S RECOMMENDATIONS PERTAINING TO EARLY 

CHILDHOOD EDUCATION STANDARDS – 15 Minutes, page #176 
   McCall Flynn  
 

❖ ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 7-11)  
 

Item 7 ACTION AND INFORMATION ON RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT AND ENCOURAGE 

FAFSA COMPLETION PRIOR TO HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION – 30 Minutes, page 

#191 
   Dr. Angela McLean 
 
Item 8 ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF ADOPTION PERTAINING TO 

RULEMAKING IN ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND 
LITERACY CONTENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE 
WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER – 5 Minutes, page #193 

   Madalyn Quinlan 
 

Item 9 ACTION ON VARIANCE TO STANDARDS REQUESTS AND RENEWALS – 15 

Minutes, page #197 

 Ellery Bresler and Crystal Andrews 
    
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Initial Applications 

• Renewal Applications 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 3 

 

 
Item 10 ACTION AND PRESENTATION ON THE CORRECTIVE PLANS FOR SCHOOLS IN 

DEFICIENT STATUS FOR ACCREDITATION – 30 Minutes, page #212 
   Crystal Andrews and Ellery Bresler 
 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Superintendent Victoria Falls Down, Lame Deer Public Schools 

• Superintendent Wes Young, Lustre Christian High School 
 
Item 11 UPDATE AND DISCUSSION ON THE INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS FOR 

ACCREDITATION – 15 Minutes, page #241 
 Dr. Julie Murgel and Tyler Capece  
 
RECESS  
 
Thursday, November 20, 2025 

Missoula County Public Schools 
8:30 AM 
 

❖ BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION TOURS WITH LEGISLATIVE EDUCATION INTERIM 

COMMITTEE  

 

9:00 AM  SCHOOL SAFETY VISIT AND TOUR 

   Hellgate Elementary School, Missoula, MT 

 

10:15 AM   TEACH ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL TOUR  

   Franklin Elementary, Missoula, MT 

 

11:20 AM   SPECIAL EDUCATION VISIT AND TOUR 

   Rattlesnake Elementary School, Missoula, MT 

 
*******************************************************LUNCH BREAK******************************************************* 

**Lunch will be provided for Board Members and Legislative Education Interim Committee Members** 

 
*************************************************RECONVENE AT 1:15 PM************************************************* 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 

❖ BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND LEGISLATIVE EDUCATION INTERIM COMMITTEE 

JOINT MEETING – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 12-18) 

 
Item 12 PRESENTATION ON SAFE SCHOOL CENTER SURVEY – 15 Minutes, page #250 
 Nancy Berg, Tina Eblen 
 
Item 13 DISCUSSION ON TEACHER AND PRINCIPAL PREPARATION AND EDUCATOR 

PIPELINE CHALLENGES – 45 Minutes, page #251 
Dr. Dan Lee, University of Montana; Dr. Tricia Seifert, Montana State University;  
Dr. Jodi Carlson, Rocky Mountain College 

 
2:30 PM  BREAK – TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING GRANT OBSERVATION 
   SENTINEL HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 4 

 

Item 14   FUTURE READY UPDATE – 15 Minutes, page #253 
   Superintendent Susie Hedalen 
 
Item 15   SCHOOL FUNDING INTERIM COMMISSION UPDATE – 15 Minutes, page #254 

Dr. Tim Tharp, Representative Lee Deming, Senator Sara Novak, Representative  
Melissa Romano, Senator Sue Vinton 
 

Item 16 INFORMATION ON MONTANA ALIGNED TO STANDARDS THROUGH-YEAR (MAST) 
AND REVIEW OF STATEWIDE PROFICIENCY SCORES – 45 Minutes, page #255 

   Cedar Rose 
 
Item 17 PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PANEL AND PRELIMINARY ANNUAL REPORT DATA – 

45 Minutes, page #282 
 McCall Flynn; Pad McCracken; Superintendent Micah Hill, Missoula County Public 

Schools; Superintendent Les Meyer, Frenchtown School District; Superintendent 
Pete Joseph, Corvallis School District; Superintendent Dave Thennis, Hamilton 
School District 

 
Item 18 OPEN DISCUSSION AND FINAL THOUGHTS, page #291 
 Dr. Tim Tharp and Representative Linda Reksten 
 
RECESS 
 

********************************************************************************************************************************* 

 
University of Montana 

Phyllis J. Washington College of Education, Room 334 
 
 
Friday, November 21, 2025 

University of Montana – College of Education 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 

❖ REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 19) 
 
Item 19   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – 1 Hour, page #293 
   State Superintendent Susie Hedalen 

• Assessment Update 

• Federal Update 

• Content Standards Update 

• Accreditation Update 

• Annual Data Collection 
 

❖ CHARTER SCHOOL COMMITTEE – Dr. Ron Slinger (Items 20-22)  
 
Item 20 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOLS COMMISSION – 15 Minutes, page 

#304 
   Cathy Kincheloe 
 
 



 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 5 

 

Item 21 INFORMATION ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL FALL ENROLLMENT DATA – 15 
Minutes, page #305 

   Christy Mock-Stutz 
 
Item 22 UPDATE ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS – 15 Minutes, page #310 
   McCall Flynn 

• Performance Framework Revisions 

• New Applicants and Interviews 

• Application and Evaluation Criteria Review 

 
❖ LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Dr. Ron Slinger (Items 23-27) 

 
Item 23    NOTICE OF SURRENDER IN BPE CASE #2025-05 – 5 Minutes, page #319 
   Brenton Craggs 
 

Item 24 INFORMATION ON THE ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT 

PROVIDERS LIST – 15 Minutes, page #320 

 Marie Judisch, Aimee Konzen, Eva Cox  
 

Item 25 ACTION ON THE SUPERINTENDENT’S REQUEST TO REVISE TITLE 10, CHAPTER 

55, SPECIAL EDUCATION STANDARDS AND INITIAL REVIEW OF NEW RULES 

PERTAINING TO A CLASS 9 SPECIAL EDUCATION TECHNICIAN LICENSE – 30 

Minutes, page #365 

 Dr. Julie Murgel and Patrick Cates 

 
Item 26 ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER REPORT – 15 

Minutes, page #369 

 Crystal Andrews 

 
Item 27 UPDATE ON CORRECTIVE ACTION FOR MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY 

NORTHERN EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROGRAM PROVIDER ACCREDITATION – 
15 Minutes, page #409 

 Crystal Andrews 

 
❖ MACIE LIAISON – Julia Maxwell (Item 28) 

  
Item 28 MACIE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #423 
 Jordann Lankford Forster 

 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Regalia Protections Letter 

 
❖ ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Renee Rasmussen (Item 29)  

 
Item 29 ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND TIMELINE 

PERTAINING TO RULEMAKING IN ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, EARLY LITERACY 
TARGETED INTERVENTIONS AND TITLE 10, CHAPTER 63, EARLY CHILDHOOD 
EDUCATION STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGISTER – 5 Minutes, page #426 

   McCall Flynn 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS January 15-16, 2026, Helena, MT 
Exiting Board Member – Last Meeting & Recognition 
MACIE Update 
Review Community Choice School Annual Reports 
Action on ABCTe Program Approval 
Action on Authorizing Public Charter Schools 



 

Board of Public Education November 19-21, 2025  Page 6 

 

Transportation Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Teacher Licensure Report 
Qualify Advanced Opportunity Grant Applications 
Action on Transformational Learning Phase II Grants  
Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 
Content Standards Revision Update 
Youth Risk Behavior Survey 
Annual HiSet Report 
MSDB Superintendent Performance Evaluation & Contract Extension Discussion 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the public both in 
person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom 
link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time 
to participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members of the public who wish to share written public comment 
with the Board members must submit written public comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two 
(2) business days before the start of the meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared 
with the Board members after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official publi c record. 

 
ADJOURN 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to Kris Stockton, PO Box 200601, 
Helena MT, 59620, kmstockton@mt.gov, 406-444-0302. 

 
********************************************************************************************************************************* 
 

University of Montana 
University Center 

 
 
Friday, November 21, 2025 

University of Montana – University Center 

 

❖ BOARD OF EDUCATION LUNCH 

 

12:00 PM University of Montana, University Center 

 

❖ BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

 

1:00 PM  University of Montana, University Center, Ballroom – 1 Hour 
   AGENDA 

mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov
https://bpe.mt.gov/2025-State-Board-of-Education-Agenda_Final.pdf


10:30 AM 

PERKINS COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 



Montana Perkins State Plan Committee Meeting 

November 19, 2025 
10:30am – 12:00pm 

Missoula County Public Schools Administration Building Board Room 
909 South Ave W, Missoula, MT  

  
Purpose Statement:  
The Montana State Plan Committee will discuss the Perkins State Plan, the needs of 
students, employers, and CTE programs in Montana, and strategies to meet those 
needs.  
 
Membership:  
Paddy Fleming, Director, Montana Manufacturing Extension Center 
Lily Apedaile, Director of Research Administration, Missoula College 
Amie Tryon, Vice President of Academic Affairs, Salish Kootenai College 
James Easton, Workforce Specialist, Montana Chamber of Commerce 
Orin Johnson, Director, Central Montana Career and Technical Education Academy 
Eugene Graf, Owner, EG Construction 
Tammie Hickey, Executive Director, Montana State Workforce Innovation Board 
Mykal Jorgenson, Training Director, Billings Pipe Trades JATC 
 
Agenda: 

Time Wednesday, November 19, 2025 Presenter 

10:30 am Welcome & Introductions Jacque Treaster, OCHE 

10:35 am Review Committee Purpose & Perkins 101 Jacque Treaster, OCHE 

10:50 am Report Out – Regional Comprehensive Local 
Needs Assessment (CLNA) Meetings 

Jacque Treaster, OCHE 
Shannon Boswell, OPI 

11:20 am Presentation – Modernized National Career 
Clusters Framework 

Shannon Boswell, OPI 

11:45 am Committee Discussion with Board of Public 
Education 

 

12:00 pm Wrap Up, Next Steps, Adjourn Jacque Treaster, OCHE 

  



12:00 PM 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
MONTANA COUNCIL OF DEANS OF 

EDUCATION LUNCH AND DISCUSSION 

Missoula Butterfly House and Insectarium 
1075 South Ave West 

Missoula, MT 



CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
  



CONSENT AGENDA 

Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda 
if requested 

A. September 11-12, 2025  and
October 17, 2025 Meeting Minutes

B. Financials



CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES 



Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025 Page 1 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

September 11-12, 2025 
Dillon Elementary School, Boardroom 

22 North Cottom Drive 
Dillon, MT 

Thursday, September 11, 2025 
8:30AM 

CALL TO ORDER – 00:00:00 
Chair Tim Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM. The Board held a moment of silence in remembrance of 
September 11, 2001. The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance, Ms. Kris Stockton took Roll Call, and 
the Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests. 

Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger, Vice Chair; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Dr. Hannah Nieskens; 
Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Ms. Julia Maxwell; Ms. Renee Rasmussen, Ms. Lydia Comstock, Student Representative.  Ex 
Officio members: State Superintendent Susie Hedalen, Office of Public Instruction (OPI); Dr. Angela McLean, 
Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education (OCHE). Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris 
Stockton, Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, Administrative Assistant; Ms. Cathy Kincheloe, Director of 
Planning, Community Choice Schools Commission. Guests: Superintendent Paul Furthmyre, Montana School for 
the Deaf and Blind (MSDB); Dr. Jason Neiffer, Montana Digital Academy (MTDA); Ms. Kristi Steinberg, University 
of Montana (UM); Ms. Kim Popham, Montana Federation of Public Employees (MFPE); Ms. Tyler Capece, OPI; 
Ms. Christy Mock Stutz, OPI; Deputy Superintendent Craig Barringer, OPI; Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI; Mr. Patrick 
Cates, OPI; Superintendent Randy Shipman, Dillon Elementary School; Superintendent Josh Patterson, 
Beaverhead County High School; Superintendent Wes Young, Lustre Christian High School; Ms. Miranda Briggs, 
MSDB; Mr. JP Plutt, Dillon Tribune. 

PUBLIC COMMENT – 00:02:44 
No public comment was made. 

CONSENT AGENDA – 00:02:52 

Vice Chair Slinger moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Motion seconded 
by Board member Schmidt. 

No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

ADOPT AGENDA - 00:03:15 

Board member Rasmussen moved to approve the agenda as presented. Motion seconded 
by Board member Quinlan. 

No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1-5)

Item 1 CHAIRPERSON REPORT – 00:03:43 
Dr. Tim Tharp 

Superintendent Randy Shipman and Superintendent Josh Patterson gave opening remarks and welcomed the 
Board to Dillon. 

Chair Tim Tharp discussed meetings and events he has attended since the July 2025 Board meeting, then 
reviewed the Committee Assignments document and the Action items in the agenda packet for Board approval. 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 2 
 

Chair Tharp moved to approve the Board of Public Education Bylaws as presented.  
Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 
 

  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Chair Tharp moved to approve the 2026 Board of Public Education Meeting Calendar and 
Agenda as presented. Motion seconded by Board member Nieskens. 
 

  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. McCall Flynn discussed the revisions to the Strategic Plan made at the July 2025 Board Meeting.  
 

Chair Tharp moved to approve the 2025-2026 Board of Public Education Strategic Plan as 
presented. Motion seconded by Board member Maxwell. 

 
  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 
    
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT – 00:26:40 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed the timeline for revisions to the Strategic Plan that will take place over the course of 
the next year, asked for input, and answered Board members’ questions. Ms. Flynn announced the hiring of Lea 
Ann Munkres as the new Program Officer for the Public Charter School Program. 

 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – 00:47:52 
   State Superintendent Susie Hedalen 
Superintendent Susie Hedalen discussed Federal funding distributions and announced that OPI has received all 
Federal Funding to date. Superintendent Hedalen discussed revisions to the Federal Report Card, provided an 
update on the Accountability System, shared information on a MAST survey sent to schools, updated the Board 
on work with OCHE on the Future Ready Indicators, reviewed the OPI Organizational Chart, and discussed 
legislative implementation. 
 
Annual Special Education Report: Mr. Patrick Cates presented the Annual Special Education Report to the Board.  
Mr. Cates highlighted specific areas of the report and answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Item 4 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT – 01:45:07 
   Dr. Angela McLean 
Dr. Angela McLean discussed the Rural Talent Development Grant, announced the Montana’s Future at Work 
Grantees and the Montana Grow Your Own Educator Awardees, reviewed the Future Ready Indicator work with 
OPI, and discussed the College Access Arc of Events that included dates for FAFSA completion and College 
Application Week. Dr. McLean concluded her report with an announcement of an ACT Report Code students can 
enter on their ACT application which allows their scores to be sent to all Montana University System campuses. 
Dr. McLean answered Board members’ questions. 

   
Item 5   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – 02:05:27 
   Lydia Comstock 
Ms. Lydia Comstock discussed cell phone policies schools have implemented and noted that student and teacher 
feedback has been positive. Ms. Comstock reported on a presentation by the Montana World Affairs Council at 
Hays-Lodgepole High School, noted Suicide Prevention Week September 7-13, 2025, announced Sheridan High 
School as the newest member of the Montana Association of Student Councils (MASC), discussed middle school 
engagement MASC is doing, and reviewed the upcoming annual MASC conference November 16-18, 2025 in 
Great Falls. Ms. Comstock discussed her attendance at a National Association of State Boards of Education 
(NASBE) New Member Institute Virtual Conference for Student Representatives and answered Board members’ 
questions. 
 

 MSDB COMMITTEE – Lisa Schmidt (Item 6) 
 
Item 6   MSDB REPORT – 02:16:59 
   Superintendent Paul Furthmyre 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 3 
 

Superintendent Paul Furthmyre presented the MSDB Personnel Action request for Board approval, reviewed 
school staffing, and provided a budget update. Outreach Director Miranda Briggs presented an update on the 
Outreach Program, and Superintendent Furthmyre and Ms. Briggs answered Board members’ questions. 
 

Board member Schmidt moved to approve the MSDB Personnel Action Items as presented 
in the agenda packet. Motion seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 

 
  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Superintendent Furthmyre expressed his appreciation to MFPE for their assistance with the MSDB Collective 
Bargaining Agreement and concluded his report. 
   

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 7) 
 
Item 7   ANNUAL MONTANA DIGITAL ACADEMY REPORT – 02:45:30 
   Dr. Jason Neiffer 
Dr. Jason Neiffer presented an update on work completed at the MTDA over the past year, reviewed the MTDA 
Annual Report, presented Distance Learning enrollment numbers, shared information on the Distance Learning 
Clearinghouse, and updated the Board on legislation passed related to Artificial Intelligence that affects MTDA. 
Dr. Neiffer answered Board members’ questions. 
 
The Board recessed for the day at 12:00 PM for School District Tours. 
 
Friday, September 12, 2025 
8:30AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 00:00:56 
Chair Tim Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM. The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance, Ms. 
Kris Stockton took Roll Call, and the Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests.  
Chair Tharp thanked Superintendent Patterson and Superintendent Shipman for their hospitality and for hosting 
the Board. 
 
Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger, Vice Chair; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Dr. Hannah Nieskens; 
Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Ms. Julia Maxwell; Ms. Renee Rasmussen, Ms. Lydia Comstock, Student Representative. Ex 
Officio members: State Superintendent Susie Hedalen, OPI; Dr. Angela McLean, OCHE. Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, 
Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, Administrative Assistant; Ms. 
Cathy Kincheloe, Director of Planning, Community Choice Schools Commission. Guests: Mr. Patrick Cates, OPI; 
Ms. Cedar Rose, OPI; Ms. Marie Judisch, OPI; Ms. Crystal Andrews, OPI; Ms. Ellery Bresler, OPI; Dr. Julie 
Murgel, OPI; Superintendent Randy Shipman, Dillon Elementary School; Superintendent Josh Patterson, 
Beaverhead County High School; Dr. Rob Watson, School Administrators of Montana (SAM); Ms. Kristi Steinberg, 
UM; Ms. Christy Mock-Stutz, OPI; Mr. Brenton Craggs, OPI; Deputy Superintendent Craig Barringer, OPI; Ms. 
Tyler Capece, OPI; Ms. Kim Popham, MFPE; Superintendent Paul Furthmyre, MSDB; Mr. JP Plutt, Dillon Tribune; 
Superintendent Marcy Cobell, Heart Butte K-12 Schools; Board Chair Joe Crawford, Heart Butte K-12 Schools; 
Superintendent Wes Young, Lustre Christian High School; Assistant Superintendent Josh McKay, Helena Public 
Schools; Superintendent Matthew Hauk, Geyser K-12 Schools; Superintendent Pax Haslem, Stanford K-12 
Schools, Board Chair Rachel Pretty On Top, Lodge Grass Public Schools; Superintendent Erik Wilkerson, 
Jefferson County Public Schools; Superintendent James Kapptie, Ekalaka Public Schools; County Superintendent 
John Nielson, Gallatin County Schools; Board Chair Melissa Fisher, Lame Deer Public Schools; County 
Superintendent Nita Crockett, McCone County Schools. 
 

 CHARTER SCHOOL COMMITTEE – Dr. Ron Slinger (Item 8)  
 
Item 8 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOLS COMMISSION – 00:04:30 
   Cathy Kincheloe 
Ms. Cathy Kincheloe presented an update on the Request for Proposal for an assessment tool, discussed 
conversations held with potential Choice Schools, and reviewed a grant request to fund the Director of Planning 
position. Ms. Kincheloe announced the appointments of Mr. Chip Lindenlaub and Ms. Taylor Ramos to the 
Commission and the reappointment of Mr. Mark Huffstetler, provided an update on the Commission meeting held 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 4 
 

on September 9, 2025, and reviewed the Advance to be held October 10-11, 2025 in Helena. Ms. Kincheloe 
thanked Board staff for their work and answered Board members’ questions. 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Dr. Ron Slinger (Items 9-10) 
 

Item 9   NOTICE OF SURRENDER IN BPE CASE #2025-04 – 00:12:10 
   Brenton Craggs 
Mr. Brenton Craggs presented an Affidavit of Surrender of the educator license in BPE Case #2025-04, made a 
correction to the Affidavit of Surrender, and answered Board members’ questions.   
 
Item 10 INFORMATION AND PRESENTATION ON THE PARA PATHWAY PROGRAM – 

00:22:45 
   Patrick Cates 
Mr. Patrick Cates presented the proposed Para Pathway Program to be run in partnership with Dawson 
Community College that would create a pathway for paraprofessionals to become teachers. Mr. Cates answered 
Board members’ questions. 
  

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Renee Rasmussen (Items 11-12) 
 
Item 11 ASSESSMENT UPDATE AND INFORMATION ON MAST PROFICIENCY SCORES – 

00:54:50 
   Cedar Rose 
Ms. Cedar Rose presented the MAST cut scores, reviewed the process for how the scores were set, provided an 
update of MAST, and answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Item 12 INITIAL REVIEW AND WORK SESSION OF EARLY LITERACY AND NUMERACY 

ADVISORY COUNCIL’S RECOMMENDATIONS PERTAINING TO EARLY TARGETED 
INTERVENTION RULEMAKING – 01:17:40 
McCall Flynn, Marie Judisch, Early Literacy and Numeracy Advisory Council 
Members 

Ms. McCall Flynn reviewed legislation that added Early Numeracy to the Early Literacy Targeted Interventions 
statute, discussed work completed by the Early Literacy and Numeracy Advisory Council to implement the 
legislation, and reviewed the timeline for implementation. Ms. Marie Judisch reviewed the rulemaking 
recommendations for Early Targeted Interventions and Ms. Flynn and Ms. Judisch answered Board members’ 
questions. 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 13-17)  
 
Item 13 INFORMATION ON THE TIMELINE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NEW 

MATHEMATICS AND ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY CONTENT 
STANDARDS – 01:34:13 

 Marie Judisch 
Ms. Marie Judisch presented the process for implementation of the new Mathematics Content Standards and the 
English Language Arts and Literacy Content Standards, reviewed trainings and webinars OPI will offer districts, 
and answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Item 14 ACTION ON AND RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED ON REVISIONS 

TO ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY 
CONTENT STANDARDS – 01:51:02 

 Madalyn Quinlan 
Ms. McCall Flynn stated no comments were received during the Public Comment period and action on the 
adoption notice is scheduled for the November 2025 Board meeting after the Economic Impact Statement is 
presented to the Education Interim Budget Committee. 
 
Item 15 ACTION AND PRESENTATION ON THE CORRECTIVE PLANS FOR SCHOOLS IN 

DEFICIENT STATUS FOR ACCREDITATION – 02:03:51 
   Crystal Andrews and Ellery Bresler 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 5 
 

Ms. Crystal Andrews and Ms. Ellery Bresler reviewed the requirements for Schools in Deficient Status for 
Accreditation to create Corrective Plans and introduced the three school districts whose Corrective Plans were 
before the Board for approval. 
 
Superintendent Marcy Cobell and Board Chair Joe Crawford presented the Corrective Plan for Heart Butte K-12 
Schools to correct the deviations and answered Board members’ questions.  
 
Superintendent Victoria Falls Down of Lame Deer Public Schools was not in attendance so the Board moved on 
to Lustre Christian High School. 
 
Superintendent Wes Young presented the Corrective Plan for Lustre Christian High School to correct the 
deviations and answered Board members’ questions.   
 
Ms. McCall Flynn and representatives from OPI attempted to connect with Lame Deer Public Schools but no 
representatives were present online. 
 

Board member Quinlan moved to approve the Corrective Plan for Heart Butte K-12 
Schools as recommended by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Motion seconded 
by Board member Nieskens. 
 
No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Board member Quinlan moved to approve the Corrective Plan for Lustre Christian High 
School  as recommended by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Motion seconded by 
Board member Rasmussen. 
 
Vice Chair Slinger stated the plan presented is insufficient. 
 
Chair Tharp asked what the consequences would be if the plan were denied and the 
school asked to return to the November Board meeting with a revised plan. 
 
Board member Rasmussen stated she understands the previous comments but would 
prefer the plan be approved so the school can correct the deviations. 
 
Board member Quinlan stated she could withdraw the motion and give the school the 
option to revise the plan and return to the November Board meeting. 
 
Chair Tharp stated his agreement with Board members Quinlan and Rasmussen. 
 
Board member Nieskens stated that to be fair to the district who presented a Corrective 
Plan the vote should take place and consider possible denial. 
 
Board member Slinger agreed to withdraw the motion and request the school return to the 
November Board meeting with a revised plan. 
 
Board member Maxwell stated it benefits the Board and the school to allow the school to 
return to the November Board meeting with a revised plan. 
 
Ms. McCall Flynn clarified that the school must have an approved plan. If the Board denies 
the plan or withdraws the motion the school must return with a revised plan for Board 
approval. 
 
Superintendent Young explained the process he used to write and submit the Corrective 
Plan to OPI. 
 
Board member Quinlan withdrew the motion. 
 
Vice Chair Slinger called for the question. 
 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 6 
 

Chair Tharp restated the motion to approve the Corrective Plan for Lustre Christian High 
School  as recommended by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
 
Roll Call vote.  Motion failed with Board member Rasmussen voting in support of the 
motion. 
 

Lustre Christian High School will present a revised plan at the November Board meeting. 
 

No one was present from Lame Deer Public Schools. 
 
Board member Quinlan moved to deny the Corrective Plan for Lame Deer Public Schools.  
Motion seconded by Board member Schmidt. 
 
Board member Schmidt stated she would like to see additional information in the plan in 
November. 
 
No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Lame Deer Public Schools will present their Corrective Plan at the November Board meeting. 
 
Item 16 ACTION ON THE CORRECTIVE PLANS FOR SCHOOLS IN ADVICE STATUS FOR 

ACCREDITATION – 03:14:52 
   Crystal Andrews and Ellery Bresler 
Ms. Crystal Andrews and Ms. Ellery Bresler presented the Corrective Plans for schools in Advice Status for 
Accreditation, highlighted work schools have completed to correct deficiencies and explained the process OPI 
used to assist schools in Advice status.  Ms. Andrews and Ms. Bresler answered Board members’ questions. 
 

Board member Quinlan moved to approve the Corrective Plans for Schools in Advice 
Status for Accreditation. Motion seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 
 
Board member Maxwell encouraged Superintendents to leave districts in a good place 
when they leave. 
 
Board member Nieskens encouraged Superintendents to review plans from other districts 
to learn from one another and gather ideas to address deficiencies. 
 
Board member Rasmussen voiced previous concerns that rural schools will struggle with 
the Accreditation process and stated options need to be available for rural schools. 
 
Superintendent Patterson noted that resources are available via the School Administrators 
of Montana to assist Superintendents. 
 
No further discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 17 UPDATE AND DISCUSSION ON THE INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS FOR 

ACCREDITATION – 03:22:59 
 Dr. Julie Murgel and Crystal Andrews 
Dr. Julie Murgel and Ms. Crystal Andrews reviewed the Intensive Assistance Process for Accreditation and Board 
members made comments and stated their concerns. 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 18)  
 
Item 18   ELECTION OF OFFICERS – 03:44:06 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn opened the floor for nominations for the Chair position. 
 
  Vice Chair Slinger nominated Dr. Tim Tharp for Chair. 
 
  No additional nominations. Motion passed unanimously. 



 

Board of Public Education September 11-12, 2025  Page 7 
 

  Board member Quinlan nominated Dr. Ron Slinger for Vice Chair. 
 
  No additional nominations. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Flynn reviewed the November Board meeting in Missoula and the NASBE Annual Conference in October that 
she and several Board members will attend. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS November 19-21, 2025, Missoula, MT – 03:46:30 
Board of Education Meeting 
Montana Council of Deans of Education Update 
MACIE Update 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Annual Data Collection 
Annual HiSet Report 
Action on Variance to Standards Requests & Renewals 
Accreditation Report 
Youth Risk Behavior Survey Update (Odd Years) 
Annual Professional Development Unit Providers List  
Content Standards Revision Update 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – 03:48:44 
Superintendent Patterson thanked the Board for coming to Dillon and provided public comments on the ACT test 
and asked the Board to consider three years of math for graduation requirements. 
 
Dr. Rob Watson provided public comments regarding the Corrective Plans for Accreditation for schools in 
Deficient Status, recommended a future Board meeting presentation on the Teacher Apprenticeship Grant 
through the Department of Labor and Industry, and announced the upcoming SAM Fall Conference and topics 
that will be presented. 
 
Superintendent Shipman thanked the Board for their visit to Dillon and for the Board’s work to enhance public 
education. 
 
ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 12:29 PM. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to Kris Stockton, PO Box 200601, 
Helena MT, 59620, kmstockton@mt.gov, 406-444-0302. 
 

 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


Board of Public Education October 17, 2025 Page 1 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

October 17, 2025 
Zoom 

Friday, October 17, 2025 
11:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 11:30AM.  The Chair led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Kris Stockton took Roll Call.  The Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests.   

Board members: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Dr. Ron Slinger, Vice Chair; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Dr. 
Hannah Nieskens.  Staff: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative Specialist. 
Guests: Superintendent Paul Furthmyre, Montana School for the Deaf and Blind.  

ADOPT AGENDA 

Vice Chair Slinger moved to approve the agenda.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Schmidt. 

No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 MSDB COMMITTEE – Lisa Schmidt (Item 1)

Item 1 ACTION ON MSDB OUT OF STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 
Superintendent Paul Furthmyre  

Superintendent Furthmyre presented two Out of State Travel requests for the Goal Ball team to travel to 
tournaments out of state.   

Board member Schmidt moved to approve the MSDB Out of State Travel Requests as 
presented in the agenda packet.  Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 

Vice Chair Slinger stated his excitement for the students. 

Chair Tharp asked if the staff providing transportation had additional training and 
Superintendent Furthmyre stated they do receive additional training. 

No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 

ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 11:36 AM. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    

Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 

The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CONSENT AGENDA 

FINANCIALS 



51010 Board of Public Education
ORG Budget Summary by OBPP Prog, Fund, Subclass
Data Selected for Month/FY:    01 (Jul)/2026 through 05 (Nov)/2026

OBPP Program Fund Subclass Org Acct Lvl 1 Acct Lvl 2 ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATION 620,517.00 187,775.16 0.00 432,741.84

01100 General Fund 620,517.00 187,775.16 0.00 432,741.84
235F5 FY 2025 CARRYFORWARD 43,589.00 13,299.66 0.00 30,289.34

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 43,589.00 13,299.66 0.00 30,289.34
62000 Operating Expenses 43,589.00 13,299.66 0.00 30,289.34

62000 Operating Expenses 43,589.00 0.00 0.00 43,589.00
62100 Other Services 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 (2,000.00)
62200 Supplies & Materials 0.00 7,691.56 0.00 (7,691.56)
62400 Travel 0.00 1,927.89 0.00 (1,927.89)
62500 Rent 0.00 1,680.21 0.00 (1,680.21)

235H1 ADMINISTRATION 556,579.00 168,943.86 0.00 387,635.14
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 556,579.00 168,943.86 0.00 387,635.14

61000 Personal Services 371,691.00 110,628.90 0.00 261,062.10
61000 Personal Services 371,691.00 0.00 0.00 371,691.00
61100 Salaries 0.00 77,295.89 0.00 (77,295.89)
61300 Other Compensation 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 (2,000.00)
61400 Employee Benefits 0.00 31,333.01 0.00 (31,333.01)

62000 Operating Expenses 184,888.00 58,314.96 0.00 126,573.04
62000 Operating Expenses 184,888.00 0.00 0.00 184,888.00
62100 Other Services 0.00 3,306.03 0.00 (3,306.03)
62200 Supplies & Materials 0.00 4,701.64 0.00 (4,701.64)
62300 Communications 0.00 3,729.63 0.00 (3,729.63)
62400 Travel 0.00 7,894.82 0.00 (7,894.82)
62500 Rent 0.00 6,720.84 0.00 (6,720.84)
62800 Other Expenses 0.00 31,962.00 0.00 (31,962.00)

235H4 STATE ITSD/RST 20,342.00 5,531.64 0.00 14,810.36
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 20,342.00 5,531.64 0.00 14,810.36

62000 Operating Expenses 20,342.00 5,531.64 0.00 14,810.36
62000 Operating Expenses 20,342.00 0.00 0.00 20,342.00
62100 Other Services 0.00 1,720.74 0.00 (1,720.74)
62200 Supplies & Materials 0.00 2,620.32 0.00 (2,620.32)
62300 Communications 0.00 1,190.58 0.00 (1,190.58)

235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 7.00 0.00 0.00 7.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 7.00 0.00 0.00 7.00

61000 Personal Services 7.00 0.00 0.00 7.00
61000 Personal Services 7.00 0.00 0.00 7.00

  g  p

Grand Total 620,517.00 187,775.16 0.00 432,741.84

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl 1 of 1



 REPORTS – (Items 1-4)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 1 

CHAIRPERSON REPORT 

Dr. Tim Tharp 



ITEM 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

McCall Flynn 



ITEM 3 

COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
REPORT  

Dr. Angela McLean 



Montana University System Report 

Montana Board of Public Education 

November 2025 

• College Access Arc of Events
o ACT Connections for 2025-26

• Future Ready Efforts
• MUS Workforce Training Update
• Montana State University Northern Traffic Education Summer 2024
• Montana GEAR UP

o Jeannie Origbo, MUS GEAR UP Director



Montana GEAR UP: 
2024-2031 Grant Update

November 2025

Board of Public Education Presentation

Jeannie Origbo, MTGU Director



Quick Facts

 $4.25 Million annual budget (November 1-October 31) 

 $1.5 Million subgrants to 12 school districts

 $684,000 Scholarship Fund

 $325,000 1-2-Free Support

 $150,000 to MT Partnerships 

 Funded to serve 4,400 students 7-college freshmen annually

 Goals

 Increase academic performance and preparation for post-secondary education. 

 Increase the rate of high school graduation and enrollment in post-secondary 
education. 

 Increase MTGU students’ and families’ knowledge of post-secondary education 
options, preparation, and financing. 



Quick Facts

 Internal Studies

 MTGU Services and FAFSA Completion

 MTGU Services and Postsecondary persistence 

 MTGU Services and increasing student knowledge on financial literacy and college 
preparedness

 Statewide initiatives

 FAFSA Completion and Value of Education Campaign

 1-2-Free Dual Enrollment

 MUS College Access Arc of Events



Partnerships

 FYS: Blackfeet Community 
College, Salish Kootenai 
College, and MT 10

 7-12 Student Services: 
MPSEOC, MSU, Student 
Success Agency, and UM

 Programmatic:

 CoBro Consulting, MTDA, 
MPSEOC, MSCA, 
NCCEP/CCREC, OCHE, and 
SAM. 



Partnership Highlight: MSU Expedition Science 
Collaboration with Dr. Jamie Cornish

Eight teachers from 4 school districts 
participated in the Summer 2025 
portion of the collaboration.

80+ students participated in the Fall 2025 
portion of the collaboration



Questions?

 Contact Information:

Jeannie Origbo

Montana GEAR UP Director 

jorigbo@montana.edu

406-449-9139

mailto:jorigbo@montana.edu


ITEM 4 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

Lydia Comstock 



 MSDB LIAISON – (Item 5)

Lisa Schmidt 

ITEM 5 

MSDB REPORT 

ACTION ITEMS: 

• Action on Personnel Items
• Action on Out of State Travel Request
• Action on OPI SPED Discretionary 

Grant

Paul Furthmyre 



Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind 
Board of Public Education Report 

November 2025 
 
 
Agenda Action Items: 
 

1.​ Personnel Action Report 
2 Hires 
2 Resignations 
2 Retirements 

2.​  EDHI Out of State Travel Request 
3.​ OPI Discretionary Grant Approval Authorizing Superintendent to Submit 

 
Attached Documents: 

●​ MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Agenda 
●​ MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Minutes 
●​ Policy 8210 (Procurement for Food Service) - 1st Reading 
●​ Average Education Salaries Fall 2025 
●​ Cognia Accreditation Documents 
●​ MSDB Foundation 2025 Audit Reports 
●​ Financial Reports 
●​ Cottage October 2025 Newsletter 
●​ Current Enrollment + 5 LEAP Students 
●​ November Inquiry Dashboard 
●​ ELVS outing - Hoven Equipement 
●​ MAFB - Truck or Trick Activity 

 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1X4K7HNp2YwLgub_y5lLlSUnCJGAozcFB_y-eW0wtjIw/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1f7R81Um8K3gsP_QlzgDRhTo6WFcHt0Bg/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FzKyj46tRxpbjFEAbUg8tGN8ebsN79ty/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Lmvw1-VIIowHgR-jK5Us6EzH_IKJhVBWjfpJHv5zD6w/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12kIzA9qnfUv_wdCvSw0oz_5aCt3eKiXE/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tM9JIAZMm87y6jnp6tudzys8y4A35mat/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Wb7ZAsFMMwrDBq5DPWrG7IhFXv-JbG6p/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1RmL9LcL0jeJ0lCbn1DZNuYABiukvESNM/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kKqV0GpV8n2uF2VrT0PCfW2MvegTDYTi/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AbnLBNw6084gBn9pXhCXucbV6fprarpH/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DD7lUp-7vX3rtGCbrdxvRX8sUWOj9zl_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wWSjKTtqeuPbUt3aIsXGNxIY5QO5pG_Y/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WXJqRPMABrFggDWnltieyqaQivY58eIj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZcL6tNEx3Ih6GTwSmuTpajG3tqwzHYS3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1K6fSGLw887syuQGkjd3rBeGFI97pOLwV/view?usp=sharing






















































































































































































































































































 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – (Item 6)

Renee Rasmussen 

ITEM 6 

INITIAL REVIEW AND WORK SESSION OF 
EARLY LITERACY AND NUMERACY 

ADVISORY COUNCIL’S 
RECOMMENDATIONS PERTAINING TO 

EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 
STANDARDS 

McCall Flynn 



Montana Early Literacy and Numeracy 

Advisory Council 

Recommendations to the  

Montana Board of Public Education

November 19, 2025



Title 10, Chapter 63 
Early Childhood Education Standards 

10.63.101 APPLICATION AND PROCEDURES 

(1) The early childhood education standards are focused on developmentally
appropriate supports and strategies to enhance learning outcomes for a child
between the ages of 3 and 5 for preschool programs and between the ages of 4
and 5 for early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program
preceding kindergarten.  Use of these standards for a public preschool program
is subject to the funding limits of 20-7-117(2) and 20-9-311(7)(a), MCA.  Use of
these standards for early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program
preceding kindergarten is subject to the provisions of Title 20, chapter 7, part 18,
MCA.

(2) The trustees of a school district, pursuant to Title 20, chapter 6, MCA, may
establish a public early childhood education program to meet the unique
developmental needs for children between the ages of 3 and 5 for preschool
programs and between the ages of 4 and 5 for early literacy targeted
interventions implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-year-olds
and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten. When early childhood
education programs are established they must be an integral part of the public
school and must be governed according to the following accreditation standards
for the early childhood education standards of early learning content and
accreditation in coordination with the standards outlined for schools within ARM
Title 10, chapter 55, excluding 10.55.601, 10.55.602, 10.55.603, 10.55.704,
10.55.705, 10.55.709, 10.55.710, 10.55.712, 10.55.715, and ARM Title 10,
chapter 55, subchapters 10 through 21. For the purposes of the accreditation
process detailed in ARM 10.55.606, early childhood education programs will be
assessed on the program’s assurance standards only.

(3) Early childhood education programs shall meet this chapter’s curriculum,
instruction, and program delivery standards, supporting children’s development
of the knowledge and skills outlined in the content standards in ARM 10.63.110,
which describe the expectations for what young children should know,
understand, and be able to do across the four core developmental domains of
learning upon entrance to kindergarten.

(4) Montana’s early childhood education standards shall be reviewed and revised on
a recurring schedule with input from representatives of accredited schools.

Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 



10.63.102 DEFINITIONS  
 
(1) For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms apply:  

(a) ʺAccreditationʺ means certification by the Board of Public Education that a 
school meets the adopted standards of the Board of Public Education for a 
specified school year.  

(b) ʺAssessmentʺ means the gathering, organizing, and evaluation of 
information about student learning in order to monitor and measure 
student learning, the effectiveness of the instructional program, and to 
inform local policies and decisions.  

(c) ʺDevelopmental domainʺ means the broad, interrelated categories or 
dimensions of early childhood development reflective of early childhood 
education children’s learning and growth. The four core domains include 
social and emotional, physical, language, and cognitive.  

(d) ʺEarly childhood curriculumʺ means an articulated educational plan for 
young children, which is grounded in research-based understandings of 
child development and developmentally appropriate practices. Curriculum 
guides the teaching process from identifying what to teach, including early 
content standards in each of the four developmental domains and how to 
teach, including developing learning experiences based upon individual 
and group outcomes, and assessing what was learned then using this 
data to inform future planning and teaching. For early literacy targeted 
interventions implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-
year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten, the 
curriculum must embrace the four developmental domains while focusing 
on the subject subjects of literacy and numeracy with a goal of 
establishing a trajectory leading to reading or math proficiency at the end 
of third grade.  

(e) ʺLearning centerʺ means a self-contained area of the classroom featuring 
a wide variety of hands-on materials that children can choose and use 
independently which are organized around a curriculum area (science, 
math, art, music, dramatic play, literacy) or a specific kind of play material 
(blocks, sensory, manipulative).  

(f) ʺParaprofessionalʺ means an adult with the qualifications detailed in ARM 
10.63.105 who works under the direct supervision of a teacher and who 
may work independently in a teacher’s absence, but for the majority of the 
time works directly with the teacher in the same space with the same 
group of students.  

(g) ʺTeacherʺ means a licensed individual as defined in ARM 10.55.602, with 
primary responsibility for a group or class of early childhood 
education students.  

   
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 



10.63.103 LEADERSHIP  
  
(1) The early childhood education program leadership shall effectively implement 

policies, procedures, and systems that support stable staff and strong personnel, 
fiscal, and program management so all students, families, and staff have high-
quality experiences.  

 
(2) Professional development for early childhood education educators as required by 

ARM 10.55.714 should be tailored to early childhood development and learning.  
 
(3) Professional development completed by elementary (K-8) educators providing 

early literacy targeted interventions should be tailored to such interventions.  The 
elementary (K-8) educators providing early literacy targeted interventions, the 
employing districts, and accredited educator preparation providers, pursuant to 
ARM 10.58.102, are encouraged to collaborate to develop professional 
development options that support attainment of qualifications leading to an early 
childhood education (P-3) endorsement.  

   
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.104 TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND QUALIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC 
PRESCHOOL AND EARLY LITERACY TARGETED INTERVENTIONS  
  
(1) Teachers shall be assigned at the levels for which they are licensed and 

endorsed in accordance with state statutes and Board of Public Education rules.  
 
(2) Teachers with an early childhood (P-3) endorsement shall be considered to be 

appropriately licensed, endorsed, and assigned to teach in an accredited 
preschool program.  

 
(3) While teachers with an early childhood (P-3) endorsement are encouraged, 

teachers with either an early childhood (P-3) endorsement or an elementary (K-8) 
endorsement shall be considered to be appropriately licensed, endorsed, and 
assigned to teach early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the 
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program 
preceding kindergarten. Teachers with an elementary (K-8) endorsement who are 
teaching early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the 
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program 
preceding kindergarten are encouraged to pursue professional development as 
outlined in 10.63.103 to ensure delivery of high-quality early literacy targeted 
interventions.  

   
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 



Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.105 EARLY CHILDHOOD PARAPROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS  
  
(1) Early childhood paraprofessionals must have:  

(a) completed two years of study at an institution of higher education; or  
(b) obtained an associate’s (or higher) degree; or  
(c) a high school diploma and meet a rigorous standard of quality and be able 

to demonstrate knowledge of and the ability to assist in the delivery of the 
curriculum, instruction, and program delivery standards to support 
studentsꞌ development of the knowledge and skills outlined in the early 
learning content standards.  

 
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA  
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.106 EARLY CHILDHOOD PARAPROFESSIONAL SUPERVISION  
  
(1) Early childhood paraprofessionals shall be under the direct supervision of a 

licensed teacher who is responsible for instruction and assessment of students.  
 
(2) Early childhood paraprofessionals assigned to assist students with special 

education needs shall be under the supervision of the teacher.  
 
(3) The supervising teacher shall be available while an early childhood 

paraprofessional is fulfilling his or her responsibilities and shall not be 
simultaneously assigned to another teaching duty or preparation time.  

  
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA  
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.107 CLASS SIZE  
 
(1) There must be one appropriately licensed and endorsed teacher for ten 10 students, 

with an early childhood paraprofessional for any additional students over ten, for up 
to no more than 18 total students in a classroom with two adults.  

(1)(2) With classrooms exceeding 10 students, an early childhood paraprofessional is 
required at a rate of one hour per day, per student overload up to 16 students. At 16-
18 students, a minimum of one appropriately licensed and endorsed teacher and 
one early childhood paraprofessional are required. The school district must assign 
qualified human resources that comply with all fingerprint and background check 
requirements when exceeding maximum class sizes at a rate of 1 1/2 hours per day, 



per student overload. An overload of five students per classroom is considered 
excessive. 

(2)(3) School districts are encouraged to exceed these standards for classrooms 
exceeding 10 students with additional staffing beyond the requirements of (2). 

   
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.109 ENROLLMENT ELIGIBILITY  
  
(1) A child must have reached three years of age before the districtsꞌ official start 

date of the preschool program or have been enrolled by special permission by 
the board of trustees.  

 
(2) A child who is 4 years of age or older on or before September 10th of the year in 

which the child is to participate in early literacy targeted interventions 
implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer 
jumpstart program preceding kindergarten and who has not completed 
kindergarten and who is determined through the evaluation methodology process 
outlined in ARM 10.54.901 or ARM 10.54.903 to be below a trajectory leading to 
reading or math proficiency at the end of third grade is eligible for enrollment in 
early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-based 
program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten.  

  
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.110 EARLY LEARNING DEVELOPMENTAL DOMAINS AND CONTENT 
STANDARDS  
  
(1) The following early learning developmental domains represent the foundational 

skills all students need to be successful learners.  The development of 
communication, language, and literacy skills supports the growth in all other 
domains of development.  All developmental domains are applicable for public 
preschool programs and early targeted interventions implemented through the 
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program 
preceding kindergarten.  
(a) The language domain includes communication and comprehension in oral 

and written language.  
(i) Language instruction includes opportunities for students to develop:  

(A) receptive language, wherein students use listening and 
observation skills to make sense of and respond to spoken 
language and other forms of communication; enter into the 
exchange of information around what is seen, heard, and 



experienced; and begin to acquire an understanding of the 
concepts of language that contribute to learning;  

(B) expressive language, wherein students develop skills in 
using sounds, facial expressions, gestures, and words, such 
as to help others understand their needs, ask questions, 
express feelings and ideas, and solve problems;  

(C) social language, wherein students develop skills to interact 
and communicate with others in effective ways; and  

(D) support for dual language speakers, wherein students 
receive support in their home language(s) while becoming 
proficient in English.  

(ii) Literacy instruction includes opportunities for students to develop:  
(A) written language, wherein students build an understanding 

and interest in the symbols, sounds, and rhythms of written 
language and develop awareness that the printed word can 
be used for various purposes;  

(B) written communication, wherein students develop interest 
and skill in using symbols as a meaningful form of 
communication;  

(C) print awareness, wherein students build an understanding 
that print carries a message through symbols and words and 
that there is a connection between sounds and letters (the 
alphabetic principle); and  

(D) speech development, wherein students develop an 
awareness of the sounds of letters and the combination of 
letters that make up words and use this awareness to 
manipulate syllables and sounds of speech.  

(b) The social and emotional domain includes culture, family, community as 
well as social and emotional development.  
(i) Culture, family, and community skills instruction includes 

opportunities for students to develop:  
(A) an awareness of and appreciation for similarities and 

differences between themselves and others;  
(B) an awareness of the functions and diverse characteristics of 

families; and  
(C) an understanding of the basic principles of how communities 

function, including work roles and commerce.  
(ii) Social development skill instruction includes opportunities for 

students to:  
(A) develop trust, emotional bonds, and interact comfortably with 

adults;  
(B) interact and build relationships with peers; and  
(C) develop skills in cooperation, negotiation, and empathy.  

(iii) Emotional development skills instruction includes opportunities 
for students to:  



(A) develop an awareness and appreciation of self as a unique, 
competent, and capable individual;  

(B) demonstrate a belief in their abilities;  
(C) manage internal states, feelings, and behavior, and develop 

the ability to adapt to diverse situations and environments; 
and  

(D) express a wide and varied range of feelings through facial 
expressions, gestures, behaviors, and words.  

(c) The physical domain includes development of motor skills and instruction 
in health, safety, and personal care.  
(i) Motor skills instruction includes opportunities for students to 

develop:  
(A) small muscle strength, coordination, and skills;  
(B) large muscle strength, coordination, and skills; and  
(C) use of their senses to explore the environment and develop 

skills through sight, smell, touch, taste, and sound.  
(ii) Health, safety, and personal care skills instruction includes 

opportunities for students to develop:  
(A) personal health and hygiene skills as they develop and 

practice self-care routines;  
(B) healthy eating practices by eating a variety of nutritional 

foods;  
(C) healthy behaviors through physical activity; and  
(D) an awareness and understanding of safety rules as they 

learn to make safe and appropriate choices.  
(d) The cognitive domain includes approaches to learning.  

(i) Approaches to learning skills instruction include opportunities 
for students to develop:  
(A) curiosity through imagination, inventiveness, originality, and 

interest as they explore and experience new things;  
(B) initiative and self-direction through engagement in new tasks 

and to take risks in learning new skills or information;  
(C) persistence and attentiveness with the ability to focus their 

attention and concentration to complete tasks and increase 
their learning;  

(D) reflection and interpretation skills in thinking about their 
learning in order to inform their future decisions; and  

(E) reasoning skills in causation, critical and analytical thinking, 
problem solving, and representational thought.  

 
(2) The following early learning content standards are aligned to the Montana K-12 

Content Standards and highlight what students should know, understand, and be 
able to do upon entering kindergarten.  All early learning content standards are 
applicable for public preschool programs while only the English Language Arts 
and Literacy and Mathematics and Numeracy Content Standards apply to early 



targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-
year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten.  
(a) English Language Arts and Literacy standards include:  

(i) early reading, wherein students develop an understanding, skill, 
and interest in alphabet knowledge using the symbols, sounds, and 
rhythms of written language;  

(ii) print development and writing, wherein students demonstrate 
interest and skill in using symbols as a meaningful form of 
communication;  

(iii) speaking and listening, wherein students use phonemic and 
phonological awareness to identify and play with individual sounds 
in spoken words; and  

(iv) language, wherein students develop the ability to communicate with 
others to build relationships, share meaning, and express needs.  

(b) Mathematics and numeracy standards include:  
(i) number sense and operations, wherein students develop the ability 

to think and work with numbers, to understand their uses, and 
describe their relationships through structured and everyday 
experiences;  

(ii) measurement concepts, wherein students use measurement 
instruments to explore and discover measurement relationships 
and characteristics, such as length, quantity, volume, distance, 
weight, area, and time;  

(iii) mathematical skills in data analysis, wherein students count, sort, 
and compare objects;  

(iv) initial algebraic thinking and operations, wherein students identify, 
describe, produce, and create patterns using mathematical 
language and materials; and  

(v) geometric and spatial reasoning, wherein students build the 
foundation for recognizing, creating, and manipulating shapes, and 
learning spatial reasoning and directional words as they become 
aware of their bodies and personal space in their physical 
environment.  

(c) Creative arts standards include:  
(i) creative movement wherein students produce rhythmic movements 

spontaneously and in imitation with growing technical and artistic 
abilities;  

(ii) drama, wherein students show appreciation and awareness of 
drama through observation, imitation, and participation in simple 
dramatic plots;  

(iii) music, wherein students engage in a variety of musical or rhythmic 
activities; and  

(iv) visual arts, wherein students demonstrate a growing understanding 
and appreciation for the creative process and visual arts.  

(d) Science standards include:  



(i) scientific thinking and the use of the scientific methods through 
investigation using their senses to observe, manipulate objects, ask 
questions, make predictions, and develop conclusions and 
generalizations;  

(ii) an understanding of and compassion for living things;  
(iii) an understanding of the physical world, the nature and properties of 

energy, and nonliving matter;  
(iv) an understanding of the earth and planets; and  
(v) an understanding of engineering as the process that assists people 

in designing and building.  
(e) Social studies standards include:  

(i) an understanding of the concept of historical time, including past, 
present, and future;  

(ii) knowledge of geographical places and regions by understanding 
that each place has its own unique characteristics and the 
reciprocal effect individuals have with the world around them; and  

(iii) awareness of their natural world, including the environment and our 
interdependence on the natural world.  

(f) Technology standards include:  
(i) an understanding of technology with awareness of technological 

tools and developmentally appropriate exploration of the ways to 
use these resources.  

  
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.111 CURRICULUM AND ASSESSMENT  
  
(1) The early childhood curriculum, as defined in ARM 10.63.102, shall:  

(a) contain a written philosophy and framework, grounded in research-based 
understandings of child development, to provide a clear, coherent focus 
for planning students’ experiences;  

(b) informing instruction through observation and documentation of children’s 
strengths, interests, and needs in their play, work, and behavior;  

(c) guide the learning process and daily plans for learning through the 
selection of materials and equipment to enhance development and 
learning in the early learning developmental domains, including social and 
emotional, physical, language, and cognition; and encourage integration of 
applicable early learning content areas, including literacy, mathematics, 
science, social studies, creative expression and the arts, and technology;  

(d) include planned opportunities for active exploration, discovery, and social 
interaction;  

(e) plan for students’ engagement in play each day; and  
(f) be implemented in a manner reflective of studentsꞌ family and community 

lives while being responsive to diversity, including gender, age, language, 



culture, and ability, including opportunities for students and families to 
learn about the distinct and unique heritage of American Indians, 
particularly Montana Indian tribes, in a culturally responsive manner (20-1-
501, MCA).  

(2) School districts shall develop early childhood education programs to include an
ongoing and systematic written assessment plan which includes protocols for:
(a) monitoring the progress of students toward achieving content standards

and learning in the developmental domains using formative and
summative approaches that include universal screening, progress
monitoring, and diagnostic assessments;

(b) administration of assessments and interpretation of assessment results;
(c) providing disaggregated data to educators and teams to inform

instructional planning and decision making;
(d) involving families as partners in linguistically and culturally responsive

ways to inform decisions about studentsꞌ needs; and
(e) assessing the effectiveness of the instructional program that guides

adjustments for improvement.

Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 

10.63.112 INSTRUCTION 

(1) The early childhood education program shall ensure developmentally, culturally,
and linguistically appropriate and effective teaching strategies that enhance
studentsꞌ development and learning of the early learning content standards in
ARM 10.63.110 through the program’s curriculum.

(2) The early childhood education instructional program shall:
(a) use both content and child development knowledge to create learning

opportunities and to engage young learners in meaningful, planned, and
purposeful experiences related to the curriculum goals and content
standards;

(b) use a variety of effective approaches and strategies which include
opportunities for both teacher and student-initiated interactions and
activities;

(c) support children’s development by providing opportunities for all children
to play with and learn from each other;

(d) use knowledge of each student’s development to enhance instruction,
modify strategies and materials, and adjust supports and challenges as
students gain competence, understanding, and skills;

(e) build upon student’s language, understanding of concepts, and increase
vocabulary;



(f) integrate knowledge of studentsꞌ families and the community to build
relationships that foster integral connections with the curriculum and
learning experiences;

(g) use cultural and community resources in the classroom to enhance
student learning and development; and

(h) work as a team to implement learning plans, including plans for students
with special needs.

Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 

10.63.113 PHYSICAL AND LEARNING ENVIRONMENTS 

(1) The early childhood education program shall ensure an appropriate and well-
maintained safe and healthful physical environment that:
(a) is designed to protect student health and safety;
(b) allows for supervision of students primarily by sight;
(c) provides sanitization according to state and federal health standards;
(d) follows state and federal guidelines for meals and snacks; and
(e) provides safe, supervised, and adequate outside play space with age-

appropriate equipment and safe, adequate indoor space for each child.

(2) The early childhood education program shall ensure a safe and healthful learning
environment by:
(a) providing a written predictable but flexible schedule that provides

intentionally planned routines and transitions; and
(b) providing daily indoor and outdoor activities, including:

(i) planned learning center time where students have individual choice
of activities;

(ii) daily opportunities to learn and play individually, in small groups,
and as a whole group; and

(iii) use of developmentally appropriate materials and equipment.

Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 

10.63.114 CHILD GUIDANCE 

(1) Child guidance means employing a variety of strategies to foster self-regulation,
respect for others, problem solving, and social and emotional development in an
ongoing interactive process and helps students learn how to communicate with
others in developmentally appropriate ways. To ensure appropriate child
guidance, the early childhood education program shall:



(a) use positive behavior supports to ensure the social, emotional, and 
cultural development of each student;  

(b) provide a positive climate to ensure equality, inclusion, and citizenship;  
(c) develop relationships with the student and the student’s family in ways 

that are linguistically and culturally sensitive;  
(d) provide opportunities for students to be contributing members of the 

classroom community;  
(e) provide clear behavioral expectations, including the use of effective 

methods to prevent and redirect misbehavior; and  
(f) partner with families and other professionals for students with challenging 

behavior to develop and implement an individualized plan that fosters the 
child’s inclusion and success.  

    
Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 
10.63.115 FAMILY AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  
  
(1) The early childhood education program staff shall establish and maintain 

collaborative relationships with each child’s family and community to foster 
student’s development in all settings.  

 
(2) To ensure collaborative relationships between the community, school, and 

families, early childhood education programs shall have protocols which:  
(a) establish intentional practices designed to foster strong reciprocal 

relationships with families;  
(b) ensure that families are an integral part of the decision-making team 

through communication and family conferences which promote dialogue 
and partnership regarding their student’s educational goals and services;  

(c) collaborate with families to help students participate successfully in early 
childhood settings;  

(d) ensure that all families, regardless of family structure, socioeconomic, 
racial, religious, and cultural diversity, gender, abilities, or preferred 
languages are included in their child’s educational experience;  

(e) assist families in locating, contacting, and using community resources that 
support the student’s well-being, development, and goals;  

(f) promote awareness and understanding of the unique legal and political 
structures of Montana Tribal Nations in order to best meet the needs of 
Indian students and families;  

(g) collaborate with community-based programs to ensure that parents and 
families have the resources they need to be involved in their student’s 
education, growth, and development; and  

(h) provide access to health screenings and referrals for all students in the 
program.  

   



Authorizing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA 
Implementing statute(s): Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, 
MCA 
 



 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – (Items 7-11)

ITEM 7 

ACTION AND INFORMATION ON 
RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT AND 

ENCOURAGE FAFSA COMPLETION PRIOR 
TO HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

Dr. Angela McLean 



State of Montana  PO Box 200601 

  Helena, Montana 59620-0601 
  (406) 444-6576 
  www.bpe.mt.gov 

 Board of Public Education 

 

 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERS 
 
APPOINTED MEMBERS: 

 
Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair 
Savage 
 
Dr. Ron Slinger, Vice Chair 
Miles City 
 
Madalyn Quinlan 
Helena 
 
Julia Maxwell 
Marion 
 
Renee Rasmussen 
Clancy 
 
Lisa Schmidt 
Conrad 
 
Dr. Hannah Nieskens 
Cardwell 
 
Lydia Comstock, Student Rep. 
Great Falls 
 
EX OFFICIO MEMBERS: 
 
Clayton Christian, 
Commissioner of 
Higher Education 
 
Susie Hedalen, 
Superintendent of 
Public Instruction 
 
Greg Gianforte,  
Governor 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 
 
McCall Flynn 

 

RESOLUTION  
 

WHEREAS, the Montana Board of Public Education affirms that educational 

opportunity is essential to the well-being of Montana’s students, families, and 

communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Montana’s high schools play a vital role in helping students explore 

and prepare for the full range of postsecondary and career options available in Montana, 

including pathways through colleges, universities, apprenticeships, and workforce 

training programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, completing the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) 

is a key step in accessing financial aid, including grants, scholarships, work-study 

programs, the upcoming Workforce Pell, and federal student loans, that can make higher 

education and workforce training more affordable for Montana families; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2024, Montana’s FAFSA completion rate was 44 percent, 

compared to the national average of 54 percent, leaving an estimated $12 million in 

financial aid unclaimed by Montana students; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Montana University System’s proposed Direct Admissions 

initiative will help simplify the college exploration process by proactively informing high 

school students of the in-state postsecondary options for which they already qualify, 

without requiring any application fee or obligation to enroll;  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Public Education 

shall work with the Montana Board of Regents and the Superintendent of Public 

Instruction to encourage all Montana public high schools to strengthen students’ and 

families’ understanding of, and completion of, the FAFSA by incorporating FAFSA 

awareness into financial literacy curriculum and hosting FAFSA completion events; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Public Education 

shall support the Montana University System’s Direct Admissions initiative to help 

students and families better understand their postsecondary opportunities in Montana; and 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Public Education 

encourages the Montana Office of Public Instruction and the Montana Office of the 

Commissioner of Higher Education to assist interested school districts in these efforts 

through technical assistance, data-sharing protocols, and outreach to families and 

communities. 

 

RESOLVED BY THE MONTANA BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION ON  

NOVEMBER 19, 2025. 

 

 

 

Dr. Tim Tharp 

Chairperson 

Board of Public Education 



ITEM 8 

ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF 
ADOPTION PERTAINING TO RULEMAKING 
IN ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 53, ENGLISH 

LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY 
CONTENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE 

FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE FOR PUBLICATION 

IN THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGISTER 

Madalyn Quinlan 



1Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION

NOTICE OF ADOPTION
MAR NOTICE NO. 2025-242.2

Summary
Adoption of NEW RULE 1 (10.53.414) through NEW RULE 13 (10.53.426) and repeal of ARM
10.53.401 through 10.53.413 pertaining to English Language Arts and Literacy Content
Standards.
Previous Notice(s) and Hearing Information
On August 8, 2025, the Board of Public Education (board) published MAR Notice No. 2025-242.1
pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed adoption and repeal of the above-stated rules
in Issue Number 15 of the 2025 Montana Administrative Register.
On August 29, 2025, the board held a public hearing to consider the proposed rulemaking.

Final Rulemaking Action – Effective July 1, 2027
ADOPT AS PROPOSED
The agency has adopted the following rules as proposed:
NEW RULE (10.53.414) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR LITERACY
PRACTICE FOR GRADES K-12
NEW RULE (10.53.415) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR
KINDERGARTEN
NEW RULE (10.53.416) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR FIRST
GRADE



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 2

NEW RULE (10.53.417) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR SECOND
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.418) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR THIRD
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.419) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR FOURTH
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.420) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR FIFTH
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.421) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR SIXTH
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.422) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR SEVENTH
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.423) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR EIGHTH
GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.424) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR NINTH
AND TENTH GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.425) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS FOR ELEVENTH
AND TWELFTH GRADE
NEW RULE (10.53.426) ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS AND LITERACY STANDARDS GLOSSARY
REPEAL AS PROPOSED
The agency has repealed the following rules as proposed:
10.53.401 COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ANCHOR STANDARDS FOR READING
10.53.402 COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ANCHOR STANDARDS FOR WRITING
10.53.403 COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ANCHOR STANDARDS FOR SPEAKING AND
LISTENING
10.53.404 COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ANCHOR STANDARDS FOR LANGUAGE
10.53.405 READING STANDARDS FOR LITERATURE
10.53.406 READING STANDARDS FOR INFORMATIONAL TEXT
10.53.407 READING STANDARDS: FOUNDATIONAL SKILLS



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 3

10.53.408 WRITING STANDARDS
10.53.409 SPEAKING AND LISTENING STANDARDS
10.53.410 LANGUAGE STANDARDS
10.53.411 READING STANDARDS FOR LITERACY IN HISTORY/ SOCIAL STUDIES
10.53.412 READING STANDARDS FOR LITERACY IN SCIENCE AND TECHNICAL SUBJECTS
10.53.413 WRITING STANDARDS FOR LITERACY IN HISTORY/SOCIAL STUDIES, SCIENCE, AND
TECHNICAL SUBJECTS

Statement of Reasons
No comments were received.

Contact
McCall Flynn
(406) 444-6576
bpe@mt.gov

Rule Reviewer
McCall Flynn
Approval
Dr. Tim Tharp
Board Chair



ITEM 9 

ACTION ON VARIANCE TO STANDARDS 
REQUESTS AND RENEWALS 

• Initial Applications
• Renewal Applications

Ellery Bresler 
Crystal Andrews 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Recommend Approval of the 2025-26 Initial and 
Renewal Variances to Standards (VTS) 
applications. 

Presenter Crystal Andrews   Ellery Bresler 

Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 
Accreditation and Licensure Data Analyst  
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This presentation provides the Board of Public 
Education recommendations from 
Superintendent Hedalen to approve Initial and 
Renewal Variance to Standards. The primary 
report is attached. 

Requested Decision(s) Approval of the eighteen Variances to Standards 
applications. 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) Action 1: Approve State Superintendent 
Hedalen’s recommendation of the thirteen 
requests for Initial Variances to Standards. 
Action 2: Approve State Superintendent 
Hedalen’s recommendations of the five requests 
for Renewal of Variances to Standards. 



Variance to Standards 
Initial Application Summary 

SY 2025-2026 

1. Billings Public Schools - Skyview High School 9-12 (SC: 1628), Billings West High
School 9-12 (SC: 1251), Billings Sr High School 9-12 (SC: 1250), Billings Early
College School 9-12 (SC: 3005)

a. 10.55.905 2(h) – Graduation Requirements
i. Application Request: To obtain a one-year extension beyond July

2025, to provide adequate time for the class of 2026 to complete
existing pathways without specific completion of 10.55.905 2(h)
while ensuring that all subsequent graduating classes (2027 and
beyond) remain on track to meet the new requirement.

ii. Requirement: One-half credit in economics or financial literacy as a
graduation requirement. The BPE granted a statewide delay until July
1, 2025, which impacts the graduating class of 2026.

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance provides time to phase in
expanded course offerings. The district has grown from 3 qualifying
courses to 6 within two years, with 2 more planned in the next year.

iv. BPS has nearly 17,000 students; the impacted classes (2026 &2027)
total 2,648 students, scheduling them into half-credit courses at
one time would have required 18 additional full-time staff members,
which is impractical given staffing shortages and prior budget
reductions. Reassigning that many current staff members to focus
entirely on these courses would have significantly impacted the
course options for the graduating classes of 2024 and 2025.

v. The initial request is for two years

2. Billings Public Schools - Billings Multilingual Academy High School 9-12 (SC:
3004), Billings Multilingual Academy Middle School 6-8 (SC: 3003)

a. 10.55.902 – Basic Education Program: Middle School
i. Application Request: To operate a hybrid schedule to support ELLs.

Students spend ½ day at BMA receiving instruction in English,
Language Arts, mathematics, and social studies. The other ½ day,



students are enrolled in their neighborhood middle or high school 
where they participate in all other required courses – such as 
science, health enhancement/PE, world languages, career and 
technical education, the arts, and graduation requirements. 

ii. Requirement: Basic education program standards for junior high,
middle schools, and 7th and 8th-grade programs. The rule specifies
curriculum alignment with state standards, the integration of
literacy and American Indian cultural heritage.

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance leverages a coordinated hybrid
structure between BMA and students’ neighborhood schools.

iv. While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required
under accreditation standards.

v. The initial request is for two years.
b. 10.55.904 – Basic Education Program: High School

i. Application Request: To operate a hybrid schedule to support ELLs.
Students spend ½ day at BMA receiving instruction in English,
Language Arts, mathematics, and social studies. The other ½ day,
students are enrolled in their neighborhood middle or high school
where they participate in all other required courses – such as
science, health enhancement/PE, world languages, career and
technical education, the arts, and graduation requirements.

ii. Requirement: A basic educational program for high schools
requiring a minimum of 20 coursework units for students in grades
9-12 state content standards.

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance leverages a coordinated hybrid
structure between BMA and students’ neighborhood schools.
While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required
under accreditation standards.

iv. While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required
under accreditation standards.

v. The initial request is for two years.
c. 10.55.905 – High School Course Offerings

i. Application Request: To operate a hybrid schedule to support ELLs.
Students spend ½ day at BMA receiving instruction in English,
Language Arts, mathematics, and social studies. The other ½ day,
students are enrolled in their neighborhood middle or high school
where they participate in all other required courses – such as
science, health enhancement/PE, world languages, career and



technical education, the arts, and graduation requirements. 
ii. Requirement: 20 high school units for graduation, with 13 specific 

units mandated. These include (4) English language arts, (2) math, 
(2) social studies (with ½ unit of civics or government), (2) science, 
(1) health enhancement/physical education, ½ unit in economics or 
financial literacy, which can be fulfilled within social studies, math, 
or CTE requirements. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance leverages a coordinated hybrid 
structure between BMA and students’ neighborhood schools. 
While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range 
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required 
under accreditation standards. 

iv. While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range 
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required 
under accreditation standards. 

v. The initial request is for two years. 
d. 10.55.905 – High School Course Offerings 

i. Application Request: To operate a hybrid schedule to support ELLs. 
Students spend ½ day at BMA receiving instruction in English, 
Language Arts, mathematics, and social studies. The other ½ day, 
students are enrolled in their neighborhood middle or high school 
where they participate in all other required courses – such as 
science, health enhancement/PE, world languages, career and 
technical education, the arts, and graduation requirements. 

ii. Requirement: 20 high school units for graduation, with 13 specific 
units mandated. These include (4) English language arts, (2) math, 
(2) social studies (with ½ unit of civics or government), (2) science, 
(1) health enhancement/physical education, ½ unit in economics or 
financial literacy, which can be fulfilled within social studies, math, 
or CTE requirements. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance leverages a coordinated hybrid 
structure between BMA and students’ neighborhood schools. 
While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range 
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required 
under accreditation standards. 

iv. While at their neighborhood schools, students access the full range 
of courses, extracurricular, counseling, and library services required 
under accreditation standards. 

v. The initial request is for two years. 
 

 

 

 



3. Billings Public Schools - Billings Opportunity School 9-12 (SC: 3006) 
a. 10.55.904 – Basic Education Program Offerings: High School 

i. Application Request: To access academic requirements through a 
combination of on-site instruction, online learning facilitated by a 
BOS instructor, and through hybrid scheduling with area high 
schools, including the Billings Career Center. 

ii. Requirement: A basic educational program for high schools 
requiring a minimum of 20 coursework units for students in grades 
9-12 state content standards. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The schedule of the BOS coincides with the 
accredited, comprehensive area high schools. 

iv. Students at the BOS have access to shuttle bus services provided by 
the Billings Public Schools. 

v. The initial request is for two years. 
b. 10.55.905 - High School Course Offerings 

i. Application Request: To access academic requirements through a 
combination of on-site instruction, online learning facilitated by a 
BOS instructor, and through hybrid scheduling with area high 
schools, including the Billings Career Center. 

ii. Requirement: 20 high school units for graduation, with 13 specific 
units mandated. These include (4) English language arts, (2) math, 
2) social studies (with ½ unit of civics or government), (2) science, 
(1) health enhancement/physical education, ½ unit in economics or 
financial literacy, which can be fulfilled within social studies, math, 
or CTE requirements. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The schedule of the BOS coincides with the 
accredited, comprehensive area high schools. Students at the BOS 
have access to shuttle bus services provided by the Billings Public 
Schools. 

iv. The initial request is for two years. 

 
4. Billings Public Schools - Billings Early College School 9-12 (SC: 3005) 

a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Service 
i. Application Request: To operate on a hybrid schedule. 
ii. Requirement: (1) The school library shall be housed in a central 

location, and each school shall have a licensed and endorsed 
library media specialist at the following ratio: (2) Schools of fewer 
than 126 students shall employ or contract with a licensed and 
endorsed school library media specialist. (3) If a school has fewer 
than 126 students, the district may utilize a consortium, 



multidistrict agreement, or interlocal cooperative to secure these 
services. 

iii. Workable Reasons: Students attend area high schools and have 
access to transportation systems (shuttle service) through Billings 
Public Schools. 

iv. The initial request is for two years. 
b. 10.55.904 – Basic Education Program Offerings: High School 

i. Application Request: To offer programs through a hybrid schedule. 
ii. Requirement: A basic educational program for high schools 

requiring a minimum of 20 coursework units for students in grades 
9-12 state content standards. 

iii. Workable Reasons: Students attend area high schools and have 
access to transportation systems (shuttle service) through Billings 
Public Schools. 

iv. The initial request is for two years.  
c. 10.55.905 – Basic Education Program Offerings: High School 

i. Application Request: To offer programs through a hybrid schedule. 
ii. Requirement: 20 high school units for graduation, with 13 specific 

units mandated. These include (4) English language arts, (2) math, 
2) social studies (with ½ unit of civics or government), (2) science, 
(1) health enhancement/physical education, ½ unit in economics or 
financial literacy, which can be fulfilled within social studies, math, 
or CTE requirements. 

iii. Workable Reasons: Students attend area high schools and have 
access to transportation systems (shuttle service) through Billings 
Public Schools. 

iv. The initial request is for two years. 

 
5. Cascade Public Schools - Cascade Elementary PK-5 (SC: 0158), Cascade 6-8 

(SC: 1661), Cascade High School 9-12 (SC: 0157) 
a. 10.55.709 – Assignment of Library Media Specialist 

i. Application Request: To contract a licensed library media specialist 
(0.01 FTE) to oversee a library media specialist paraprofessional. 

ii. Requirement: (1)(a) .5 FTE for schools with 126-250 students; (2) 
Schools with fewer than 126 students shall employ or contract with 
a licensed and endorsed school library media specialist. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The variance is workable due to the small 
enrollment and shared resources. The licensed librarian will provide 
mentoring and support to the paraprofessional. 

iv. Cascade’s retired librarian is willing to return on a limited basis to 



meet the requirements of the variance. 
v. This initial request is for two years.

 
 
6. Clancy Elementary - Clancy School District (SC: 0452), Clancy Elementary PK-5 

(SC: 0606), Clancy Middle School 6-8 (SC: 1713) 
a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Specialist 

i. Application Request: To employ one full-time (1.0 FTE) Library Media 
Specialist serving PK-8 students. 

ii. Requirement: 1.001 FTE Library Media Specialist 
iii. Workable Reasons: The district’s single full-time Library Media 

Specialist is sufficient to meet the needs of 380 PK-8 students on a 
single campus. The 0.001 FTE shortfall due to grade reconfiguration 
does not impact service delivery. Current staffing, scheduling, and 
facility access ensure that library programming remains robust, 
accessible, and instructional in nature. 

iv. The full-time librarian meets the requirements of ARM 10.55.1101, 
providing consistent instruction in literacy, research, and digital 
skills. 

v. This is an initial request for two years. 
b. 10.55.704 – Assignment of District Superintendents 

i. Application Request: To operate with one full-time principal and one 
full-time, on-site superintendent who also performs principal 
duties. The district requests a variance to maintain this model 
without adding an additional administrator. 

ii. Requirement: (1)(d) School systems with 31 or more FTE licensed 
staff shall employ a full-time (1.0 FTE) licensed superintendent who 
shall devote full time to administration and supervision not to 
exceed a total assignment of 1.0 FTE; and no individual 
superintendent assigned pursuant to the ratios in (1) may be 
assigned as more than 1.0 FTE. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The district’s current administration structure, 
consisting of a full-time principal and an on-site superintendent who 
shares principal duties, is supported by enrollment size, facility 
layout, and scheduling needs. This structure provides 
comprehensive leadership coverage. This model has been effective 
over time and is supported by existing staffing and operational 
resources. 

iv. The full-time principal and on-site superintendent jointly manage 
behavior, instructional support, and family engagement, creating a 



responsive and stable leadership team that sustains a positive 
learning environment. 

v. This initial request is for two years. 
c. 10.55.705 – Administrative Personnel: Assignment of School 

Administrators/Principals 
i. Application Request: To operate with one full-time principal and one 

full-time, on-site superintendent who also performs principal 
duties. The district requests a variance to maintain this model 
without adding an additional administrator. 

ii. Requirement: (2) (c) 1.0 FTE licensed principal shall be assigned to 
schools with enrollments of 250 to fewer than 550 students. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The district’s current administration structure, 
consisting of a full-time principal and an on-site superintendent who 
shares principal duties, is supported by enrollment size, facility 
layout, and scheduling needs. This structure provides 
comprehensive leadership coverage. This model has been effective 
over time and is supported by existing staffing and operational 
resources. 

iv. The full-time principal and on-site superintendent jointly manage 
behavior, instructional support, and family engagement, creating a 
responsive and stable leadership team that sustains a positive 
learning environment. 

v. This initial request is for two years. 
 
 
7. Elysian Elementary - Elysian Elysian Middle School 6-8 (SC: 1831), Elysian 

School PK-5 (SC: 1295) – Pending Board Approval on November 4th 

a. 10.55.705 – Administrative Personnel: Assignment of School 
Administrators/Principals 

i. Application Request: To have a 1.0 FTE Principal serve as the 
administrator for a combined student population of 450, all housed 
in one building. 

ii. Requirement: 1.0 FTE principal for the elementary school 
(population 303) and a 0.25 FTE principal for the middle school 
(population 127). 

iii. Workable Reasons: Elysian School District does have a 
Superintendent in the same building, which allows for 
administrative support when needed. 

iv. While the in-building Superintendent could fill the 0.25 FTE position 
in the Middle School as Principal and cover the Superintendent role 



for the district, the principal position is counted as certified staff 
which pushes the certified staff FTE from 30.5 to 31.75. This statistic 
does not allow for a split Superintendent role within the district. 

v. The initial request is for two years. 
 

 
8. Frontier Elementary - Frontier School PK-6 (SC: 1411), Frontier 7-8 (SC: 1757) 

a. 10.55.710 – Assignment of School Counseling Staff 
i. Application Request: To operate with a contracted counselor at .75 

FTE. 
ii. Requirement: **(1) A minimum equivalent of one full-time 

counselor for each 400 elementary (K-8) students shall be provided. 
The counselor/student ratio shall be prorated. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The current contracted counselor previously 
worked at halftime. This year the counselor is working at 75% of the 
time to be available to students. Currently, a teacher is working 
towards a counseling degree and has been providing counseling 
support within the scope of the guidance counselor practicum. 

iv. Frontier School and Frontier 7-8 has experienced an unexpected 
increase in enrollment, due to a state tuition bill, causing standard 
issues with the current contracted counselor of 17 years. 

v. The initial request is for two years. 
 

9. Hardin Public Schools – The Big Horn Academy (SC: 3036) 
a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services (2) Schools of fewer than 126 students 

shall employ or contract with a licensed and endorsed school 
library media specialist. 

i. Application Request: To utilize the library services of Hardin High 
School in lieu of hiring a part-time librarian. 

ii. Requirement: 0.001 FTE for schools with enrollment of less than 126 
students. 

iii. Workable Reasons: Big Horn Academy is located near the Hardin 
High School campus, which employs a full-time library media 
specialist. The Hardin High School library is open throughout the 
day allowing equitable access to all students. 

iv. This is an initial request for two years. 
 
10. Helena Flats Elementary - Helena Flats School PK-6 (SC: 0432) 

a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services (1) The School library shall be housed in a 
central location, and each school shall have a licensed and endorsed library 



media specialist at the following ratio: (b) 1 FTE for schools with 251-500 
students. 

i. Application Request: To be permitted to adhere to Section 1(a) .5
FTE for schools with 126-250 students and NOT be required to hire
an additional 0.5 FTE. Helena Flats School currently has 256
enrolled students.

ii. Requirement: 1 FTE library media specialist for schools with 251-
500 students.

iii. Workable Reasons: The overage of 6 enrolled students does not
create a situation that is difficult for current library media specialists
to handle as the school is within the parameters outlined in ARM
10.55.712 – Class Size- Elementary. The entire school district is
housed in a single building.

iv. Additionally, the school predicts that the student enrollment will
decrease to under the 251-500 ratio.

v. This is an initial request for two years.

11. Lewiston Public Schools - Central MT CTE Academy 9-12 (SC: 3030)
a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services, K-12, (1) The School library shall be

housed in a central location, and each school shall have a licensed and
endorsed library media specialist at the following ratio: (2) Schools of fewer
than 126 students shall employ or contract with a licensed and endorsed
school library media specialist.

i. Application Request: To utilize the services of the 1.0 FTE librarian
employed at Fergus High School. (86 ½ time students, FY26)

ii. Requirement: To employ or contract with a licensed and endorsed
school library media specialist.

iii. Workable Reasons: Most courses at the Central MT CTE Academy
are housed on the Fergus High School campus where students have
access to school resources, including the library and a full-time
librarian.

iv. Central MT CTE Academy is a new school. The combined enrollment
of Fergus High School and Central MT CTE Academy is 362 students,
which includes 86 part time enrolled students in the CTE Academy.
Combined, the enrollment of both schools falls within the 10.55.709
– Library Media Services, K-12 Accreditation Standards: (b) 1 FTE for
schools with 251-500 students. Fergus High School employs a 1.0
FTE Librarian. By utilizing shared resources between schools, the
proposed variance to this standard will provide the necessary
support.



v. This is an initial request for two years. 
 
12. Lewiston Public Schools - Lewistown 7-8 (SC: 1410), *Lewistown Public 

Schools (K-12 System) (LE: 0258) 
a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services, K-12, (1) The school library shall be 

housed in a central location, and each school shall have a licensed and 
endorsed library media specialist at the following ratio: (a) .5 FTE for schools 
with 126-250 students. 

i. Application Request: To utilize a highly qualified paraprofessional to 
meet the educational needs of students requiring library services. 

ii. Requirement: .5 FTE for Schools with 126-250 students. 
iii. Workable Reasons: 

• Lewistown Junior High is using a highly qualified 
paraprofessional to maintain the library and meet the 
standards. The paraprofessional’s assignment is approximately 
.5 FTE dedicated to library media services. The 
paraprofessional utilizes the mentorship of certified librarians 
in the district for assistance. 

iv. Lewistown Junior High has not been able to acquire a .5 FTE certified 
Librarian. The highly qualified paraprofessional has served in the 
position for several years and the library services provided has more 
than met the educational needs of the school and the students. 
Enrollment projections indicate the junior high will remain under 
250 students. 

v. This is an initial request for two years. 
b. 10.55.704 – Administrative Personnel: Assignment of District 

Superintendents (2) School systems with 100 or more FTE licensed staff shall 
employ a full-time curriculum coordinator to supervise the educational 
program and alignment of standards, assessment, curriculum, instruction, 
and instructional materials. The curriculum coordinator shall hold a Class 3 
administrative license. Those districts with fewer than 100 FTE licensed staff 
and no full-time curriculum coordinator shall employ the services of a 
consortium, multidistrict collaborative, or interlocal cooperative, or a part-
time, designated curriculum coordinator. 

i. Application Request: To proceed through FY26 without a full-time 
curriculum coordinator. Lewistown Public Schools has exceeded 
the 100 licensed FTE (102, FY26) and will not be able to comply with 
10.55.704, Section 2. Due to downward trend in student enrollment, 
Lewistown Public Schools will most likely fall below the 102 FTE 
soon. 



ii. Requirement: 1 FTE Curriculum Coordinator holding a Class 3 
administrative license for school systems with 100 or more FTE 
licensed staff. 

iii. Workable Reasons: The district has a process to meet the needs of 
the curriculum review, assessment and adoption. A diverse 
committee, chaired by a licensed school administrator, reviews, 
revises, and recommends curriculum changes and adoption. The 
committee is comprised of teacher representatives of all grade 
levels, members of the board of trustees and administrators. 
Curriculum meetings are posted and open to the public. This district 
process has been effective for the past several years. 

iv. The current process Lewistown Public School utilizes for curriculum 
review and adoption meets all the established standards in 
10.55.603-Curriculum and Assessment. Additionally, due to a 
downward trend in student enrollment, Lewistown Public Schools 
will most likely fall below the 102 FTE soon. 

v. This is an initial request for two years. 
 
13. Marion Elementary - Marion School PK-6 (SC: 0455), Marion School 7-8 (SC: 

1697) 
a. 10.55.709 Library Media Specialist, K-12, (1)(a) .5 FTE for schools with 126-

250 students. 
i. Application Request: To have library services, resource 

management, and literacy support provided by qualified staff under 
the direct supervision of the Superintendent/Principal. 

ii. Requirement: .5 FTE for Schools with 126-250 students. 
iii. Workable Reasons: 

• School has a plan to transition into compliance with a current 
4th grade teacher who has committed to pursuing library 
licensure. This teacher plans to take the required coursework 
and Praxis this academic year. Thus, the school plans to have a 
certified library media specialist by the next academic year. 

iv. Marion School District has been unable to fill the library media 
specialist position for the year 2025-2026. 

v. This is an initial request for two years. 
 



Variance to Standards  
Renewal Application Summary 

 SY 2025-2026 

1. Eureka Public Schools – Eureka Elementary (SC: 0710) & Eureka Middle School 5-8 (SC:
1724)

a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services K-12
b. 10.55.710 – Assignment of School Counseling Staff

i. Application Request: A 1.0 librarian FTE for both the elementary school and
the middle school. A paraprofessional is used when the librarian is
unavailable. A half time, licensed counselor who divides time between
elementary and middle school. A “highly qualified” paraprofessional is used
to supplement counseling services.

ii. The requirement is one full-time librarian and counselor for both schools.
iii. This is a renewal request for three years.

2. Hellgate Elementary - Hellgate Lower 2-3 (SC: 1573), Hellgate Primary PK-1 (SC: 1863),
Hellgate Intermediate 4-6 (SC: 1859)

a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services K-12, 2 FTE for schools with 1001-1500 students.
i. Application Request: Two full-time, certified librarians on staff. Additionally,

the schools have one library paraprofessional who holds a current teaching
license (MT FCS 5-12) and has been providing library services for three years.
There are four educational buildings housing students on a 43-acre campus.
All buildings are separated by 100-150 yards.

ii. The requirement is two full-time licensed and endorsed library media
specialists for each school.

iii. This is a renewal request for three years.

3. Independent Elementary - Independent School PK-6 (SC: 1304)
a. 10.55.704 – Assignment of District Superintendents
b. 10.55.705 – Assignment of School Administrators/Principals

i. Application Request: One administrator to serve as both the Superintendent
(0.5 FTE) and Principal (1.0 FTE) in place of the standard requirement for
separate positions.

ii. The requirement is a Superintendent (0.5 FTE) and a Principal (1.0 FTE).
iii. This is a renewal request for three years.



4. Shelby Public Schools - Shelby Elementary School PK-5 (SC: 1176)
a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services, K-12

i. Application Request: A .5 librarian and a full-time paraprofessional
ii. The requirement is a 1.0 librarian for schools with 251-500 students

(currently at 241)
iii. This is a renewal request for three years.

5. Three Forks Public Schools - Three Forks Elementary PK-5 (SC: 0482), Three Forks 6-8
(SC: 1658), Three Forks High School 9-12 (SC: 0483)

a. 10.55.709 – Library Media Services, K-12
i. Application Request: Permit 2 FTE Library Media Specialists for all three

schools which are housed together in one building totaling 763 students.
ii. The requirement is that each school shall have a licensed and endorsed

library media specialist at the following ratio: 1.5 FTE for schools with 501-
1000 students.

iii. This is a renewal request for three years.



ITEM 10 

ACTION AND PRESENTATION ON THE 
CORRECTIVE PLANS FOR SCHOOLS IN 

DEFICIENT STATUS FOR ACCREDITATION 

ACTION ITEMS: 

•  Superintendent Victoria Falls Down, 
Lame Deer Public Schools

• Superintendent Wes Young, Lustre 
Christian High School

 

Crystal Andrews 
Ellery Bresler 



 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: November 19-21, 2025 

  

Presentation Recommend Approval of the Corrective Plans for 
SY 2024-25 

  
Presenter Crystal Andrews                      Ellery Bresler 
 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 

Accreditation and Licensure Data Analyst 
 Office of Public Instruction 
Overview This presentation provides information to the 

Board of Public Education (BPE) for consideration 
of the corrective plans for the 2024-2025 
Accreditation Report. The two remaining schools 
in deficient status will present their plans. 
The state superintendent recommends approval 
of the corrective plans as presented. The report is 
attached. 

  
Requested Decision(s) Action Item 
  
Related Issue(s)  
  
Recommendation(s) Approval of the two remaining corrective plans 

for the 2024-2025 school year. 
  



1 | P a g e

SY 2025-26 Remaining Corrective Plans 

Contents 
Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer School: Corrective Plan ....................................... 2 

Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer 7-8: Corrective Plan ............................................. 6 

Lustre Christian High – Lustre Christian HS: Corrective Plan .............................................. 9 



2 | P a g e

Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer School: Corrective Plan 

The reason the school is in a corrective plan: Student Performance Standards (SPA-SPB) 

Please describe your systematic procedure and timeline for resolving deviations: 

Conduct regular item analysis on formative and summative assessments, every 3 weeks. Teachers 
and Data Coach will be responsible to monitor this timeline. 

* Progress Monitoring

* Periodic walk-throughs throughout the day and/or week. Focus on complete implementation of
PBE strategies and differentiated instruction. 

* Performance Growth Targets. Use NWEA/Interim Data to track progress, Improvement indicator
projected for Spring 2026.

Define the specific area requiring improvement and identify the underlying reasons 
contributing to the accreditation status of advice or deficiency through data and root cause 
analysis: 

Areas of focus: 1.  Data-Driven Instruction  2.  Proficiency Based Education (PBE)  3.  Tiered Support 
and Interventions  4.  Professional Learning Community (PLC)  5.  Student Ownership and Feedback  
6. Family Engagement.

Root causes include gaps in conceptual understanding, Mis-alignment between assessment items 
and proficiency targets, lack of actionable formative feedback, and inconsistency in instructional 
practices. 

Outline the specific steps to address the area of improvement. (Examples: professional 
development, resource allocation for staffing or materials, collection of relevant 
evidence/data, etc.): 

Areas of focus: 1.  Data-Driven Instruction: Apply a system where teacher regularly collect, analyze 
and use data to about student learning, behaviors  and performance to make informed decisions to 
improve pedagogy.  2.  Proficiency Based Education (PBE) Align learning targets and success 
criteria with Montana content Standards. Reteaching using flexible pacing for students who do not 
meet proficiency.  3.  Tiered Support and Interventions: Interventions for non-proficient students 



   

3 | P a g e  
 

based on assessments data. 4.  Professional Learning Community (PLC) Grade-level PLC's analyze 
student work and develop collaborative environment where teacher share expertise and use data to 
guide improvement. The goal is to foster a culture of continuous learning and mutual support which 
we hope will increase student learning and teacher efficacy.  5.  Student Ownership and Feedback: 
Use student-friendly rubric and self assessment tools aligned with success criteria.  6.  Family 
Engagement: Communicate proficiency progress to families through academic updates and 
student portfolios. Community involvement in presenting a culturally responsive pedagogy. 
 
 
Identify responsible parties and deadlines for corrective action: 

The individuals responsible: 
Focus Area #1: Teachers, Data Coach and Administrator. Ongoing, with progress monitoring every 
three weeks. Identify misconceptions and adjust instruction. Improve validity and reliability of 
assessments. 
Focus Area #2: Teachers, August 2025, Bi-weekly,  Clear path for student Mastery. or exceed 
proficiency. 
Focus Area #3:  Title I resource staff, September 2025, Implement targeted interventions for non-
proficient students based on assessment data. Increase student growth. 
Focus Area #4: Instructional leader, Monthly meetings, (Aug.- May), Build collective teacher 
efficacy. Focus Area # 5: Student Ownership and Feedback: All teachers will be responsible, 
beginning October 2025, Increase student engagement and responsibility. 
Focus Area #6: Counselor with collaboration with teachers, the will be done quarterly,  Families are 
informed and involved in student progress or lack of it. 
Resources Needed: Continuous access to AI Tools for items analysis, Ongoing professional 
development on PBE, Time for PLC collaboration, 
Intervention materials and staff training for effective implementation of district curriculum. 
Curriculum Coordinator/Principal monitor effective use of curriculum and adequate supply. 
Professional development will aligned with the improvement plan. 
 
 
Describe how progress will be tracked and monitored: 

The individuals responsible: 

Focus Area #1: Teachers, Data Coach and Administrator. Ongoing, with progress monitoring every 
three weeks. Identify misconceptions and adjust instruction. Improve validity and reliability of 
assessments. 

Focus Area #2: Teachers, August 2025, Bi-weekly,  Clear path for student Mastery. or exceed 
proficiency. 

Focus Area #3:  Title I resource staff, September 2025, Implement targeted interventions for non-
proficient students based on assessment data. Increase student growth. 



4 | P a g e

Focus Area #4: Instructional leader, Monthly meetings, (Aug.- May), Build collective teacher 
efficacy. Focus Area # 5: Student Ownership and Feedback: All teachers will be responsible, 
beginning October 2025, Increase student engagement and responsibility. 

Focus Area #6: Counselor with collaboration with teachers, the will be done quarterly,  Families are 
informed and involved in student progress or lack of it. 

Resources Needed: Continuous access to AI Tools for items analysis, Ongoing professional 
development on PBE, Time for PLC collaboration, 

Intervention materials and staff training for effective implementation of district curriculum. 
Curriculum Coordinator/Principal monitor effective use of curriculum and adequate supply. 
Professional development will aligned with the improvement plan. 

Provided evidence that the local board of trustees has approved this plan: 

YES 



5 | P a g e



6 | P a g e

Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer 7-8: Corrective Plan 
The reason the school is in a corrective plan: Student Performance Standards (SPA-SPB) 

Please describe your systematic procedure and timeline for resolving deviations: 

Conduct regular item analysis on formative and summative assessments, every 3 weeks. Teachers 
and Data Coach will be responsible to monitor this timeline.  

* Progress Monitoring

* Periodic walk-throughs throughout the day and/or week. Focus on complete implementation of
PBE strategies and differentiated instruction. 

* Performance Growth Targets. Use NWEA/Interim Data to track progress, Improvement indicator
projected for Spring 2026.

Define the specific area requiring improvement and identify the underlying reasons 
contributing to the accreditation status of advice or deficiency through data and root cause 
analysis: 

Areas of focus: 1.  Data-Driven Instruction  2.  Proficiency Based Education (PBE)  3.  Tiered Support 
and Interventions  4.  Professional Learning Community (PLC)  5.  Student Ownership and Feedback  
6. Family Engagement.

Root causes include gaps in conceptual understanding, Mis-alignment between assessment items 
and proficiency targets, lack of actionable formative feedback, and inconsistency in instructional 
practices. 

Outline the specific steps to address the area of improvement. (Examples: professional 
development, resource allocation for staffing or materials, collection of relevant 
evidence/data, etc.): 

Areas of focus: 1.  Data-Driven Instruction: Apply a system where teacher regularly collect, analyze 
and use data to about student learning, behaviors  and performance to make informed decisions to 
improve pedagogy.  2.  Proficiency Based Education (PBE) Align learning targets and success 
criteria with Montana content Standards. Reteaching using flexible pacing for students who do not 
meet proficiency.  3.  Tiered Support and Interventions: Interventions for non-proficient students 
based on assessments data. 4.  Professional Learning Community (PLC) Grade-level PLC's analyze 
student work and develop collaborative environment where teacher share expertise and use data to 
guide improvement. The goal is to foster a culture of continuous learning and mutual support which 
we hope will increase student learning and teacher efficacy.  5.  Student Ownership and Feedback: 



   

7 | P a g e  
 

Use student-friendly rubric and self assessment tools aligned with success criteria.  6.  Family 
Engagement: Communicate proficiency progress to families through academic updates and 
student portfolios. Community involvement in presenting a culturally responsive pedagogy. 
 
 
Identify responsible parties and deadlines for corrective action: 

The individuals responsible: 
Focus Area #1: Teachers, Data Coach and Administrator. Ongoing, with progress monitoring every 
three weeks. Identify misconceptions and adjust instruction. Improve validity and reliability of 
assessments. 
Focus Area #2: Teachers, August 2025, Bi-weekly,  Clear path for student Mastery. or exceed 
proficiency. 
Focus Area #3:  Title I resource staff, September 2025, Implement targeted interventions for non-
proficient students based on assessment data. Increase student growth. 
Focus Area #4: Instructional leader, Monthly meetings, (Aug.- May), Build collective teacher 
efficacy. Focus Area # 5: Student Ownership and Feedback: All teachers will be responsible, 
beginning October 2025, Increase student engagement and responsibility. 
Focus Area #6: Counselor with collaboration with teachers, the will be done quarterly,  Families are 
informed and involved in student progress or lack of it. 
Resources Needed: Continuous access to AI Tools for items analysis, Ongoing professional 
development on PBE, Time for PLC collaboration, 
Intervention materials and staff training for effective implementation of district curriculum. 
Curriculum Coordinator/Principal monitor effective use of curriculum and adequate supply. 
Professional development will aligned with the improvement plan. 
 
 
Describe how progress will be tracked and monitored: 

-Progress Monitoring: Track Benchmark scores and classroom assessment data quarterly. 

-Walkthrough observations: Focused on implementation of PBE strategies and differentiated 
instruction. 

-Performance growth targets: Use NWEA/Interim data to track improvement by Spring 2026 

Conclusion: This corrective plan aims to turn around the deficiency status in Grades 7-8 and 
elevate Grades 9-12 beyond Advice status through systematic use of item analysis and sustainable 
PBE practices with collaboration and commitment of staff and leadership, we believe all students 
can succeed. 

Provided evidence that the local board of trustees has approved this plan:  

YES 

 



   

8 | P a g e  
 

 



Corrective Action Plan for Lame Deer High School (Grades 7-12) 
 

Presented by:  

Based on: Item Analysis Results and PBE Seminar Insights (Lockwood) 

 
I. Rationale 

Recent school performance data shows: 

• Grades 7 and 8: Deficient Status 

• Grades 9-12: Advice Status 

Root causes include: 

• Gaps in conceptual understanding 

• Misalignment between assessment items and proficiency targets 

• Lack of actionable formative feedback 

• Inconsistency in instructional practices 

 
II. Goals 

1. Improve student achievement by addressing deficiencies in content mastery. 

2. Enhance instructional alignment using Item Analysis. 

3. Implement Proficiency-Based Education (PBE) to ensure mastery learning. 

4. Establish teacher collaboration to strengthen data-driven instruction. 
 

III. Strategies and Action Steps 

Focus Area Action Step Responsible Timeline Expected Outcome 

1. Data-Driven 

Instruction 

Conduct regular item 

analysis on formative and 

summative assessments. 

Teachers with 

Data 

Coach/Admin 

Every 3 

weeks 

Identify 

misconceptions and 

adjust instruction 

 
Use item analysis results 

to revise or remove low-

quality test items. 

All Teachers Ongoing 

Improve validity 

and reliability of 

assessments 

2. Proficiency-

Based Education 

(PBE) 

Align learning targets and 

success criteria with 

Montana Content 

Standards. 

Teachers 
August 

2025 

Clear path for 

student mastery 

 
Re-teach using flexible 

pacing for students who 

do not meet proficiency. 

Teachers Bi-weekly 

All students reach 

or exceed 

proficiency 

3. Tiered Support 

& Interventions 

Implement targeted 

interventions for non-

proficient students based 

on assessment data. 

Title I/Resource 

Staff 

September 

2025 

Acceleration of 

student growth 

4. Professional 

Learning 

Community 

(PLC) 

Grade-level PLCs analyze 

student work and share 

best PBE practices. 

Instructional 

Leader 
Monthly 

Build collective 

teacher efficacy 



Focus Area Action Step Responsible Timeline Expected Outcome 

5. Student 

Ownership & 

Feedback 

Use student-friendly 

rubrics and self-

assessment tools aligned 

with success criteria. 

Teachers 
October 

2025 

Increase student 

engagement and 

responsibility 

6. Family 

Engagement 

Communicate proficiency 

progress to families 

through academic updates 

and student portfolios. 

Counselor, 

Teachers 
Quarterly 

Families are 

informed and 

involved 

 

• Data-Driven Instruction. Every three weeks, each teacher will administer a brief 

common formative assessment (or use items from recent classroom/unit tests) and run an 

item analysis to identify misconceptions, language/reading barriers, and skill gaps at the 

standard and success-criteria level. During a same-week data huddle (30–45 minutes), 

teachers—supported by the data coach and an administrator—will sort items into “keep, 

revise, retire,” tag the underlying standards, and decide on precise reteach moves (mini-

lessons, worked examples, error analysis, small-group instruction). Teachers will then 

revise low-performing items for validity and reliability (clarity, alignment, cognitive 

demand) and log the changes in a shared assessment tracker. The next cycle will re-check 

the revised items and compare cohorts/class periods to verify impact, with administrators 

conducting short walkthroughs focused on evidence of reteaching aligned to the data 

(e.g., success criteria posted, exemplars, practice sets matched to the error patterns). 

Expected outcome: continuously improving assessments, targeted reteaching, and steady 

growth in classroom-level proficiency.  

  

• Proficiency-Based Education (PBE). By August, teachers will unpack the Montana 

Content Standards into clear learning targets (“I can…” statements) and observable 

success criteria, then attach them to each lesson, task, and assessment item. In bi-weekly 

cycles, students not yet proficient receive flexible pacing opportunities: targeted small-

group lessons, alternative practice pathways, and additional attempts on priority 

standards, while proficient students engage in extension tasks. Each unit will include a 

proficiency scale (e.g., Emerging → Proficient → Advanced) and a folder of calibrated 

exemplars. Teachers will document reteach plans, reassessment windows, and the 

specific evidence a student must show to be marked proficient, ensuring grading 

communicates mastery rather than seat time. Administrators will monitor for consistent 

use of targets/criteria, equitable access to reassessment, and the presence of aligned tasks 

at the right depth of knowledge. Expected outcome: a transparent path to mastery where 

every student knows what proficiency looks like and how to reach it.  

  

• Tiered Support & Interventions. Beginning September, Title I and resource staff—

coordinating with classroom teachers—will use the assessment dashboard to flag students 

below proficiency on priority standards and schedule Tier 2 sessions (3–5 times per 

week, 20–30 minutes) with explicit, high-leverage routines (model → guided practice → 

independent practice with immediate feedback). Students with persistent non-response 

will receive Tier 3 intensification (smaller groups, increased dosage, or specialized 

programs), and all intervention plans will include a progress-monitoring probe at least bi-



weekly. Teachers will align core-class assignments so intervention time reinforces the 

same success criteria, and counselors will help with attendance/family coordination to 

protect intervention minutes. Each month, teams will exit or adjust students based on 

progress graphs and return them to core supports once proficiency is demonstrated. 

Expected outcome: acceleration for non-proficient students through timely, data-tied 

supports that prevent skill slippage.  

• Professional Learning Communities (PLCs). Grade-level/content PLCs will meet

monthly to study student work, moderate scoring against success criteria, and share PBE-

aligned practices that moved the needle (e.g., feedback protocols, scaffolded tasks,

reassessment structures). Each PLC will maintain a living agenda and evidence folder:

recent item analyses, reteach plans, revised items, student-work samples with

annotations, and brief reflection notes on what to scale or abandon. Instructional leaders

will facilitate a common “Plan → Do → Study → Act” cycle and ensure each meeting

ends with a clear deliverable (e.g., two revised items, one calibrated exemplar, a mini-

lesson plan). Administrators will conduct short, supportive learning walks tied to PLC

goals and report trend data (what’s being implemented consistently, what needs

coaching). Expected outcome: stronger collective efficacy and a consistent instructional

core across classrooms and grades.

• Student Ownership & Feedback. Teachers will roll out student-friendly rubrics and

checklists aligned to success criteria so learners can self-assess before submission and

during revisions. Routine structures—exit tickets labeled by success criteria, traffic-light

self-ratings, goal-setting slips, and short reflection prompts (“What error pattern did I fix

today? What’s my next step?”)—will build metacognition. Feedback will be timely,

specific, and actionable (one strength, one next step), and students will keep a simple

portfolio (paper or digital) showing growth toward proficiency with dated evidence and

teacher comments. Before any reassessment, students must complete a short “readiness”

task demonstrating they engaged with feedback (corrections, practice set, conference).

Expected outcome: higher engagement, clearer understanding of quality work, and faster

movement from “approaching” to “proficient.”

• Family Engagement. Each quarter, teachers and the counselor will send concise

progress updates that translate proficiency language into family-friendly terms, highlight

current priority standards, and point to the student’s portfolio artifacts. Families will

receive simple “how to help at home” guides tied to current success criteria (sample

questions, vocabulary, quick practice ideas) and invitations to brief showcase events

(virtual or in-person) where students explain their learning targets and growth evidence.

For students in intervention, families will get a personalized plan outlining the focus skill,

schedule, and how progress will be monitored, with a mid-cycle check-in.

Communication will be two-way: provide channels for questions (office hours, call times,

or messaging platform) and track contact attempts to ensure no family is missed.

Expected outcome: informed, supportive families who understand proficiency progress

and partner with the school to sustain gains.



IV. Monitoring and Evaluation 

• Progress Monitoring: Track benchmark scores and classroom assessment data quarterly. 

• Walkthrough Observations: Focused on implementation of PBE strategies and 

differentiated instruction. 

• Performance Growth Targets: Use NWEA/Interim Data to track improvement by 

Spring 2026. 
 

V. Resources Needed 

• Continued access to AI tools for item analysis 

• Ongoing professional development on PBE 

• Time for PLC collaboration 

• Intervention materials and trained staff 
VI. Conclusion 

This corrective plan aims to turn around the Deficient Status in Grades 7-8 and elevate Grades 9-

12 beyond Advice Status through systematic use of item analysis and sustainable PBE practices. 

With collaboration and commitment, all students can succeed. 



   

9 | P a g e  
 

Lustre Christian High – Lustre Christian HS: Corrective Plan 
 

The reason the school is in a corrective plan:  

Assurance Standards (Rubrics A-R) & Student Performance Standards (SPC) 

 

Please describe your systematic procedure and timeline for resolving deviations: 

See Attached 
 
 
Define the specific area requiring improvement and identify the underlying reasons 
contributing to the accreditation status of advice or deficiency through data and root cause 
analysis: 

See Attached 
 
 
Outline the specific steps to address the area of improvement. (Examples: professional 
development, resource allocation for staffing or materials, collection of relevant 
evidence/data, etc.): 

See Attached 
 
 
 
Identify responsible parties and deadlines for corrective action: 

See Attached 
 
 
Describe how progress will be tracked and monitored: 

See Attached 
 

Provided evidence that the local board of trustees has approved this plan:  

YES 

 

 



Accreditation Report  Response Lustre Christian School 

Describe your Systematic Procedure & Timeline for Deviations 

Most of the items found lacking in the Accreditation Status Report have consistently been 
implemented, followed and are in board policy. The lack of state reporting is where the 
deviations primarily occur.  Administrative turnover is the primary source of the lack of reporting.  
The Lustre School Board is currently overseeing administration to ensure state reporting is 
timely and complete.  Preparation and data collection to create the ISAP is also the 
responsibility of the administrator. The board is responsible for survey development and 
administrative oversight. Much is to be done, with time as the main obstacle, the goal is to 
complete the ISAP during the 25-26 school year and have full implementation in place for the 
26-27 school year.  

District Standard B: Procedures of Accreditation Standards 

Collaborative planning of professional development between Administration and all Teachers 
allowing opportunities for feedback and reflection, both individually and as a whole, develop 
further experience in subject content, teaching strategies, and uses of technologies. During daily 
staff meetings individual students’ needs are evaluated through problem solving, to review 
academic needs of schoolwide standards, MBI practices, and addressing safety. Each fall 
orientation with staff is held. The instruction of MBI initiatives, CPR/1st aid training and a review 
of the existing emergency plan of the school ensues. Together all read the staff and student 
handbooks. In September the IEFA initial training is completed by all new staff. A schoolwide 
expectation of behavior and academics that build our culture is the topic of the staff PIR days 
held in early fall. The review of district graduates’ educational goals outlined in the district 
integrated strategic action plan B6, is being reviewed for the 30 students in the High School with 
staff and administration.  

As part of professional development teachers follow scope and sequence of curriculum, of 
which each class level has in curriculum material B 4g. Teachers are accountable for district 
graduate educational goals outlined in the district Integrated Strategic Action plan through 
ongoing and sustained weekly collected individual teacher lessons plans. Conformation of 
subject content and teaching strategies are done through administration’s daily classroom 
walk-throughs. B 6 There will be a review of district graduate educational goals outlined in the 
district integrated strategic action plan. B 3,6  

Lustre uses state approved academic achievement testing including PSAT for all juniors, SAT 
for all seniors and the ASVAB is available to all students.  All score results are shared with 
parents, staff and administration to use to improve curriculum.  This is in addition to the current, 
in class unit tests of all subject areas. The board will be discussing switching to the ACT’s next 
year as a primary academic assessment.  B4d  These scores are used as part of the 
development of the graduate profile. The graduate profile has been included in the school 



mission statement and recently reviewed by the board with current input. See attachment. B 3, 
4a, 4b, 4c, 4e, 5, 6 

  

District Standard H Family and Community Engagement 

The board implements a strong family and community engagement plan. This is done by 
holding School Clean-up Day in Aug. prior to school, where the majority of the community joins 
in to repair, clean, and paint the school and dorm facilities, under board supervision. Students 
serve the local community at least one service day per year. This is chosen by the Senior 
students and approved by the board. These projects serve the community H 1b, d, f   

The school opening program, organized by the chairman of the board and administration, is 
held at the beginning of each year, inviting the community to meet and engage with all students. 
New teachers introduce themselves. Each student and staff member has a card with their 
picture, name and grade or position, which is given to a community member. The person 
receiving or asking for the card agrees to pray for that person throughout the year. 

 A Foundation Committee meeting is held each Oct. for fundraising for the school, including an 
annual fundraising dinner. At this event the investments funds are reviewed, and accountability 
of financial reports are reviewed. The board selects the Schmeckfest Committee, to head the 
annual March Schmeckfest meal and auction that includes almost every community member. 
Each community member is contacted personally and given an opportunity to work at the event 
or to prepare for the event.  Almost everyone, without exception, participates because the 
school is the focus and mission of the community. H 1b, d  

A shared responsibility of learning is seen with community, family and school staff engaging in 
pep band, Harvest Festival, Schmeckfest, JR/SR play and coaching. The specialty content 
conducted by community members with vocational training include Tech, Art, Drama, and 
Library, all with administration oversight. H 1c The Tumbleweed monthly newsletter, college 
fairs, and the two days of college visits per student are other ways the community is connected 
with Lustre Christian High.  H 1d 

Another organization, the Alumni Association decides where to focus fundraising monies. This 
organization works to assist the school when needed for special projects. H 1b The Board of 
Trustees has created and approves annually the dorm handbook and policies. They appoint a 
dorm committee of local citizens to oversee dorm activities and provide events for dorm student 
residents.  The dorm committee chair reports to the Board monthly. Residential discipline of 
students is handled by the dorm parents with guidance from the dorm committee as issues 
arise. H 1b,d 

Of the 30 students in the High School, 20 are currently local residents. Of the 20 local students 
17 have or have had  parents serve on the Lustre Christian High School Board.  Each board 
member oversees a particular area of the school facility or public relations. H 1b,d  Effective 
engagement practices linked to relational, developmental, collaborative, and interactive learning 



include: written community surveys, meetings, verbal surveys at parent teacher conferences, 
meeting attendance via Zoom and parent/teacher conferences. The community and past 
graduates are involved as speakers for the weekly chapels. H 1b 

District Standard J Basic HS Program 

Twenty credits are required for graduation. MT Small School Alliance (MSSA) reviews materials 
for IEFA, of which teachers use, or use lessons from the State of MT IEFA each quarter. These 
are documented and provided to the administration.  J 1  Labs are integrated in Science, both 
written and performed. In Social Studies students read historical documents and study 
Government legislation and processes. Written stories accompany physical art, and in 
technology all of the above are included. J 2 All content required is offered on site, except world 
languages, which are available through Ignitia, MSUB or Montana Digital Academy. J3 

District Standard M Curriculum 

Lustre School District has not reported, but does belong to MT Small School Alliance (MSSA) 
and follows the curriculum review schedule every five years in each content area. Administration 
and staff will follow the MSSA schedule of review for curriculum content & standards for each 
subject, with assistance of MSSA, and meet with MSSA personnel to assure curriculum aligns 
with standards. 

The counselor and librarian requirements are completed through MSSA training. Assistance 
with professional development is also done through MSSA. M 1,4c MSSA reviews materials for 
IEFA, to teach each quarter, which are documented and provided to the administration.  4d In 
accordance with policy 325.1 a board member, counselor, administrator make up the 
Professional Development Committee. This committee assigns staff members to attend library 
and counselor requirements at the MSSA August training. M 1 

District Standard N Curriculum and Assessments 

Lustre administers PSAT and SAT state approved academic testing to high school juniors and 
seniors respectively. The ASVAB is also available for students   All score results are shared with 
parents, staff and administration to improve curriculum. The ASVAB is available for students, but 
not required. Current class unit tests are also used to inform teachers and parents of student 
progress. N 5a, b The annual composite data is used to assess the graduate profile, as 
necessary. 

District Standard O Professional Development 

Professional development has been scheduled, but not reported to the state. Every year the 
School Board assigns 7.5 PIR days on the upcoming school year calendar which is created in 
March. The administration determines the content of those learning days in alignment by ARM  
standards. Professional development is based on student needs and teacher input. In addition 
to PIR days, professional development may be assigned to teachers from the Learning Hub or 
MT Small School Alliance training, or for individual improvement. During MEA in mid-October, 



teachers attend conferences relevant to their subject areas. Ongoing communications with the 
board chair and administration regarding professional development occur.  O-1 e, i 

As part of professional development teachers follow scope and sequence of curriculum and are 
accountable for district graduate educational goals outlined in the district integrated strategic 
action plan. Teachers turn in weekly lesson plans. Admin classroom walk-throughs, daily, 
ensures annual completion of curriculum with student engagement and success. O1- a,d, e,g, i 
The Board of Trustees will have monthly ongoing accountability reports from admin as well as a 
calendar of state requirements to ensure meeting school benchmarks in student academics, 
school climate and staff development. O-1i       

Administrative coaching provides support for individual staff development in subject content, 
teaching strategies, and uses of technologies by ongoing and sustained daily classroom 
walkthroughs. Training supports individual teacher goals, annual school mission statement, 
student individual needs and selection of professional development from MEA and MBI training. 
Opportunities are provided in daily staff meetings for feedback and reflection. O1 a,b, c,d, g,h, i, 
k,m  

Professional development requires annual training in emergency plans.  During the first four 
weeks of school practice emergency exit drills, each week. The remainder of the year four more 
emergency drills, fire, lockdown or intruder, are held.  Suicide prevention training has not been 
implemented, but will now become part of the Spring PIR, training.  O 1 b, c, d, f,g 

District Standard P Mentorship and Induction 

Adoption of mentor training will be implemented by utilizing MSSA to assist mentor training. 
Training for mentors can also be given from the Teacher Hub or professional organizations in 
the content areas taught, MEA convention. Each new staff member has a veteran teacher 
mentoring them in practices maintaining school climate, initial learning and school procedures. 
P 1 b,c,d,e 2 a,b,d,e    

District Standard Q Evaluation 

During August PIR meetings, discussion of mission statements, MBI implementation and staff 
evaluations occur to match goals with classroom practices expectation.  Both staff and 
administration match observation expectations with school goals. In November, discussions 
include pre-evaluation meetings and the first classroom observation of teachers.  After the first 

observations teachers and administration discuss evaluations and set additional goals. The 
second evaluation timeline follows the format of the first, starting and ending in January.  The 
administration will provide the board with recommendations for rehire or termination of staff.  
The board will offer contracts to teachers in March.  Q 1,2,3 

District Standard R School Climate 

MBI is the tool used to foster a positive school climate in the classroom. Lustre Christian High 
also has an annual Bible verse which focuses staff and students on a character quality that 



promotes both individual and schoolwide growth. This is also reflected in the discipline policy, in 
the student handbook. The small size of the school, along with the small student to teacher 
ratio, 5:1, creates a homey and close-knit school. R1d  The strong community involvement 
within the school, along with communication, maintains a safe and encouraging learning 
climate. 

The safety plan updated in 2024-25 is reviewed annually by the school board and 
administration. School staff review and practice emergency safety drills with students throughout 
the year. Staff review the bullying and hazing policies annually. R 1 a,d,e,g,h,i     

Specific areas to improve and Identify underlying reasons & problems 

Communication from outgoing Board Chairman to incoming Board Chairman must address 
administrator oversight and board monthly duties. Communication from outgoing Administrator 
to incoming Administrator must be written with a copy to the chairman of Board of Trustees 
assuring follow-up will occur. A system of checks to ensure state documents are being filed will 
be implemented. 

Resolution for certification for Art and Tech are in place and overseen by administration. 
Included in the addendum is a list of entities through which staff is pursued. The strategic plan is 
being created and will be completed by February.  Finally,  professional developement for 
suicide prevention has not been consistently implemented, but will become a annual training 
practice in the Fall PIR training, as part of the long term PIR development plan  board approves 
each March.  

As members of the MSSA and will follow review standards for curriculum on their five year 
schedule.   

Outline steps to address improvement areas 

The school board, administration, staff and community have begun to compile documents to 
build the Integrated Strategic Action Plan. The goal is to have the Strategic Action Plan 
completed by the end of the 25-26 school year and fully implemented in the 26-27 school year. 

Meetings,  school benchmarks in student academic school climate, and staff development will 
be part of the spring professional development. Two hours of suicide prevention training in 
professional development will be provided in the fall.  

Administrative procedures will be formally, written by month, to be passed from outgoing to 
incoming new administration. The Lustre School Board will have a list of administrator 
responsibilities by month to ensure the LCHS Administrator is staying current with state 
reporting requirements.  This will be the responsibility of the Board Chairman, the Board of 
Trustees and the building administrator. 



Part time positions of Art and Technology teachers will be advertised and continued searching 
will occur. Foreign language is available on-line and needs to be listed on class registration 
form.  

The Strategic Plan is incomplete and currently being compiled.  

Responsible parties and deadlines for corrective action 

Most of the items found lacking in the Accreditation Status Report have consistently been 
implemented, followed and are in board policy.  The issue was failure to complete state 
reporting and the development of the Integrated Strategic Plan.  The current Administrator and 
the Board chair will have a monthly duties list for incoming administration. The Board will also 
have the list in their policy books. Administration will inform the school board of state reporting 
changes as they occur. The administrative duties list will be completed by June of 2026. 

The Administrator will be in charge of scheduling suicide prevention professional development 
training for the fall of 2026. Professional development is board approved for the following school 
year in March with the school calendar.  

The Administrator will include in the student class registration form for foreign languages offered 
by December 2025. Inclusion of Home Language Form will occur by January 2026 with 
application packets, implemented by the school secretary. Foreign Language classes are 
offered to all students by enrollment with Ignitia or Montana Digital Academy or at MSUB duel 
credits.  

Administration and Board have surveyed parents in September to obtain initial data Integrated 
Strategic Action Plan. The results of the surveys were recorded and used to draft the current 
Graduate Profile. Verification with a more comprehensive survey that will include all sections of 
the school community, will be completed by December 2025.  This more completed survey was 
provided to the board in  October 2025 by the administrator. At the November meeting board will 
provide additions or corrections to the comprehensive survey.  This survey will be given each fall 
to assess effectiveness and address needed improvements the following year. 

We will initially identify ELL students with the MT Home Language Survey. All students 
registering for LCHS will be given the MT Home Language Survey form with their application 
each spring.  The school secretary will include the survey as one of the requirements before 
forwarding the completed application to the administrator. The principal will verify and assign the 
appropriate help for ELL students. ELL students will be provided with language assistance, as 
needed, by administrator and staff.  

The procedure to have a 3-hour training class for all incoming Substitute teachers, in 
conjunction with Lustre Elementary, will be implemented.  In the 25-26 school year all 
substitutes will attend substitute training scheduled by the administrator. 



The Integrated Strategic Action Plan will be completed in May of 2026, filed with OPI and 
revised every three years, as led by the Board and administration. 

Climate measuring tools will be implemented and a timeline established for it to become 
procedure. Tools will be determined by the administrator and board approved. This will be 
implemented at the beginning of the 26-27 school year.  

The incoming administrator will attend NEMASS monthly meetings, in person or on-line. 

 

Progressed tracked and monitored 

A list of board responsibilities, by month, will be created and passed from retiring Board 
Chairman to incoming Board Chair. 

Board members will receive the month-by-month administrator responsibilities from the  
NEMASS (North East Montana Association of School Superintendents) organization. The Board 
Chairman  then has a document to oversee administrator’s completion of state reports and 
responsibilities. The deadlines and corrective actions listed will be checked by the Board 
Chairman at the board meetings. 

 

 

 

School Assurances Standards 
Lustre Christian High School 

 

School Assurance Standard E Duties of Administration 

Staff have been fingerprinted for licensure, the county school Superintendent is the 
Superintendent of record for Lustre Christian High School through the state and county. We will 
provide a supervising teacher to oversee the instructing of two periods of art class and tech.  
E1a  The training provided by MSSA training for Counselor and Librarian is accompanied by the 
availability of an itinerant Counselor from a neighboring community who comes upon request.  
E3  Substitute teachers will receive 3 hours of inservice training on school policies and 
procedures in partnership with Lustre  Elementary district. E3  

School Assurance Standard I Basic Program Offerings High School 



Lustre meets the 20 units required for graduation, and will utilize the Ignitia, MSUB, MT Digital 
Academy on-line services to offer foreign language to students. Currently, certified staff oversee 
Art and Tech teachers for two periods. These part time partial year positions will be advertised 
each spring and summer in various places.  

 



LCHS  October 9, 2025 School Board Meeting 

● Report progress on OPI Correction Plan and discussion on ARM deficiencies

● Review - Preliminary Parent Survey

● Review - Mission Statement

● Review and Align - Graduate Profile with Mission Statement

● Present sample survey for board preview

● Schedule special October Meeting for Approval of Final Survey in these

categories:

o Parents

o Employees

o Students

o Graduates

o Community

Provide copies of …

● Sample Survey

● Mission Statement

● Profile Goals

● Accreditation Status Report



Lustre Christian High School     OFFICIAL COPY:    Board Chair________________ 

Board Meeting Minutes         1/2/2024              Secretary__________________ 

October 9th, 2025 @ 7:00 PM 

Members Present:  Justyn Klatt, Jeff Damboise, Clayton Zerbe, Darin Pankratz, Jared Fast, Mike 
Hilkemann, Wes Young 

Members Absent: Curt Neufeld 

Devotions and Prayer:  Darin Pankratz 

Psalm 23  

Breakdown of the Passage by Ann Graham Lotts showing a practical application 

of the passage. 

Prayer Requests:   Sarel (Stem Cell transplant is on 10/10/25), 

Minutes of Previous Meeting: 

Jared MAM to approve the minutes of the last regular meeting. 

Mike Seconded   Motion Passed 

Agenda:    

Mike MAM to approve the agenda as presented 

Curt Seconded   Motion Passed 

Old Business:   

1. Finances and Bills - Lynn Unrau

• Presentation of financial statements and bills.

• Worked on preparing the budget.

Curt MAM to approve the financial report & pay the bills. 

Jared Seconded   Motion passed. 

2. Administrators Report – Wes Young

• First set of Teacher Evaluations will happen in November

• Parent Teachers conferences are complete

• Working on OPI accreditation items

o Fingerprinting is complete

• One potential student to Interview tomorrow



• 3 Girls for Congos (Siblings) 

3. Building -Curt 

• Bathroom Maintenance Completed 

• Conference Room Bridge Installed 

• Possible Upstairs AC Units 

o Donor has approached the school with a specifc donation 

o Start looking into the possible project 

 

4. Housing-Mike 

• Small House Repairs complete 

5. Yard-Jerry  

• Boiler has been started 

• Roof Materials are onsite. Work day to be planned at a later date. 

 

6. Finance-Clayton Zerbe 

• Commercial Insurance Umbrella 

o Church Mutual Dropped LCHS. Working with Wolfe Daniels on quotes. 

• Grant submitted to the Theo & Alice Beck Foundation in the following areas: 

o Grants Awarded 

• ACE Scholarship-Obtained access to all accounts. Working on Nikki with final 

paperwork.  

• Working on another AG West Grant-Computer for Treasurer 

• Donor approached on bus purchase-Donor is looking into options and will 

present to Board at a later date, 

• VB Coach Mary Zerbe is going through VB Jersey inventory.  

o Putting together a list to see if LGS would like the first option on purchasing 

the best set. 

o Remainder of jersey’s, possibly look at selling as a fundraiser for the VB 

Program. 

• Wes Young-Credit Card Limit Approval- Board approves credit card limit to be 

the same level that was used for Bob Burkahrt last year. 

• Technology agreement reviewed by Sarel and Marshall.  

o LCHS office will distribute to parents and students for signatures. 

7. Dorm – Dorm Committee Report submitted by Wes and Joy Young 

• New Dorm Committee Members are Micheal and Kaitlyn Brown are  

• Things are running smoothly. 

• Possibility of new students 

 

 



8. Vehicle and Maintenance- Darin

• No Report

9. Technology– Jeff

• No Report

10. Promotion-Justyn

• October Newsletter is going to be sent out this week.

11. Security-Jeff

• Concealed Weapons Training completed on 9/29-10/2/25 for security team

members.

New Business: 

1. Email & Text Message Business Reviewed

• NONE

2. Student at 7:50 PM

• Student committed policy violations under Section 755.

• Student met with Board to address issues.

3. LCHS Website Update-Marshal Mullet 8 PM

• Gave Presentation on update on Website upgrade’s

• Will email the proposed website changes to the Board for their review and

comments.

4. Sale of Music Equipment

• Mr. Ayuno went through all of the musical instruments and has come up with

a list of instruments that LCHS could possibly sell due to the excess number

of instruments.

• See email with list of proposed instruments for sale.

• He would like to purchase two musical instruments for the music

department.

• Board tabled the proposed purchase of these items at this time.

• Need Board Approval to authorize the sale of additional musical instruments.

Curt MAM to approve the sale of the music instruments that are listed for sale. 

Mike Second. Motion Approved. 

5. Laptops Donated

• A donor approached to the school about purchasing additional laptops for

the school.



• Donation has been made and the laptops have been purchased for the 

school. 

 

6. Music Teacher Vehicle Donated. 

• A donor has approached the school about donating a vehicle to the school 

for Mr. Ayuno teacher. 

• Board recommends that the title be signed and notarized by the music 

teacher. LCHS will hold the title for a period of time.  

• After the agreed period of time, title will be turned over to Mr. Ayon. 

• Music Teacher will be responsible to for all operating costs of the car. 

 

7. MEA Vehicle Request/MB Church Vehicle Request. 

• Lustre MB Church youth group is requesting the use of one of the 15 

passenger vans for a youth trip on 11/21-23/2025. 

 

Curt MAM to approve the usage of one of the 15 passenger vans to the 

Lustre MB Youth group. 

Jeff Seconded   Motion Passed 

 

• Mr. Ayuno asked if there as the possibility of using a school vehicle to attend 

MEA Conference in Great Falls. Board suggested he ride with the Cumpios as 

they were planning an outing. Mr. Young will discuss with Mr. Ayuno. 

 

8. Winterization of Housing and Vehicles 

• With two houses empty, suggestion on winterizing the house. 

• Mike Hilekmann to work on winterizing housing in the next several weeks. 

 

9. Potential Tabor College Partnership 

• Curt and Lisa Neufeld had a meeting with the Tabor College President and his 

wife to discuss some ideas for partnership. 

• Need to keep pursuing a relationship with Tabor College for potential teaching 

applicants and student teachers. 

• Recommendation for a future planning meeting with the LCHS Board. 

 

10. International Students 

• Need to look at the possibility of hiring a international student recruiter to help 

with students. 

• Will need to start a search to try and find a possible recruiting agent. 

 

 



11. Dual Enrollment 

• Tabor College offers dual enrollment classes. 

• Need to look into the possibility of partnering with them for dual enrollment 

classes. 

12. Policy update and Zoom MTG with Elizabeth Kelva (10/13 @ 6:30) 

• Bring Questions. 

13. OPI Accreditation-Mr. Young 

• Need to create surveys 

• Profile and professional survey Board to Review 

• Need to work to have this done for the OPI review 

• Mr. Young and Board will keep working on what items are needed. 

 

Curt MAM to adjourn. 

Mike Seconded Motion Passed  

 

Closed in Prayer 

Next Regular Meeting – Tuesday November 4th, 2025 @7PM  

Devotions - Jerry  Refreshments- Darin 

 



ITEM 11 

UPDATE AND DISCUSSION ON THE 
INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS FOR 

ACCREDITATION 

Dr. Julie Murgel 
Tyler Capece 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Intensive Assistance Process 

Presenter Julie Murgel       Tyler Capece   

Position Title Chief Program Officer 
Assistant Deputy Superintendent 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview The purpose is to provide an update on the 
intensive assistance task force schedule and work 
to date. 

Requested Decision(s) Informational Item 

Related Issue(s) 10.55.602(21), 10.55.605(8)(9) 

Recommendation(s) None 



Rigorous Action/Intensive Assistance Task 

Force Membership 

Potential task force members were sent a 

letter the week of October 20th, 2025. 

The task force includes members with 
specific expertise, drawing on individuals 
from within Montana and from organizations 
with deep school improvement experience.  

Member Name Title/Role on Task 
Force 

Task Force Role Organization/District 

Mandi Smoker 
Broaddus 

Task Force Facilitator Leadership & 
Institutional  

Education Northwest 

McCall Flynn Board of Public 
Education 
Representative 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Executive Director 
Board of Public 
Education 

Gerald Chouinard District Leadership Leadership & 
Institutional  

Superintendent 
Hot Springs School 
District 

Marcy Cobell District Leadership Leadership & 
Institutional 

Superintendent 
Heart Butte School 
District  

Sara Tempel Instructional 
Representative- 
Special Education 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Bear Paw Special Ed 
Cooperative 

Caitlin Jensen Instructional 
Representative- Early 
Literacy 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Executive Director 
Zero to Five Montana 

Anne Penn Cox Instructional Leadership & Director of Special 



 
  

Representative- Early 
Literacy 

Institutional  Services 
Livingston School 
District 

Dr. Allison Wilson Instructional 
Representative- Early 
Literacy 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Early Childhood 
Education 
Department Director 
University of 
Montana  

Dr. Lynne Rider Instructional 
Representative- Math 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Math Instructor 
Kalispell Middle 
School 

Gary Stevenson Instructional 
Representative- CTAE 

Leadership & 
Institutional  

Principal  
Lodge Grass High 
School 

Burt Medicine Bull Tribal Education 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Chief Dull Knife 
College 

Robert Hall Tribal Education 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Browning School 
District 

Whitney Top Sky Tribal Education 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Box Elder Public 
Schools 

Jeremy MacDonald Tribal Education 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Stone Child College 

Alicia Doney Family/Student 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Tribal Youth Outreach 
Department of Labor 
and Industry 

Dawn Bishop-Moore Family/Student 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Indian Impact 
Schools of Montana 

Craig Crawford  Business 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Training Director 
Montana Contractors 

 
 

 



 
  

Association 

Jennifer Cronk Business 
Representative 

Community & 
Stakeholder 

Workforce & Special 
Initiatives Director 
Kalispell Chamber of 
Commerce 

Rob Watson Support Partner Specialization Executive Director 
School 
Administrators of 
Montana 

Shelley Turner Support Partner Specialization Executive Director 
Montana Association 
of School Business 
Officials 

Jordann Lankford 
Forester 

Support 
Partner/Tribal 
Education 
Representative 

Specialization/ 
Community & 
Stakeholder 

Chairwoman 
Montana Advisory 
Council on Indian 
Education 

Calli Rushe- 
Nicholson 

Support 
Partner/Tribal 
Education 
Representative 

Specialization/ 
Community & 
Stakeholder 

Montana Advisory 
Council on Indian 
Education 

Norma Bixby Support Partner Specialization Montana Advisory 
Council on Indian 
Education 

Crystal Hickman Mental/Behavioral 
Health Specialist 

Specialization Tribal Student 
Achievement 
Specialist 
Office of Public 
Instruction 

Tammy Tolleson Knee Mental/Behavioral Specialization School Support 

 
 

 



 
  

Health Specialist Liaison  
Montana Safe 
Schools Center 

Dr. Julie Murgel OPI Staff  Chief Program Officer 

Tyler Capece OPI Staff  Assistant Deputy 
Superintendent 

Krystal Smith OPI Staff  Opportunities & 
Innovative Learning 
Senior Manager 

Crystal Andrews OPI Staff  School & Educator 
Effectiveness Senior 
Manager 

Dr. Brooke 
Beaverheart Gondara 

OPI Staff  Indian Education 
Director 

Lindsay Mahoney OPI Staff  Comprehensive 
School Improvement 
Director  

 

 
 

 



RIGOROUS ACTION/INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE
TASK FORCE

NOVEMBER-
DECEMBER 2025

MEETING SCHEDULE

WEDNESDAY,
NOVEMBER
12TH

4- 5 PM

MONDAY,
NOVEMBER
17TH

4- 5:30 PM

INTRODUCTION

A virtual session that will welcome Task Force members,
outline the purpose and outcomes of the work, and ground
everyone in the shared “why” behind this project.

A virtual session that will orient Task Force members to
Montana’s Accreditation & Accountability systems, providing
key background and context for the work ahead.

TECHNICAL
OVERVIEW

THURSDAY,
DECEMBER
4TH

4- 5 PM

CAPACITY BUILDING
WORKSHOP

TUESDAY, DECEMBER
9TH

10 AM- 4 PM

AND

WEDNESDAY,
DECEMBER 10TH
8 AM- 2 PM

TWO- DAY IN
PERSON MEETING

THURSDAY,
DECEMBER
18TH

4-5 PM

CLOSING

Contact: Tyler Capece, OPI Assistant Deputy
Superintendent, tyler.capece@mt.gov

A virtual session to prepare for the in-person work session.
Members will also review key findings and begin organizing
recommendation themes.

This two day, in person convening will bring Task Force members
together to engage in collaborative dialogue, reviewing emerging
recommendations, and build consensus toward the final plan.
Lunch will be provided both days- please let us know of any food
allergies.

This final closing virtual session Task Force members will
review and share feedback on the draft recommendation
before the plan is finalized.



Thursday, November 20, 2025 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION TOURS 
WITH LEGISLATIVE EDUCATION INTERIM 

COMMITTEE 

9:00 AM 

  SCHOOL SAFETY VISIT AND TOUR 
Hellgate Elementary School, Missoula, MT 

10:15 AM 

TEACH ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL TOUR 
Franklin Elementary, Missoula, MT 

11:20 AM 

SPECIAL EDUCATION VISIT AND TOUR 
Rattlesnake Elementary School, Missoula, MT 



***************RECONVENE AT 1:15 PM***************

CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Statement of Public Participation
D. Welcome Visitors



 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND
LEGISLATIVE EDUCATION INTERIM

COMMITTEE JOINT MEETING – (Items 12-18) 

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 12 

PRESENTATION ON SAFE 
SCHOOL CENTER 

SURVEY 

Nancy Berg 
Tina Eblen 



ITEM 13 

DISCUSSION ON TEACHER AND 
PRINCIPAL PREPARATION AND 

EDUCATOR PIPELINE CHALLENGES 

Dr. Dan Lee, University of Montana 
Dr. Tricia Seifert, Montana State University 
Dr. Jodi Carlson, Rocky Mountain College 



*************2:30 PM*************

TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING GRANT 
OBSERVATION 

SENTINEL HIGH SCHOOL 



ITEM 14 

FUTURE READY UPDATE 

Superintendent Susie Hedalen 



ITEM 15 

SCHOOL FUNDING INTERIM 
COMMISSION UPDATE 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
Representative Lee Deming 

Senator Sara Novak 
Representative Melissa Romano 

Senator Sue Vinton 



ITEM 16 

INFORMATION ON MONTANA ALIGNED 
TO STANDARDS THROUGH-YEAR (MAST) 

AND REVIEW OF STATEWIDE 
PROFICIENCY SCORES 

Cedar Rose 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Overview of MAST and Review of Statewide 
Proficiency Data 

Presenter Cedar Rose 

Position Title Assessment Director 

Overview How MAST works, benefits for students and 
families, data reporting with sample reports, and 
strengthening the MAST system, as well as a 
review of the state-wide proficiency data. 

Requested Decision(s) Information Item 

Related Issue(s) N/A 

Recommendation(s) N/A 



 The Montana Aligned to Standards Through-Year (MAST) Assessment represents
an approach to statewide testing that supports learning throughout the year
rather than providing data after the school year is over. MAST provides multiple
opportunities for students to demonstrate what they know and can do, giving
educators and families timely information that can be used to support learning
right away.

Developed in partnership with Montana educators, MAST reflects the state’s
commitment to assessments that are useful, aligned to standards, and designed
to serve all students.

OVERVIEW

Montana Aligned to Standards Through-Year (MAST) 
Connecting Instruction, Students, and Families Through Meaningful Data

HOW MAST WORKS
MAST includes a series of short, standards-aligned assessments (testlets)
administered several times during the school year. Each testlet measures
student understanding of the knowledge and skills outlined in Montana’s
content standards as close as possible to when instruction is provided. This
design allows educators, schools, and families to see a clear picture of student
performance as it unfolds across the year. The result is a system that provides
actionable, high-quality data while preserving valuable instructional time.

1



BENEFITS FOR STUDENTS,
EDUCATORS, AND FAMILIES

Continuous
Insight into
Learning

MAST provides a visible and ongoing analysis of student
performance on grade-level standards. Teachers can monitor
performance throughout the year, identify areas of strength,
and adjust instruction as needed. This helps ensure every
student has the opportunity to meet grade-level expectations. 

Serving All
Students

Every student participates in MAST, including students
receiving special education services, with the exception
of students for the alternate assessment. This ensures
consistency across schools and districts and maintains
high expectations for all learners.

Strengthening 
Family 
Engagement

Through the secure Parent Portal, families have direct
access to their child’s results as they become available
throughout the year. This transparency builds trust and
empowers parents to stay informed and engaged in their
child’s education. Instead of waiting for a single report,
parents can track progress, celebrate growth, and
partner with teachers to support learning in real time.

Efficient Use
of Time and
Resources

By integrating shorter assessments throughout the year,
MAST reduces the need for separate local benchmark
tests and minimizes instructional disruption. Schools gain
efficiency by using one statewide system that supports
both instructional decision-making and state
accountability requirements.

Montana
Educator
Engagement

Montana educators are involved at every step of MAST’s
development, from item writing and review to data
interpretation and professional learning. Their input
ensures that the system reflects the needs, priorities, and
values of Montana classrooms. MAST is truly a Montana-
designed solution for Montana students. 2



MAST provides a comprehensive suite of reports designed to give educators,
administrators, and families timely, useful information at every level, from
individual students to entire districts. 

DATA REPORTING 

Testlet Reports Progress Reports Through-Year
Reports

Student Testlet 
Available weekly

Following Thursday
after assessment

Shared in Kite Parent
Portal with connected
parents/guardians.

Student Performance
Task 

Hand scored, available
two weeks after the
close of Window 2

Student Progress 
Available at the
end of Windows
1 and 2

Student TY
2024-2025
available October
16, 2025
2025-2026
available TBD

Classroom Testlet 
CSV & PDF Reports
Available  and updated
weekly

Classroom
Progress 

Available at the
end of Windows
1 and 2

Classroom TY
2024-2025
available October
16, 2025
2025-2026
available TBD

School Testlet 
CSV & PDF Reports
Available after each
window

School Progress 
Available at the
end of Windows
1 and 2

School TY 
2024-2025
available October
16, 2025
2025-2026
available TBD

District Testlet 
PDF Available after
each window
CSV Available after last
window 

District Progress 
Available at the
end of Windows
1 and 2

District Through-
Year 

2024-2025
available October
16, 2025
2025-2026
available TBD

3



STUDENT TESTLET REPORTS
Testlet Reports provide weekly, actionable feedback on student performance,
allowing teachers and students to set targeted learning goals and address areas
needing support. Families can also view results through the Parent Portal,
fostering timely collaboration to support student learning.

4



CLASSROOM TESTLET REPORTS
Classroom Testlet Reports provide detailed insights into student performance on
specific standards, enabling educators to identify areas of strength and areas
needing support. These reports assist in setting focused learning goals and
inform instructional strategies at the student, small-group, and classroom levels.

5



PROGRESS REPORTS
Progress Reports provide an estimated achievement level based on the testlets
completed through the end of each testing window. After every window, results
are updated to reflect additional student performance data, offering a clearer
picture of where students are in relation to grade-level expectations.

Student Window 2 Progress Report

Classroom Progress Report

6



STRENGTHENING MAST
SYSTEMS FOR 2025-2026

Enhanced Professional Learning & Support
MAST 4 Teachers: Training on administration, performance tasks, math
misconceptions, and using results for next instructional steps
MAST Summit: Role-based sessions on preparing for testing and
accessing score reports
MAST Memo: Monthly email direct to teachers with timely MAST tips,
instructional resources, and upcoming professional learning opportunities
Ongoing Support: Mini-sessions, HUB courses, and updated school-
facilitated training materials to ensure practical implementation support

Improved Access to Data
More frequent reports across student, classroom, school, and district
levels, now available in both PDF and Excel formats.
A new interactive reporting platform coming Spring 2026 to simplify
access and help educators more efficiently interpret and use results.

Better Alignment with Instruction 
Testing windows extended and shifted later to align with curriculum
pacing.
Increased educator involvement in scheduling and additional curriculum
alignment options in the Scheduler.

The MAST assessment and surrounding systems continue to improve to better
support classroom instruction, data use, and educator experience.

Sharper Focus on Student Progress
New Progress Reports help monitor how students are performing relative
to grade-level expectations throughout the year.
Continued work on additional metrics and future growth indicators
support teachers and students in setting focused learning goals.

7



RESOURCES

OPI Assessment
Webpage

The official Montana Office of Public Instruction
landing page for statewide assessments,
including MAST. Provides general information
on testing windows, purpose of assessments,
and links to additional resources.

MAST Portal 

The primary resource platform for the MAST
program. It contains sections for professional
learning, test administration materials
(manuals, scheduling guides, accessibility
guides), student/roster management, resources
for educators, and other live support tools.

MAST FAQ
Webpage

The central resource for the MAST assessment.
Provides answers to common questions about
testing windows, subjects, score reporting, and
links to parent letters, portals, and testing
blueprints.

Statewide Data
Release
Webpage

Provides guidance and timelines for when
assessment data, including MAST results, are
released publicly. Includes interpretive guides
and resources for analyzing statewide trends.

If you have any questions, please contact:
Cedar Rose, Assessment Director, OPI

cedar.rose@mt.gov
8

https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS
https://newmeridiancorp.org/montana-aligned-to-standards-through-year-program-portal/
https://newmeridiancorp.org/montana-aligned-to-standards-through-year-program-portal/
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Required-Assessments/Montana-Aligned-to-Standards-Through-Year-FAQ
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Required-Assessments/Montana-Aligned-to-Standards-Through-Year-FAQ
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Assessment-Data-Release
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Assessment-Data-Release
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Assessment-Data-Release


2024-2025
STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT

DATA OVERVIEW

Cedar Rose
Assessment Director 
OPI 

1



DATA OVERVIEW
•Statewide data release timeline 
•Considerations for MAST data interpretation
•Grades 3-8 math and ELA
•Grade 11 math, ELA, and science
•Grades 5 and 8 science 

2



STATEWIDE DATA RELEASE 
TIMELINE

3



WHY MAST CREATES A NEW 
BASELINE
•New assessment system: Multiple MAST testlets replace one end-of-
year test—different structure, scoring, and reporting.

•New proficiency expectations: Montana educators set new grade-
specific cut scores after reviewing student work and alignment to 
standards.

•Multiple evidence sources: Standard setting used impact data 
including historical Smarter Balanced trends results to ensure validity.

•New baseline established: 2024–2025 results serve as the starting 
point for measuring future progress and trends.

4



GRADES 3-8 MATH & ELA 
RESULTS
First full statewide administration of MAST for Grades 3-8
Includes all eligible students in public accredited Montana schools
Approximately 66,500 students statewide participated in MAST or 
MSAA alternate math and ELA testing (98%)

5



GRADES 3-8 
2024-26 MATH & ELA 
ACHIEVEMENT 

28.5%

33.4%

28.4%

29.7%

34.8%

23.7%

8.3%

13.2%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ELA

Math

Novice Nearing Proficient Proficient Advanced

36.9% of Students at or 
Above Proficient

43.1% of Students at or 
Above Proficient

6



37
.3

%

37
.9

%

36
.2

%

34
.9

%

36
.5

%

38
.6

%

36
.0

%

45
.3

%

46
.6

%

41
.7

%

45
.0

%

44
.2

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th

Percent At or Above Proficient by Grade

Math ELA

7



MATH SUBGROUP PERFORMANCE

44.0%

69.7%

67.9%

67.5%

27.4%

33.4%

29.5%

21.4%

19.1%

22.6%

30.6%

29.7%

18.5%

7.1%

9.3%

7.5%

26.7%

23.7%

8.0%

1.8%

3.8%

2.4%

15.3%

13.2%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Economic Disadvantage

English Learner

Special Education

American Indian

White

Statewide

Novice Nearing Proficient Proficient Advanced

8



ELA SUBGROUP PERFORMANCE

38.0%

69.0%

63.4%

59.8%

23.3%

28.5%

29.3%

22.9%

21.7%

25.1%

28.7%

28.4%

27.6%

7.5%

12.5%

13.5%

38.4%

34.8%

5.1%

0.7%

2.4%

1.7%

9.6%

8.3%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Economic Disadvantage

English Learner

Special Education

American Indian

White

Statewide

Novice Nearing Proficient Proficient Advanced

9



NAEP LONGITUDINAL DATA

NAEP will be administered around the state this spring with 2026 data release 
planned for early 2027 10

41% 41%

43%

38%

40%

37%
38%

36%

34%

32%

39%

37%
36%

29%

32%

37%

35%
34%

29% 31%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

2015 2017 2019 2022 2024

% of Students at or Above Proficient  

4th Math 4th Reading 8th Math 8th Reading



GRADES 3-8 MATH & ELA
KEY POINTS 
• ELA achievement is slightly higher across all grade levels except for grade 3 
with the lowest ELA proficiency rate by grade level 

•Math proficiency rates are consistent across all grade levels 

•Large performance disparities exist between statewide results and American 
Indian students, students receiving special education services, English 
Learners and economic disadvantage students across both math and ELA

11



ACT 
COMPOSITE SCORE TREND

12



GRADE 11 PROFICIENCY 
RATES 

Includes both ACT and MSAA/AMSA results 
(~9,700-9,800 students per subject) 13

52.5%

49.2%

46.0% 46.5%
45.0%

42.1%

53.4% 52.5%
54.7%

36.2%

33.2%
32.1%

33.6%

27.0%
25.3%

30.6% 30.7% 31.3%

28.3%
26.0% 30.2% 30.5% 30.0%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

55%

60%

2015- 2016 2016- 2017 2017- 2018 2018- 2019 2019- 2020 2020- 2021 2021- 2022 2022- 2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
ELA Math Science



GRADES 5 AND 8 SCIENCE 
PROFICIENCY RATES

UNDER EMBARGO UNTIL NOVEMBER 12, 8:00 AM MST 14

43.4%

41.3% 42.5%

39.4%
39.9%

41.0%

37.5%
36.9%

41.6% 41.2%

40.0%

38.2%

32%

34%

36%

38%

40%

42%

44%

2021- 2022 2022- 2023 2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 5 Grade 8 Grades 5 & 8



GRADE 11 AND SCIENCE 
KEY POINTS 
Grade 11

•Highest level of ELA proficiency 
since ACT statewide use in 2015-16

•Consistent composite score, math, 
and science proficiency rates

Grades 5 and 8 Science 

•Decrease in proficiency more 
prominent at grade 5

•Decline in overall proficiency 
consistent with the 2023-2024 
school year

UNDER EMBARGO UNTIL NOVEMBER 12, 8:00 AM MST 15



GEMS.OPI.MT.GOV/STUDENT-DATA

16



CONTACT 
Cedar Rose, Assessment Director OPI

cedar.rose@mt.gov

17



ITEM 17 

PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PANEL AND 
PRELIMINARY ANNUAL REPORT DATA 

McCall Flynn; Pad McCracken;  
Superintendent Micah Hill, Missoula County 
Public Schools; Superintendent Les Meyer, 

Frenchtown School District; Superintendent 
Pete Joseph, Corvallis School District;  

Superintendent Dave Thennis, Hamilton 
School District 



HB 549 Public 
Charter Schools 101
Prepared by Pad McCracken, LSD, and McCall Flynn, 
Executive Director of the Board of Public Education



First a reminder…

• The 2023 Legislature enacted two bills allowing for the 
creation of new types of schools

• One was HB 549 (Anderson) which established “Public Charter 
Schools”

• The other was HB 562 (S. Vinton) which established 
“Community Choice Schools”

• HB 562 is being litigated, and a decision is expected soon

• If the court allows HB 562 to proceed, the committee may 
wish to have a similar presentation on the basics of 
Community Choice Schools



•Board of Trustees of an existing school district submits a rigorous 
application to the BPE

•BPE selection process and approval/denial

•New charter school operates as school of the district

•If approved, governed by the existing Board of Trustees and funded 
through the regular school funding formula and as a separate budget unit 
receiving additional basic entitlement if enrollment thresholds are met

•Currently, all 22 public charter schools have been approved through the 
Route I process

“Route I”

•Community group formally asks Board of Trustees (of school district in 
which desired charter school will be located) to pursue a Route I approval

•If Board of Trustees declines, the community group may independently 
submit to the BPE the same rigorous application as under Route I plus info 
pertaining to the physical location of the proposed charter school and 
background on the initial governing board

•BPE selection process and approval/denial

•If approved, a new “public charter school district” is created (composed 
only of land area encompassing school building), governed in the first year 
by the initial governing board, then by a board of trustees elected at the 
next school election

•The public charter school district is funded at the 80% BASE level by the 
state

Route II”

Two application “routes” 
both through the sole 
approving entity, the BPE. 



2025 Legislative Changes – HB 28 (Bedey) and HB 251 (Bedey)

HB 28 - Clarify timelines and opening procedures for public charter schools
• Agency bill requested by EDIC on behalf of BPE
• Addressed issues related to approval timelines, opening procedures, and initial funding
• Public charters exempt from regular school opening laws
• Route I charter:

• no per-ANB funding in 1st year; 
• basic entitlement based on planned enrollment (subject to clawback)

• Route II charter:
• per-ANB; other ANB-driven components, and basic entitlement in 1st year based on 

planned enrollment (subject to clawback)

HB 251 - Generally revise laws related to public charter schools
• Clarified Route II public charter school district and authority (not a taxing district)
• Removed BPE authority to waive statute in charter contracts (BPE may still grant variances to 

accreditation standards if requested in charter proposal)
• BPE must limit new approvals based on LEG-determined funding limit and prioritize 

proposals emphasizing personalized and proficiency-based learning
• Resident district financial obligations for a child with a disability attending a Route II public 

charter school district same as any out-of-district 

https://bills.legmt.gov/#/laws/bill/2/LC0290?open_tab=bill
https://bills.legmt.gov/#/laws/bill/2/LC1212?open_tab=bill


BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Public Charter School Website

https://bpe.mt.gov/INTRODUCTIO
N-PUBLIC-CHARTER-SCHOOLS

Performance Report

2024-25 Public Charter School 
Compiled Performance Report

Charter Proposals

Charter Contracts

Continuous Oversight and Monitoring

Performance Framework

Renewal and Nonrenewal/Revocation

Public Charter School Account

https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2024-25-Compiled-Performance-Report.pdf


PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL TIMELINE
June
• The Board shall issue and broadly publicize a request for proposal by June 1 of each year.
• Include the criteria that will guide the Board’s decision to approve or deny a charter proposal.

November
• If a public charter school proposal does not contain all of the required elements, the Board shall consider the proposal incomplete and return the proposal to 

the applicant without taking action.
• In reviewing and evaluating public charter proposals, the Board shall use procedures, practices, and criteria consistent with nationally recognized best practices, 

principles, and standards. The proposal review process must include a thorough evaluation of each charter proposal, an in-person interview with the applicant, 
and an opportunity in a public forum for local residents to learn about and provide input on each proposal.

January
• In deciding whether to approve public charter proposals, the Board shall grant charters only to applicants that have met the requirements and are likely to open 

and operate successfully, base decisions on documented evidence, follow charter-granting policies and practices, and heavily weigh the evidence of community 
support, projected student enrollment, and input received.

• The Board shall approve or deny public charter proposals within 90 business days after the filing. When approval is granted to a governing board other than a 
local school board, the approval constitutes corresponding approval of the creation of a separate public charter school district and its boundaries.

• The Board shall adopt by resolution all public charter approval or denial decisions in an open meeting. An approval decision may include reasonable conditions 
before a charter contract may be executed. For a charter denial, the Board must clearly state the reasons for denial.

March
• Within 45 business days of approval, the Board and the governing board of the approved public charter school district shall execute a charter contract that 

clearly sets forth the academic and operational performance expectations and measures.
• A charter must be granted for a term of 5 operating years, commencing on July 1 of the first school year. An approved charter may delay their opening for one 

school year to plan and prepare. If the school is delayed in opening, the school shall request an extension from the Board, which may grant or deny the 
extension.

• The charter contract must be signed by the presiding officer of the Board and the public charter school’s governing board.
• A public charter school may not operate without a charter contract approved in an open meeting by the Board.
• The Board may establish reasonable preopening requirements or conditions to monitor the startup progress to ensure the school is prepared to open smoothly 

and meets all building, health, safety, insurance, and other legal requirements.



LIST OF APPROVED PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS

CHARTER SCHOOL NAME SCHOOL DISTRICT FIRST OPERATING YEAR

Big Horn Academy Hardin Public Schools 2025-2026 – Year 1

Billings Early College School Billings Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Billings Multilingual Academy Billings Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Billings Opportunity School Billings Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Bitterroot Polytech Hamilton School District 2024-2025 – Year 2

Bridger Charter School Bozeman Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Bronc Fast Track Public Charter School Frenchtown School District 2024-2025 – Year 2

Butte Pathway Academy Butte School District 2025-2026 – Year 1

Central Montana CTE Academy Lewistown Public Schools 2025-2026 – Year 1

CORE School at Morningside Great Falls Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

East Helena 227 Academy East Helena School District 2024-2025 – Year 2

Flathead PACE Academy Kalispell Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Helena Montessori Charter School Helena Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Libby Central Charter School Libby Public Schools 2025-2026 – Year 1

Missoula CONNECT Academy Missoula County Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Missoula TEACH Academy Missoula County Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Mount Ascension Learning Academy Helena Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Project for Alternative Learning Helena Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Rise Charter & Distance Learning 
Academy

Corvallis School District
2024-2025 – Year 2

Rise Charter & Pathways Learning 
Academy

Corvallis School District
2024-2025 – Year 2

Rising Wolf Charter Kalispell Public Schools 2024-2025 – Year 2

Ronan Charter Academy Ronan School District 2025-2026 – Year 1

2024-25 PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 
NUMBERS AND INFO AT A GLANCE

There are roughly 1,486 elementary school students (K-6) participating in a public 
charter school (1.9%), roughly 415 middle school students (7-8) participating in a public 
charter school (1.8%), roughly 1,711 high school students (9-12) participating in a public 
charter school (3.9%), and roughly 3,612 total students participating in a public charter 
school (2.5%).

Public charter schools focused on a diverse range of goals tailored to the unique needs 
of each local community, focusing on college and career readiness, individualized 
learning, academic achievement, social-emotional learning, experiential learning, 
community engagement, and support for English language learners. 

Each charter school crafted its goals to reflect its unique mission and educational 
approach. For example, Rising Wolf Charter School focuses heavily on outdoor 
education and experiential learning, integrating AP Environmental Science and outdoor 
career pathways, while Billings Multilingual Academy targets academic English growth 
using WIDA ACCESS scores and career exploration via BEABLE RIASEC-LEXILE 
assessments.

Several schools prioritize early college credit attainment. For instance, Billings Early 
College School set a goal for 90% of students to earn at least five college credits in their 
first year, and Bronc Fast Track aims for students to earn up to 30 college credits 
before high school graduation.

Schools like Billings Opportunity School, Bitterroot Polytech, and Mount Ascension 
Learning Academy emphasize personalized learning plans to tailor educational 
experiences and track student progress, especially for those who are off track or in non-
traditional learning environments.

A number of schools have embedded social emotional learning goals to foster a 
healthier school climate. For instance, Bridger Charter Academy promotes social 
emotional growth through mentoring and community activities, and CONNECT 
Academy aims for 75% of students and families to report a positive school connection 
via surveys.

Many schools incorporate career readiness through work-based learning. Flathead 
PACE Academy aims to increase internships and employment placements, while 
Bitterroot Polytech target increases in work-based learning opportunities and industry 
certifications to support post-secondary success.



WHAT’S NEXT…
2025-26 APPLICATION AND APPROVAL

• Added HB 251 language to application and criteria, 
which was publicly available on June 1.

• Prioritizing personalized and proficiency-based 
learning responses in application review.

• Creating ranking process for application review ($1M 
funding limit).

HIRED PROGRAM OFFICER

APPLICATION RESOURCES
The application and criteria will be publicly available by June 1 each year.

2025 Public Charter School Approval Timeline

2025 Public Charter School Application

2025 Public Charter School Evaluation Criteria

SUBMISSION PROCEDURES
To facilitate the Montana Board of Public Education’s review of public charter school applications, applicants must submit the 
application to bpe@mt.gov between the dates of October 27-31, 2025, with a deadline of October 31, 2025 at 5PM. All submission 
materials must be submitted in a single electronic submission. Multiple attachments will not be accepted in the submission. The 
Board will review the public charter school application, and if determined complete, will facilitate an interview and take public 
comment on the application. Final approval of the application will take place at the January 2026 Board of Public Education meeting. 
Please note the timeline at the link above.

Please provide a brief, direct response to each question using this application template and limit the application to 26 pages. 
Any appendices, handbooks, policies, and additional documents will be considered as supporting documentation. Please include links, 
when possible, and refrain from including lengthier documents.

Please note that submitting a public charter school application does not guarantee approval and that a public charter school contract 
will be granted. Failure to adhere to any requirements may lead to an incomplete application that is rejected before consideration.

https://bpe.mt.gov/2025-Public-Charter-School-Approval-Timeline.pdf
https://bpe.mt.gov/2025-Public-Charter-School-Application.docx
https://bpe.mt.gov/2025-Public-Charter-School-Evaluation-Criteria-and-Checklist.pdf
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


ITEM 18 

OPEN DISCUSSION AND FINAL THOUGHTS 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
Representative Linda Reksten 



Friday, November 21, 2025 

University of Montana
Phyllis J. Washington College 

of Education 
Room 334 

CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Statement of Public Participation
D. Welcome Visitors



 REPORTS – (Item 19)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 19 

STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

• Assessment Update
• Federal Update
• Content Standards Update
• Accreditation Update
• Annual Data Collection

State Superintendent Susie Hedalen 



1 

November 2025 BPE 
Assessment Update 

MAST Window 1 Update 
• Window 1 opened October 13, 2025.
• Over 29,000 testlets were completed within the first week.
• Score reports are released weekly in PDF and Excel formats at the student

and classroom levels.
• School and district testlet reports, along with progress reports, will be

released after the window closes.

MAST Instructional Resources and Updates 

• MAST Memo: Delivered monthly with instructional resources, administration tips,
and professional learning opportunities (October Edition)

• Last Best Learning Podcast, Ep. 15 – MAST in Motion: Lessons from
Implementation with Rachel Barkell 

2025-2026 Assessment Support Visits 

https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/MTOPI/bulletins/3f52258
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YLHmdQmFcAQ
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/MAST/2024-2025%20Assets/24-25%20Assessment%20MAST%20Training.pdf?ver=2025-09-15-121701-243


2 

• This year, OPI Assessment is shifting some monitoring visits to support visits,
focusing on CSI schools and districts with new System Testing Coordinators.

• Support visits cover staff training, resource access, testing platform navigation,
test plan creation/management, administration best practices, and score report
use.

• 21 visits are planned for the school year (roughly one-third of total site visits),
primarily in October and November.

Science CGSA Update 

• Recruitment has started for Spring 2026 pilot 6th-8th grade (goal of 1,500 per
grade level) Recruitment Form

• Framework recommendations have been made and will continue to be
implemented through the development process.

If you have any questions, please contact: 
Cedar Rose, Assessment Director 

cedar.rose@mt.gov 

https://montanaopi.sjc1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_2aVLoLLKvA7NrJc


Federal Update as of November 4th 

Federal Government Shutdown 
The federal government remains shut down as of Tuesday, November 4th. Although there are 
no new updates at this time and operations are continuing as usual, the Office of Public 
Instruction recognizes that concerns may have increased since the end of October.  

Regarding school nutrition reimbursements, carryover funding and recoveries are available to 
continue to reimburse schools as well as child and adult care providers for meals served in 
September and October.  

In addition, the Child Nutrition Programs are largely funded by the Section 32 transfer from the 
Treasury Department, which can be made available in advance of annual appropriations acts.  

Impact Aid payments to districts may begin seeing disruptions if the federal shutdown 
continues. We continue to stay in touch with our federal and state partners and will share 
information as we have it.  

Education Innovation & Research Grant 
Additionally, the Office of Public Instruction applied for a Department of Education EIR 
(Education Innovation & Research) Grant for $10 million for 5 years. The purpose of the grant is 
to replicate and take to scale the science of reading instructional evidenced based practices that 
were launched through the early literacy targeted intervention program by the State of 
Montana in 2023.   

Key Goals and Initiatives: 
● Science of Reading Implementation:

Providing training in the Science of Reading for K-3 teachers, requiring proficiency in these 
practices for new teachers, and encouraging the use of HQIM.  

● High-Quality Instruction:
Requiring all teachers to use high-quality, evidence-based curricula and instructional materials 
to teach foundational reading and language skills.  

● Intervention and Tutoring:
Ensuring students who struggle receive research-based interventions, like high-dosage tutoring.  

● Professional Development:
Providing ongoing, high-quality professional growth opportunities for educators to improve 
their knowledge and use of effective literacy practices.  



● Data-Driven Instruction:
Equipping teachers with the ability to use literacy assessment data to monitor student progress 
and inform their teaching strategies through the state MTSS data modules.   

● Parent and Family Engagement:
Expanding opportunities for families to be involved in their children's literacy development 
through tools and resources that keep them informed of their child's progress.  

● School Leadership:
Fostering school leaders who maximize the use of time and personnel, create a culture of 
shared responsibility for literacy, and support effective teaching.  

The Office of Public Instruction applied for this grant in early October. Many of our state and 
federal partners signed letters of support for the OPI’s application. The OPI will potentially know 
if they have been granted funding through this grant by December.  

Ed-Flex Waiver 
The Office of Public Instruction is also applying for an Ed-Flex Waiver at this time under the 
Education Flexibility Partnership Act of 1999 (Ed-Flex Act). This option allows states with Ed-Flex 
authority to waive certain federal requirements that apply to districts and schools without first 
having to submit waivers to the Department for review and approval – allowing school districts 
to focus on improving learning outcomes and better serve the needs of the local community. 
Notice was sent out the week of November 3rd and will be posted for 30 days for public 
comment.  

Upcoming Federal Programs Deadlines for School Districts 
● Title I Schools Final Expenditure Report due November 25th
● 2024-2025 Title Program Final Expenditure Reports due November 25th
● Districts being monitored for Title I A and Title I D evidence materials must be submitted

by December 1st
● Final ESEA application amendments due December 15th.



1 

November 2025 BPE  
Content Standards 

Update 
Mathematics Content Standards Implementation 

- PK-12 General Guidance Document
o This document lists all PK-12 mathematics standards as a PDF file. This d ocument

includes all guidance, from a PK-12 perspective, for the new standards. This 
consists of the content standards, the practice standards (with elaborations), as
well as assessment, financial literacy, pathways, recommended course
alignment, and other appendices.

- Kindergarten Expanded Guidance
o This document lists the kindergarten mathematics standards as a PDF file. This 

document includes all guidance, from a kindergarten instructional perspective,
for the new standards. This consists of the content standards, the practice
standards (with elaborations), general notes, instructional and IEFA examples for 
each standard, example proficiency rubrics for each standard, suggestions for 
alignment with financial literacy, and PK-K-1 vertical alignment recommendations.

- Implementation Webinars:
o Session #1: Why the Change?
o Session #2: Exploring the Changes and Structure
o Session #3: Math Practices

Montana ELA & Literacy Standards Revis ion 

English Language Arts (ELA) and Literacy Standards: 
- Summary of Revis ions Posted – Waiting for formal adoption
- Next Steps:

o Preparing documents for official adoption, including loading into Satchel
o Preparing General Guidance Document
o Preparing Expanded Grade Level Guidance Document

Montana World Languages Content Standards 
- K-12 General Guidance Document

https://chrome-extension/efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=LX4xH9yw3jg%3d&portalid=182
https://chrome-extension/efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=wgSJnDc-7Uo%3d&portalid=182
https://youtu.be/ygIwglzpJR4?si=CxpiL_NJrhQIExaz
https://youtu.be/G39ovmBMSg4?si=sj5QbdVtih8Vx3v6
https://youtu.be/ATywxA_8gfE?si=gDqwe4viJgHbXXxa
https://chrome-extension/efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/MT%20World%20Languages%20Content%20Standards%20Guidance%20Document.pdf?ver=2025-06-30-081357-807


2 

- 2026 World Languages Standards' Implementation Video -Slide Deck

Satchel: https://mt-satchel.commongoodlt.com/ 

Next Steps: 
- Once all expanded guidance documents are done for each content area, the specifics by grade level

will be uploaded onto Satchel as well as instructional support videos and resources.

https://youtu.be/jyf14e2ywVo
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1ugRgHsgdbBxi3aHaO4T-ZoTtiq9M7RlqSG5T6sxaVeE/edit?slide=id.p#slide=id.p
https://mt-satchel.commongoodlt.com/


3 

For questions, please contact: Marie Judisch, marie.judisch@mt.gov 



Accreditation Update 
Board of Public Education- November 

Accreditation Process 2025-26 

Think Tank Tasks 
1. Refine rubrics for Criteria Reference Guide (September- December)

a) Sample Evidence Examples
b) Resource Materials

2. Define the Student Performance Rubrics - High School (January- February)
a) Looking at ACT Data to determine
b) Looking at what else to include (CCR)

3. Define the Student Performance Rubrics - Elementary (January- February)
a) Looking at MAST Data to determine
b) Looking at other states
c) Looking at what else to include

4. Small School Process (March)

Timeline 

Presented by Crystal Andrews, Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 



 

    
    

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

 
 

 
 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Annual Collections Update – November 2025 

 
The EDUCATE team continues to oversee statewide data collections through Infinite Campus, 
ensuring districts maintain accurate, timely, and certified information for state and federal 
reporting.  
 
Data Collection 
 
Each year, the OPI publishes the Data Collection Calendar for the upcoming school year. The 
calendar includes the collection name, the purpose of the collection, the collection type (financial, 
accountability, federal reporting, etc.), along with the relevant state statute, administrative rule, or 
federal reporting requirement associated with each collection. The EDUCATE team is actively 
supporting districts with fall data collections, including: 
 
 Graduate, Dropout, Cohort (2024-2025) 
 Fall Student Count for ANB 
 Fall Enrollment Count 
 Fall Program Participation 
 Fall Personnel 
 Fall Teacher Class 
 Special Education Child Count 

 
The Data Collection Calendar can be found here.  
 
Training & Outreach 
 
The EDUCATE team, in partnership with the School Services of Montana, delivered the Ultimate 
Survival Series for Fall Reporting to support districts with data collection, validation, and 
certification in Infinite Campus. This five-part learning series, held weekly from September 5 to 
October 3, 2025, guided participants through each stage of the fall reporting process. Training 
content focused on the setup and submission of calendars, courses, rosters, CTE, ANB, and 
program participation data. Over 40 participants attended the Survival Series (including data clerks 
and data administrators). The EDUCATE team posted all recorded sessions, presentation 
materials, and supporting documentation to the agency’s website, ensuring schools can reference 
these resources as needed throughout the year.  
 
In addition to the statewide training and fall data collection, the EDUCATE team hosted day-in-a-
half user group workshops in Billings and Missoula. During these workshops, the EDUCATE team 
provided an in-depth review of fall state reporting requirements and offered direct assistance 
through discussion and 1:1 support.  

https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/AIM/1%20AIM%20MAIN%20PAGE/Infinite%20Campus%20Data%20Collection%20Schedule%202025-26.pdf?ver=2025-06-27-161131-543


Collaboration & Improvement 

The EDUCATE team engaged in a collaborative project with School Finance to make QEC 
eligibility more transparent by providing a report in MAEFAIRS that lists all staff identified with 
a QEC eligible state assignment code. This report gives districts the ability to follow up with staff 
to ensure license requirements are completed by statutory deadlines. 

Finally, OPI opened accreditation reports in early September. This report allows districts to verify 
eligibility for QEC, ensure appropriate staffing for key positions, and identify courses where 
teachers are either unlicensed or not appropriately endorsed. Making these reports available earlier 
in the cycle improves the overall quality of educator data and minimizes changes after certification. 

Questions 

If you have any questions, please contact Nicole Thuotte, EDUCATE Data Team Unit Manager, 
at nthuotte@mt.gov. 

mailto:nthuotte@mt.gov


 CHARTER SCHOOL COMMITTEE – (Items 20-22)

Dr. Ron Slinger 

ITEM 20 

UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE 
SCHOOLS COMMISSION 

Cathy Kincheloe 



ITEM 21 

INFORMATION ON PUBLIC CHARTER 
SCHOOL FALL ENROLLMENT DATA 

Christy Mock-Stutz 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Public Charter Enrollment Data 

Presenter Christy Mock-Stutz 

Position Title Assistant Chief Program Officer 

Overview Preliminary public charter school fall enrollment 
data for year 1 and year 2 public charter schools. 

Requested Decision(s) Information Item 

Related Issue(s) N/A 

Recommendation(s) N/A 



Public Charter School Fall Enrollment Counts 
Preliminary data as of October 31, 2025 

This is the second year that public charter schools, under § 20-6-812, MCA, are open and operational in 
Montana. There were five new public charters approved to open this school year. These schools were 
provided funding through a basic entitlement based upon their anticipated Annual Number of Belonging 
(ANB) count, provided to the OPI in the spring of 2025.  

Each charter school is assigned a budget unit for each of the grade level bands it serves. The budget unit 
is the unit for which the ANB of a district is calculated separately, per § 20-9-306, MCA. Budget units are 
assigned according to grade levels, E= elementary, M= Middle School, H= High School. For funding 
purposes, § 20-6-812, MCA, states that a public charter school district is not eligible for basic 
entitlement unless its ANB is greater than 70 for an elementary school or program, 20 for a middle 
school or program, or 40 for a high school or program.  

Table 1: First year Public Charter School codes, budget units, enrollment, and basic entitlement 

District School Name 
Budget 

Unit 

District Initial 
Anticipated 

ANB 

Basic 
Entitlement 

amount FY26* 

Fall Student 
Count for 

ANB 

ANB  
Requirement- 
greater than:  

Hardin HS  Big Horn Academy H2 70 $364,401 70 40 
Butte  Butte Pathway Academy  H2 60 $364,401 33 40 
Libby K-12 Libby Central Charter School  H2 40 $364,401 40 40 
Ronan Elem Ronan Charter Academy M2 20 $121,466 13 20 
Ronan HS Ronan Charter Academy H2 40 $364,401 29 40 
Fergus HS Central MT CTE Academy H2 40 $364,401 290 40 

* Basic entitlement was calculated using the anticipated enrollment in the school opening documentation.

Student enrollment: Full and Part-time enrollment 
Some charter schools leverage existing programming/coursework to provide a new experience for 
students. Each new charter school is assigned a new budget unit(s) and corresponding grade-level 
signifier(s) (for example, E2 or H3).  

Table 2: Year 2 Charter Schools Fall enrollment ANB counts 

District School Name 
Budget 

Unit 

Fall  
2024 

Student 
Count  

Final 
ANB  

SY 2024-
25 

Basic 
Entitlement 

amount 
FY26 

Fall  
2025 

Student 
Count  

ANB 
Requirement 

Billings Elem Billings Multilingual Academy E2 17 18 0 4 70 

Billings H S Billings Multilingual Academy  H2 24 18 0 13 40 

Billings H S Billings Early College School H3 60 31 0 107 40 

Billings H S Billings Opportunity School H4 76 74 $364,401 110 40 

Bozeman H S Bridger Charter School H2 101 56 $364,401 134 40 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Distance  E2 181 206 $60,732 269 70 



District School Name 
Budget 

Unit 

Fall  
2024 

Student 
Count  

Final 
ANB  

SY 2024-
25 

Basic 
Entitlement 

amount 
FY26 

Fall  
2025 

Student 
Count  

ANB 
Requirement 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Distance  M2 47 49 $121,466 189 20 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Distance  H2 50 45 $364,401 68 40 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Pathways  E3 262 265 $60,732 613 70 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Pathways  M3 25 29 $121,466 189 20 

Corvallis K-12 Rise Charter & Pathways  H3 124 44 $364,401 214 20 

East Helena K-12 227 Academy E2 10 11 - 2 70 

East Helena K-12 227 Academy M2 11 16 0 22 20 

East Helena K-12 227 Academy H2 57 58 $364,401 56 40 

Flathead H S Flathead Pace Academy H2 158 68 $364,401 228 40 

Flathead H S Kalispell Rising Wolf Charter H3 317 54 $364,401 237 40 

Frenchtown K-12 Bronc Fast Track H2 53 71 $364,401 56 40 

Great Falls Elem CORE School at Morningside E2 297 316 $60,732 321 70 

Hamilton K-12 Bitterroot Polytech M2 28 22 $121,466 15 20 

Hamilton K-12 Bitterroot Polytech H2 360 115 $364,401 46 40 

Helena Elem 
Helena Montessori Charter 
Schl E3 198 206 $60,732 216 70 

Helena Elem 
Mount Ascension Learning 
Academy E2 49 22 - 48 70 

Helena Elem 
Mount Ascension Learning 
Academy M2 21 22 $121,466 23 20 

Helena H S 
Mount Ascension Learning 
Academy H2 45 59 $364,401 105 40 

Helena H S Helena P.A.L. H3 58 71 $364,401 62 40 

Missoula Elem Missoula TEACH Academy E3 84 86 $60,732 70 70 

Missoula H S Missoula Connect Academy H3 90 87 $364,401 67 40 

Table 3: Number of Full and Part-time Enrollments 

Schools/Districts Totals Full-time Half-time 
No ANB 
(less than 
179 hours) 

Quarter 
Time  

Three-
quarters 
Time 

Total 
student 
count 

Billings Public Schools  68 191 259 

Billings Early College School 1 106 107 

Billings Multilingual Acad HS 24 24 

Billings Multilingual Acad MS 17 17 

Billings Opportunity School 67 44 111 

Bozeman Public Schools 5 41 46 42 134 

Bridger Charter School 5 41 46 42 134 

Butte Public Schools 32 1 33 

Butte Pathway Academy 32 1 33 

Corvallis K-12 Schools 355 456 173 415 17 1416 

CSD 7-8 Rise Distance Academy 56 4 5 65 

CSD 7-8 Rise Pathway Academy 57 132 189 

CSD EL Rise Distance Academy 258 4 5 267 



 
    

 

Schools/Districts Totals Full-time Half-time 
No ANB 
(less than 
179 hours) 

Quarter 
Time  

Three-
quarters 
Time 

Total 
student 
count 

CSD EL Rise Pathway Academy   412 115 86   613 

CSD HS Rise Distance Academy 41 15 1 4 7 68 

CSD HS Rise Pathway Academy   21   193   214 

East Helena K-12 84 1 1 2 1 89 

227 Academy - HS 60 1 1 1 1 64 

227 Academy - Middle School 24     1   25 

Frenchtown K-12 Schools 55 1       56 

Bronc Fast Track 55 1       56 

Great Falls Public Schls 316 5       321 

CORE School at Morningside Elementary 316 5       321 

Hamilton K-12 Schools 48 13       61 

Bitterroot Polytech 7-8 14 1       15 

Bitterroot Polytech HS 34 12       46 

Hardin Public Schools 69       1 70 

The Big Horn Academy 69       1 70 

Helena Public Schools 327 33 1 106 1 468 

Helena Montessori Charter Schl 216         216 

Helena P.A.L. 62         62 

Mount Ascension Learning Ac EL       48   48 

Mount Ascension Learning Ac HS 43 28   34   105 

Mount Ascension Learning Ac MS 6 5 1 24 1 37 

Kalispell Public Schools 4 117 91 243 10 465 

Flathead Pace Academy 4 52 91 71 10 228 

Kalispell Rising Wolf Charter   65   172   237 

Lewistown Public Schools 8 35 138 68 40 290 

Central MT CTE Academy 8 35 138 68 40 290 

Libby K-12 Schools 40         40 

Libby Central Charter School 40         40 

Missoula Co Public Schls 120 5 3 3 7 138 

Missoula Connect Academy HS 50 5 3 3 7 68 

Missoula TEACH Academy 70         70 

Ronan Public Schools 23 4   5 10 42 

Ronan Charter Academy 7-8 4     4 5 13 

Ronan Charter Academy HS 19 4   1 5 29 

Grand Total 1554 902 407 888 130 3882 

 
 
 



ITEM 22 

UPDATE ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 

• Performance Framework Revisions
• New Applicants and Interviews
• Application and Evaluation Criteria 

Review

McCall Flynn 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 

Public Charter School Performance Framework 

Evaluation Rubric 

 

OVERVIEW 

Public charter schools must adhere to the provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code Annotated and Title 10 of 

the Administrative Rules of Montana and any state or local rule, regulation, policy, or procedure relating to 

noncharter public schools within the located school district, unless a variance to standard was awarded. 

 

Public charter schools shall identify a performance framework as prescribed in 20-6-809, MCA, that clearly sets 

forth the academic and operational performance indicators, measures, and metrics which include: 

 

• School achievement goals 

• Student academic proficiency 

• Student academic growth 

• Achievement gaps in both proficiency and growth between major student subgroups 

• Attendance 

• Recurrent enrollment from year to year 

• Postsecondary readiness 

• Financial performance and sustainability 

• Charter Governing Board performance and stewardship, including compliance with all applicable laws, 

regulations, and terms of the charter contract 

 

The Public Charter School Performance Framework Work Group also included additional performance 

indicators, measures, and metrics which include: 

• Student Engagement 

• Support for Transitions 

 

These performance framework indicators, measures, and metrics must align to mission-specific goals, and when 

possible, exceed provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code Annotated and Title 10 of the Administrative Rules 

of Montana. The performance framework indicators, measures, and metrics must be reported to the Board of 

Public Education no later than October 31 of the first year of operation. 

 

Public charter schools shall submit information in accordance with the Office of Public Instruction 

Accreditation Process documenting adherence to the performance framework to support the Board of Public 

Education’s evaluation and annual reporting process. 

The Board shall publish an annual report that includes a comparison of the performance of public charter school 

students with the performance of academically, ethnically, and economically comparable groups of students in 

noncharter public schools. 

https://archive.legmt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0060/part_0080/section_0090/0200-0060-0080-0090.html


2 | P a g e  

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND RATINGS 

Authorizers establish performance targets that honor their unique contexts. These targets establish the levels of 

performance corresponding to the ratings for a given measure. Authorizers begin by setting targets for the 

Meets Standard rating category, which establish expectations and definitions of a quality performance on a 

given measure. Potential ratings include: 

 

Exceeds Standard This rating is reserved for performance that far exceeds expectations, 

demonstrating exceptional performance on a particular measure. This rating may 

be used in the academic framework, but it is not typically used in the financial or 

organizational framework. 

 

Meets Standard The target for this rating category sets the expectation for charter school 

performance in all measures in all frameworks—academic, financial, and 

organizational. Schools earning this rating on a particular measure are performing 

well in that area. 

 

Approaches Standard Schools with this rating are approaching but have not fully met expectations for 

performance on a given measure. While these schools have achieved some of the 

minimum expectations on the measure in question, these schools may be subject 

to further analysis and potentially closer monitoring. This rating may be used for 

academic measures and qualitative measures in the organizational and financial 

frameworks. 

 

Does Not Meet Standard Schools with this rating on a measure are performing below the authorizer’s 

expectations, and the school is subject to further analysis, closer monitoring, and 

possibly intervention. This rating is used on all measures in all frameworks. 



3 | P a g e  

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – ACADEMIC 

 

Is the public charter school academically successful? 

The Board of Public Education places emphasis on multiple measures of student success. Strong literacy and 

numeracy skills are critical for success in life. There are also additional ways schools impact student learning, 

wellness, and other life outcomes consistent with their mission. The Board of Public Education encourages 

charter schools to think more broadly about excellence by setting expectations for, and evaluating progress 

against, other aspects of students’ learning and achievement unique to each school and its particular mission. 

 

Student Achievement Goals 

Guiding Question: Is the public charter school meeting mission- or school-specific student achievement goals? 

(Public Charter Schools must submit between 1-3 student achievement goals to highlight innovative efforts.) 

Student Achievement Goals Rubric 

 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

 

Meets Standard  

The public charter school has provided relevant and reliable evidence to show 

that they have met their mission- or school-specific student achievement goal. 

 

Approaches Standard  

The public charter school has met some of the minimum expectations but has not 

fully met their mission- or school-specific student achievement goal.  

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to support meeting their mission- or 

school-specific student achievement goal. 

 

Student Academic Proficiency/Growth  

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring all students are learning in Math? 

Math Performance Rubric 

 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

 

 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for 

measuring student math performance, along with data demonstrating an 

increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency with overall 

group performance data, and evidence of how the data from the tool is used to 

inform teaching and learning. 

 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for measuring 

student math performance and data evidence demonstrating an increase in student 

learning progression, growth, or proficiency with overall group performance data. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to support student learning in math. 

Definitions: 

“Overall Group Performance Data” means the whole public charter school. 

"Learning progression" means the specific performance expectations in each content area and grade-level or grade-band from 

kindergarten through grade 12. 

"Measure" means a way to assess the level of proficiency on a performance indicator aligned to the district graduate profile. 

"Proficient" means that a student demonstrated a level of knowledge and skills that are expected to be learned signaling that a student 

is well prepared to progress on the learning continuum aligned to the content standards, learning progressions, and necessary readiness 

skills. 

"Student performance standards" means the measurement of student performance and proficiency on annual state level summative 

assessments and graduation rates used to determine the accreditation status of a school. 

"Student growth" means changes in student learning as measured from one point in time to another as determined by state or local 

measures, or both. The federal accountability system uses a growth model to demonstrate student learning across time as measured 

by statewide assessments. 



4 | P a g e 

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring all students are learning in ELA? 

ELA Performance Rubric 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for 

measuring student ELA performance, along with data demonstrating an 

increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency with overall 

group performance data, and evidence of how the data from the tool is used to 

inform teaching and learning. 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for measuring 

student ELA performance and data evidence demonstrating an increase in student 

learning progression, growth, or proficiency with overall group performance data. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to support student learning in ELA. 

Definitions: 

“Overall Group Performance Data” means the whole school. 

"Learning progression" means the specific performance expectations in each content area and grade-level or grade-band from 

kindergarten through grade 12. 

"Measure" means a way to assess the level of proficiency on a performance indicator aligned to the district graduate profile. 

"Proficient" means that a student demonstrated a level of knowledge and skills that are expected to be learned signaling that a student 

is well prepared to progress on the learning continuum aligned to the content standards, learning progressions, and necessary readiness 

skills. 

"Student performance standards" means the measurement of student performance and proficiency on annual state level summative 

assessments and graduation rates used to determine the accreditation status of a school. 

"Student growth" means changes in student learning as measured from one point in time to another as determined by state or local 

measures, or both. The federal accountability system uses a growth model to demonstrate student learning across time as measured by 

statewide assessments. 

Achievement gaps in both proficiency and growth between major student subgroups  

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring students in major student subgroups are learning 

in Math? Please name those subgroups. (This refers to a subgroup of students identified by a particular 

characteristic. The student subgroups used for the accountability system includes economically disadvantaged 

students, students from major racial and ethnic groups (White, American Indian, and Hispanic), children with 

disabilities, and English learners.) 

Math Subgroup Performance Rubric 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for 

measuring student math performance for major student subgroups, along 

with data demonstrating an increase in student learning progression, growth, 

or proficiency with subgroup performance data, and evidence of how the data 

from the tool is used to inform teaching and learning. 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a valid and reliable 

tool for measuring math performance for major student subgroups and data 

evidence demonstrating an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 

proficiency with subgroup performance data. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to support student learning for major 

student subgroups in Math. 

Definitions: 

"Learning progression" means the specific performance expectations in each content area and grade-level or grade-band from 

kindergarten through grade 12. 

"Measure" means a way to assess the level of proficiency on a performance indicator aligned to the district graduate profile. 



5 | P a g e  

"Proficient" means that a student demonstrated a level of knowledge and skills that are expected to be learned signaling that a student 

is well prepared to progress on the learning continuum aligned to the content standards, learning progressions, and necessary readiness 

skills. 

"Student performance standards" means the measurement of student performance and proficiency on annual state level summative 

assessments and graduation rates used to determine the accreditation status of a school. 

"Student growth" means changes in student learning as measured from one point in time to another as determined by state or local 

measures, or both. The federal accountability system uses a growth model to demonstrate student learning across time as measured 

by statewide assessments. 

 

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring students in major student subgroups are learning 

in ELA? Please name those subgroups. (This refers to a subgroup of students identified by a particular 

characteristic. The student subgroups used for the accountability system includes economically disadvantaged 

students, students from major racial and ethnic groups (White, American Indian, and Hispanic), children with 

disabilities, and English learners) 

ELA Subgroup Performance Rubric 

 

Exceeds Standard  

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

 

 

Meets Standard  

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a tool for 

measuring student ELA performance for major student subgroups, along 

with data demonstrating an increase in student learning progression, growth, 

or proficiency with subgroup performance data, and evidence of how the data 

from the tool is used to inform teaching and learning. 

 

Approaches Standard  

The public charter school has provided evidence of the use of a valid and reliable 

tool for measuring ELA performance for major student subgroups and data 

evidence demonstrating an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 

proficiency with subgroup performance data. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to support student learning for major 

student subgroups in ELA. 

Definitions: 

"Learning progression" means the specific performance expectations in each content area and grade-level or grade-band from 

kindergarten through grade 12. 

"Measure" means a way to assess the level of proficiency on a performance indicator aligned to the district graduate profile. 

"Proficient" means that a student demonstrated a level of knowledge and skills that are expected to be learned signaling that a student 

is well prepared to progress on the learning continuum aligned to the content standards, learning progressions, and necessary readiness 

skills. 

"Student performance standards" means the measurement of student performance and proficiency on annual state level summative 

assessments and graduation rates used to determine the accreditation status of a school. 

"Student growth" means changes in student learning as measured from one point in time to another as determined by state or local 

measures, or both. The federal accountability system uses a growth model to demonstrate student learning across time as measured 

by statewide assessments. 

 

Attendance  

Guiding Question: Is the public charter school’s annual attendance rate meeting the state average of 33% of 

students attending school 95% or more? 

Attendance Rate Rubric 

 

Exceeds Standard  

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

 

Meets Standard  

The public charter school has provided relevant and reliable evidence to show 

that their average daily attendance rate meets the state average. 

 

Approaches Standard  

The public charter school has provided relevant and reliable evidence to show that 

their average daily attendance rate falls slightly below the minimum standard at 

either 30-32% of students attending school 90-94%. 



6 | P a g e 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school’s average daily attendance rate does not meet the state 

average and falls below 30% of students attending school 90%. 

Student Engagement  

Guiding Question: Provide evidence to show how students are engaged in their learning. 

Student Engagement Rubric 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided at least two pieces of relevant and 

reliable evidence to show that students are engaged in their learning. 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided one piece of relevant and reliable evidence 

to show that students are engaged in their learning. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to show that students are engaged in their 

learning. 

Support for Transitions (Grades K-8 Only) 

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school supporting students as they transition into a new school 

setting, for example, kindergarten entry or transition to middle school or high school? 

Transitions Rubric 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided at least two pieces of relevant and 

reliable evidence to support transitions into new school settings for students. 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided one piece of relevant and reliable evidence 

to show support for students as they transition into a new school setting. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has no evidence to show for students as they transition 

into new school settings. 

Postsecondary Readiness (Grades 9-12 Only) 

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring that students graduate college and career ready? 

Postsecondary Readiness Rubric (College and Career Readiness) 

Exceeds Standard 

The public charter school has met the minimum requirements and has provided 

evidence that they have gone significantly above and beyond the minimum 

standard. 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided two or more pieces of evidence to show 

that students are graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 

Approaches Standard 

The public charter school has provided one piece of evidence to show that students 

are graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school has provided no evidence to ensure students are 

graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 



7 | P a g e 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – FINANCIAL 

Is the public charter school financially healthy? 

Public charter schools have the autonomy to manage their finances, consistent with state and federal law. The 

Board of Public Education’s role is to define clear, measurable, and attainable financial standards and targets 

that a school must meet as a condition of renewal. The Board of Public Education has developed and utilized a 

good set of tools to assess and monitor a school’s financial health while respecting a school’s autonomy. 

Financial Performance and Stability 

Guiding Question: Does the public charter school materially comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

and provisions of the Charter Contract relating to financial reporting requirements including timely and 

complete submission of required documents? 

Financial Performance and Stability Rubric 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided relevant and reliable evidence that it 

materially complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and provisions of 

the Charter Contract relating to financial reporting requirements including 

timely and complete submission of required documents, such as: 

• Public Charter Initial Statement.

• Public Charter Financial Summaries.

• Public Charter Annual Projections.

• Trustee Financial Summaries.

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school does not materially comply with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, and provisions of the charter contract relating to financial reporting 

requirements due to failure to make timely and complete submission of required 

documents, including failure or unwillingness to provide additional information 

requested by the Board of Public Education. 

Recurrent enrollment from year to year 

Guiding Question: Is the public charter school within 95% of its projected enrollment or is the three-year 

average enrollment greater than its projected enrollment?  

Recurrent Enrollment Rubric 

Meets Standard 

The public charter school has provided relevant and reliable evidence to show 

that it is within 95% of its projected enrollment or the public charter school’s 

three-year average is greater than its projected enrollment. 

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The public charter school does not meet their recurrent enrollment targets and does 

not provide sufficient evidence to support these targets. 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – ORGANIZATIONAL 

Is the public charter school organizationally sound? 

The Board of Public Education is responsible for holding public charter schools accountable for sound and well- 

functioning organizational practices to protect the public interest. The Organizational Framework provides a 

comprehensive lens to the extent to which public charter schools are meeting operational expectations and 

protecting student and public interests while simultaneously honoring public charter schools’ rightful autonomy 

to design and deliver school models that meet students’ needs. 

Charter Governing Board performance and stewardship, including compliance with all applicable laws, 

regulations, and terms of the charter contract 

Guiding Question: Does the Charter Governing Board comply with basic governance requirements? 



8 | P a g e 

Governance Oversight Rubric 

Meets Standard 

The Charter Governing Board has provided relevant and reliable evidence 

that it complies with basic governance requirements such as: 

• monitoring academic performance at least once a quarter.

• reviewing financial reports at each board meeting.

• engaging in strategic planning.

• conducting evaluations of its school leader, in accordance with Charter

Governing Board policies.

• monitoring compliance with its charter contract.

• monitoring compliance with applicable law and regulations.

• ensuring compliance with the family and community engagement plan.

Does Not 

Meet Standard 

The Charter Governing Board fails to materially comply with any one of the 

activities outlined above. 

OPEN ENDED QUESTIONS 

1. How has the public charter school prioritized innovation different from a program that the school district

could operate or currently operate without the public charter designation?

2. Why is the public charter school innovating? What are the student needs in the community that are trying to

be met?

3. How is the public charter school flexible and nimble in response to the needs of students?

4. What roadblocks or challenges is the public charter school encountering in efforts to innovate in the public

charter school?

5. What have you learned, and what goals do you want to set moving forward?



 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Items 23-27)

Dr. Ron Slinger 

ITEM 23 

NOTICE OF SURRENDER IN BPE CASE 
#2025-05 

Brenton Craggs 



ITEM 24 

INFORMATION ON THE ANNUAL 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT 

PROVIDERS LIST 

Marie Judisch
Aimee Konzen

Eva Cox 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: November 2025 

Presentation Annual Professional Development Unit Provider 
List

Presenter Marie Judisch 
Aimee Konzen 
Eva Cox 

Position Title Senior Manager of Academic Outcomes and 
Instruction 
Professional Learning Manager 
Professional Development Unit Specialist 

Overview FY 2025 Annual Professional Development Report 
and an overview of the Professional Development 
Unit Provider System Update

Requested Decision(s) 
 Informational Item 

Related Issue(s) 
10.55.714 - Professional Development  
10.57.215 - Professional Development and 
Renewal Requirements 
10.57.216 - Approved Professional Development 
and Renewal Activity 

Recommendation(s) 
None 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Professional Development Unit 

Provider Annual Report 

July 2024 – June 2025 

Report Created by: 

Eva Cox, Professional Development Unit Specialist 
Teaching and Learning Department 

Montana Office of Public Instruction 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 2 of 24 
 

 
 

Contents 
Professional Development Unit Provider System Overview ........................................................................ 3 

Provider Criteria and Requirements ......................................................................................................... 3 

System Outreach and Cleanup Update .................................................................................................... 4 

Data Analysis ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Fiscal Year 2025 Provider Report Summary ............................................................................................... 5 

Key Data Points ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Professional Development Unit Opportunities Per Provider Type ............................................................. 6 

Professional Development Units (PDUs) Issued Per Provider Type ........................................................... 7 

Certificates Issued per Provider Type .................................................................................................... 7 

Online Reporting Data ......................................................................................................................... 8 

Categories in the Professional Development Unit Provider System .......................................................... 8 

Categories in the Teacher Learning Hub ................................................................................................ 9 

Appendix A- Professional Development Data Tables by Type ................................................................. 11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 3 of 24 
 

Professional Development Unit Provider System Overview 
The Professional Development Unit (PDU) Provider System is used by approved professional development 
unit providers to report professional development unit learning opportunities to the Office of Public 
Instruction (OPI). The data gathered in the system includes the learning opportunity title, the date(s) and 
location(s) of the learning opportunity, and the number of participants who received an OPI PDU 
certificate. 

Certificates are generated from the information entered into the Professional Development Unit Provider 
System by the approved professional development unit providers’ users that manage those 
accounts.  This information then feeds into the TeachMT Licensure system that was updated on June 1, 
2022 for educators to find their professional development sessions in order to recertify their educator 
licenses. 

The management of the Professional Development Unit Provider System and its processes is transitioning 
into an updated system.  Currently the data is manually calculated to derive the information for this 
report.  The upcoming system will be able to provide data on demand, increase provider compliance with 
the Administrative Rules or Montana (ARM), and establish protocols for the review and acknowledgement 
of high-quality professional development.  It will also record certificate issuance so accurate reporting 

Provider Criteria and Requirements 
Per the Administrative Rule of Montana 10.57.216 Approved Professional Development Activity, 
“organizations wishing to offer professional development activities for the award of Professional 
Development units must receive approval from the Superintendent of Public Instruction prior to offering 
activities.” Status as an approved provider will continue as long as the provider meets the following 
guidelines by: 

• Providing activities deemed appropriate for professional development in compliance with ARM 

10.55.714 and 10.57.215, 

• Following the professional development unit activity certificate reporting process, and 

• Maintaining records of all professional development activities for which professional development 

unit certificates were awarded for five years following the date of completion.  

All providers are assigned provider types for reporting. The types are: County Superintendents, 
Government Agencies, Professional Education Associations, School Districts, Tribal, and Universities and 
Colleges. 

http://www.mtrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10.57.216
http://www.mtrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10.55.714
http://www.mtrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10.57.215


MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 4 of 24 
 

System Outreach and Cleanup Update 
Between May and June 2025, the OPI Professional Development Unit Specialist reached out to all 
provider account holders to ensure information was compliant and upto date.   Every account was 
reviewed, and every provider was emailed—either a thank-you for their ongoing compliance or a thank-
you along with a note outlining items that needed correction to remain in compliance. A total of 883 users 
across 584 provider accounts were contacted. During this process: 

• 32 users were identified with outdated contact information. 
• 79 accounts were retired due to inactivity. 
• 20 users had been previously retired incorrectly and were still appearing on the contact list despite 

not being active providers. 
o These provider accounts were correctly retired and removed from the contact list. 

• 97 accounts were found to have issues with fiscal year reporting or inaccurate certificate counts, 
including 15 accounts with major issues spanning multiple events. 

• 3 providers were retired due to non-compliance and invited to reapply once the new system is 
operational, which will prevent fiscal year issues and inaccurate certificate counts. 

• 72 providers were identified as needing monthly check-ins:  
o 20 are new providers with no events listed and need support when entering their first events, 

and; 
o 52 were unaware of compliance requirements and need ongoing monitoring. 

• 25 school districts listed as active providers either had incorrect users listed or did not respond to 
email outreach; these districts will be contacted in October of 2025 to update contact information. 

By the end of the outreach, 95% of providers had responded, and identified issues were corrected, 
resulting in a cleaner system and more accurate reporting. This cleanup improved the reliability of 
provider data, ensured accurate certificate reporting, and strengthened the integrity of the professional 
development tracking process. It also ensured that all providers were made aware of the requirements 
under ARM and helped build positive relationships, better positioning the professional development team 
to support administrators, districts, professional development organizations,  and educators in planning, 
monitoring, and aligning professional development activities with strategic goals. 

Finally, this outreach will support the transition to the new system by ensuring provider information is 
accurate, addressing  outstanding issues, and familiarizing all users with compliance expectations, 
thereby establishing a solid foundation and strengthening relationships for a smoother rollout. 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 5 of 24 
 

Data Analysis 
This report encompasses all professional development unit activities recorded in the Professional 
Development Unit Provider (PDUP) System for fiscal year 2025, covering the period from July 1, 2024, 
through June 30, 2025. Professional learning providers that did not issue OPI PDU certificates during this 
time period were omitted from this report. For a comprehensive list of approved OPI Professional 
Development Unit Providers and their designated users, please refer to the Approved Professional 
Development Unit Provider Directory, which is updated biweekly.  

Teacher Learning Hub data is also included in this report; however, the event categories listed in the Hub 
do not align with those in the PDUP system, as the data is collected through the Learning Management 
System rather than directly from the PDUP system.  

At the time of this report’s publication, all providers are required to submit the following data points to the 
OPI: 

• Title of the Activity 

• Description of the Activity 

• Professional Development Unit Activity Category 

• Instructor’s Name 

• Starting and Ending Dates of the Activity 

• Location of the Activity 

• Number of Hours 

• Number of Certificates Issued 

During fiscal year 2025, some providers may have canceled PDU activities after they were entered into 
the system without following the required procedure to remove those events from their provider records. 
At present, providers cannot delete events directly from the portal and must email the professional 
development specialist to request removal However, some providers did not return to the system to 
report the number of certificates issued for completed activities. OPI Professional Learning staff is 
actively working with these providers to ensure accurate reporting within the Professional Development 
Unit Provider System. Furthermore, the new system is being developed to prevent these issues from 
occurring in the future. 

Fiscal Year 2025 Provider Report Summary 
As of June 30, 2025, the PDUP System included 383 registered providers and 807 users. Collectively, 
they recorded 6,617 events, which resulted in the issuance of 892,802 professional development 
units (PDUs) to Montana educators. The number of certificates reported as issued throughout FY2025 

http://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=O_tCOrY_-ik%3d&portalid=182
http://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=O_tCOrY_-ik%3d&portalid=182


MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 6 of 24 
 

was 113,021. School districts, government agencies, and professional education organizations provided 
the majority of the professional development opportunities, units, and certificates.  The Teacher 
Learning Hub recorded 9,154 certificates issued for a total of 27,763 PDUs. The tables in Appendix  A 
present detailed provider-level data, including the number of professional development learning 
opportunites, PDUs, certificates issued per provider, and online offerings. 

Key Data Points 
This report provides a comprehensive overview of professional development unit (PDU) learning 
opportunities conducted by approved providers in Montana during fiscal year 2025. Key findings include: 

• Total PDUs Issued: A total of 920,565 PDUs were issued across 6,927 professional learning 
opportunities. 

• Top Providers: School districts, professional education organizations, and government agencies 
provided the majority of professional learning opportunities. 

• Certificates Issued: A total of 122,175 certificates were issued (compared to 57,035 in the previous 
year). 

• Online Participation: 6.5% of online PD opportunities were delivered through the Teacher Learning 
Hub (compared to 91% last year). 

Highlights 

o Teacher Learning Hub: 9,154 certificates issued, representing 8% of all attended PD. 
o Online PD total: 2,390 online professional development opportunities were offered. 

Professional Development Unit Opportunities Per Provider Type 
A professional development (PD) learning opportunity is a structured learning offering designed to enhance 
the knowledge, skills, and effectiveness of education professionals. Events consist of workshops, courses, 
institutes, or other instructional sessions that qualify for Professional Development Units (PDUs) under the 
requirements of ARM 10.55.714 , 10.57.215 , 10.57.216 , and 10.57.218. 

Provider Type Number of Events Percentage of Total 

School Districts 2627 38.8% 

Professional Education Organizations 2305 34.1% 

Government Agencies 1115 16.5% 
Universities and Colleges 385 5.7% 
Tribal 156 2.3% 
Teacher Learning Hub 155 2.3% 
County Superintendents 27 0.4% 
Total Number of Events 6,770  

 

https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/6c0f5c72-f365-40d7-8187-5aa3ca9deebc
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/f1937be9-c102-40d1-9d70-7fbd1934f3e1
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/499a8a81-1c43-4407-b36b-070d03bacaed
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/fde24bc2-cae9-4dbe-ae5b-faf8783ac0ec


MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 7 of 24 
 

Professional Development Units (PDUs) Issued Per Provider Type 

This table highlights the Professional Development Units (PDUs) issued by provider type. The figures are 
calculated by multiplying the total certificates issued for each event by the total PDUs available for that 
event. These numbers represent the hours accumulated by educators, categorized by provider type. 

A PDU, equivalent to one clock hour of professional learning, was previously referred to as a renewal unit. 
According to ARM 10.57.215(2)(a): “One hour of attendance at a professional development activity = one 
professional development unit.” 

Provider Type Total Number of 
PDUs awarded Percentage of Total 

Government Agencies 344,926 37.5% 

Professional Education Organizations 262,541 28.5% 

School Districts 227,507 24.7% 
Tribal 35,917 3.9% 
Teacher Learning Hub 27,763 3.0% 
Universities and Colleges 20,105 2.2% 
County Superintendents 1,806 0.2% 
Total Numbers of PDUs 920,565  

Certificates Issued per Provider Type  
Only Professional Development Unit (PDU) certificates issued by the OPI approved providers are recognized 
for license renewal. The table below summarizes the number of certificates awarded by each provider during 
FY 2025. 

Provider Type Number of Certs Percentage of Total 

Professional Education Organizations 40,960 35.7% 

School Districts 35,772 31.2% 

Government Agencies 19,246 16.8% 

Teacher Learning Hub 9,154 8.0% 

Tribal 6,954 6.1% 
Universities and Colleges 2,378 2.1% 
County Superintendents 197 0.2% 
Total Number of Certificates 114,661  



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 8 of 24 
 

 
Online Reporting Data  

This fiscal year, 2,390 online professional learning opportunities were available statewide. Of these, 6.5% 
were offered through the Teacher Learning Hub, increasing access for educators across Montana. 

Provider Type Number of Online 
Offerings Percentage of Total 

Professional Education Organizations 940 39.3% 

Government Agencies 738 30.9% 
School Districts 433 18.1% 
Teacher Learning Hub 155 6.5% 
Universities and Colleges 119 5.0% 
County Superintendents 5 0.2% 
Tribal 0 0 
Total Number of Online Events 2,390  

 

Categories in the Professional Development Unit Provider System 
The table below shows the frequency of each professional development category selected by providers for 
all activities entered in the Professional Development Unit Provider System. Providers may select multiple 
categories or choose ‘None of the Above’ if applicable. Social/Emotional/Behavioral and Special Education 
were the most frequently selected categories. 

Category Number of Times Selected 
Social/Emotional/Behavioral 857 
Special Education 613 
     Para Pathways 132 of 613 Activities in Sp. Ed 
General School Issues and Administration 562 
English Language Arts & Literacy 472 
Technology 466 
General Montana Content Standards 384 
Indian Education for All 323 
Integration with Other Subjects 309 
Assessment/Evaluation/Data 306 
Health and Physical Education 302 
Mathematics 297 
Science 296 
Social Studies 290 
Differentiation 281 
Career and Technical Education 232 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 9 of 24 
 

Category Number of Times Selected 
Arts 204 
Mentoring/Induction 169 
English Language Proficiency 142 
Library Media 76 
Nutrition 35 

Categories in the Teacher Learning Hub 
The table below shows the frequency of each professional development category selected by providers for all 
activities entered in the Teacher Learning Hub. Providers may select only one category. Mental Health & 
Behavior and Universal Instructional Strategies were the most frequently selected categories. Please note 
that the category options in the Teacher Learning Hub differ from those in the Professional Development Unit 
Provider System (PDUPs), which is why the two systems are reported separately. 

Category Number of Times Selected 
Mental Health & Behavior 1,514 
Universal Instructional Strategies 1,221 
General School Issues & Administration 1,185 
ELA & Literacy 1,146 
Special Education 745 
Indian Education for All 605 
Mathematics 593 
Support Staff 561 
Technology 341 
Assessment 235 
Fine Arts 233 
Suicide Prevention 209 
Science 153 
Social Studies 136 
OPI Employee Training Center 97 
MTSS 59 
Career & Technical Education 42 
PASS 42 
Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Populations 31 
Other 6 

 

The upgraded Professional Development Unit Provider System will provide a clearer view of professional 
development statewide, streamline event submission and tracking, ensure accurate reporting of 
participation and PDU issuance, properly vet professional development providers, and help administrators 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

      

Page 10 of 24 
 

and districts better align activities with educator and district goals. These improvements will enhance 
learning opportunities for Montana educators and support improved student outcomes.



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 11 of 24 

Appendix A- Professional Development Data Tables by Type 
County Superintendents 

Provider Name Number 
of Events 

Number of 
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Lake County Superintendent of Schools 1 6 11 0 
Fergus County Superintendent of Schools 5 33 49 1 
Gallatin County Superintendent of Schools 7 49 53 0 
Montana Catholic Schools 1 3 0 1 
Powell County Schools 5 53 66 0 
Richland County Superintendent of Schools 3 36 18 0 
Hill County Superintendent of Schools 5 24 0 3 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 12 of 24 
 

Government Agencies 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Bozeman Public Library Youth Services 1 2 0 0 

DLI/Jobs for Montana's Graduates 4 59 45 0 

DPHHS - Early Childhood Services Bureau 5 45 100 0 

Helena-Lewis and Clark National Forest 10 45 140 0 

Montana Board of Public Education 9 42 43 0 

Montana Fish Wildlife & Parks 22 152 179 0 

Montana Historical Society 73 475 430 41 

Montana School Boards Association 8 48 207 5 

Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind 84 261 416 25 

Montana State Library 3 3 3 3 

Montana Teachers' Retirement System 11 11 257 5 

Montana Youth Challenge Academy 10 63 88 3 

Office of Public Instruction - Accreditation and 
Licensure 

7 30 48 7 

Office of Public Instruction - Assessment 45 185 635 44 

Office of Public Instruction - Coordinated School Health 32 175 350 1 

Office of Public Instruction - CTAE Division 45 358 731 15 

Office of Public Instruction - Education Innovations 3 66 38 3 

Office of Public Instruction - Federal Programs 8 15 17 1 

Office of Public Instruction - Indian Education 126 228 702 122 

Office of Public Instruction - School Support  14 153 344 8 

Office of Public Instruction - Special Education 344 1415 12,933 284 

Office of Public Instruction - Standards, Instruction, and 
Professional Learning 

85 290 1,076 70 

OPI - School Improvement and Engagement 48 145 523 17 

OPI - Single Event Providers 130 1670 122 89 

OPI - Transformational Learning 1 7 0 0 

OPI-MAST Pilot 1 2 0 0 

STARBASE Montana 3 18 9 0 

 

  



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 13 of 24 
 

Professional Education Organizations 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

3Be Research  1 13 28 0 

406 Educational Consulting, LLC 26 160 504 0 

ACE-Alliance for Curriculum Enhancement 19 330 1683 8 

Action Potential Learning, LLC DBA Model Teaching 7 89 10 7 

American Prairie Field School  2 30 0 0 

American School Counselor Association 11 550 2 10 

Angst Learning Services, LLC 12 58 382 0 

Archie Bray Foundation 2 19 1 0 

AVID Center 2 12 0 1 

Big Sky Kodály (affiliate of the Organization of American 
Kodály Educators) 

3 14 65 1 

Big Sky Special Needs Coop 2 12 31 0 

Bighorn Basin Paleontological Institute 2 45 0 0 

Billings Area Family Violence Task Force 1 12 0 0 

Bitterroot Valley Education Coop 12 64 6 0 

Bonneville Environmental Foundation 4 9 4 4 

Bridger Educational Services, LLC 5 120 0 0 

Bridgercare 6 96 18 0 

Brightways Learning 10 102 158 3 

Buffalo Bill Center of the West 4 63 133 3 

Bureau of Education & Research  2 10 2 2 

Business Professional of America-Montana Association 1 9 48 0 

Cabinet Mountain Cooperative 4 42 52 0 

Carter County Museum 107 286 511 0 

CE Credits Online 32 1350 3 32 

Center for Emotional Education 2 34 2 2 

Central Montana Learning Resource Center Co-op 7 42 133 1 

Chickadee Community Services 3 130 41 3 

Child Care Resources 27 101 41 18 

Childhelp Speak Up Be Safe Curriculum 24 72 0 24 

Chrysalis School 15 128 103 4 

Code Girls United 1 26 35 1 

Delta Kappa Gamma Omicron Chapter 15 202 56 0 

Discovery Education 332 756 6,690 175 

Dolce Canto, Inc. 2 50 3 0 

Domestic and Sexual Violence Services 4 7 115 0 

Edufest 72 302 30 36 

Equity and Community LLC dba Change Impact 13 26 270 13 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 14 of 24 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of 
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Flathead Special Education Cooperative 1 8 4 0 

Friends of the Children 7 15 112 7 

Glacier Institute 15 116 3 0 

Golden Triangle Cooperative 294 2,840 6,976 62 

Great Divide Education Services 11 58 284 0 

Helena Xpress Singers 1 8 0 0 

High Trust Teacher Center 5 126 124 0 

Hockaday Museum of Art 6 144 66 0 

Insight Educational Services, Inc. 4 24 56 0 

Inspired Classroom 5 5 140 0 

Institute for Multi-Sensory Education 4 120 4 0 

Intermountain Children's Home and Services 16 47 76 2 

Jack Creek Preserve Foundation - Conservation Field 
School 

1 5 0 0 

Jeremy Bullock Safe Schools Summit 4 48 344 0 

JIGSAW Consulting 4 20 18 2 

Kaleva Law Office 8 52 781 4 

Koterba-Coach, Life Coach for Teachers 1 17 4 0 

Land To Hand Montana 8 26 56 0 

Leadership Montana 3 30 0 0 

MALT (Montana Association of Language Teachers) 4 18 98 0 

Mindful Pathways Education Consulting 17 34 0 0 

Missoula Area Education Cooperative 5 7 132 5 

Missoula Writing Collaborative 5 20 12 0 

MJ Murdock Charitable Trust 3 62 3 0 

Montana 4-H 3 19 22 1 

Montana Afterschool Alliance 34 137 390 13 

Montana Art Education Association 2 14 0 0 

Montana Association for Career and Technical 
Education 

1 12 125 0 

Montana Association for Pupil Transportation 6 61 34 0 

Montana Association for the Education of Young 
Children 

1 16 0 0 

Montana Association of Family and Consumer Sciences 2 16 69 0 

Montana Association of School Business Officials 32 211 7 17 

Montana Association of School Psychologists 12 40 219 10 

Montana Audubon Center 1 15 1 0 

Montana Business Education Association 1 24 8 0 

Montana Center for Inclusive Education/Professional 
Learning 

48 144 383 18 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 15 of 24 
 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Montana Coaches Association 1 19 283 0 

Montana Council for Exceptional Children (MCEC) 12 102 202 0 

Montana Council of Teachers of Mathematics 2 30 28 1 

Montana Council on Economic Education 6 32 88 4 

Montana Environmental Education Association 31 311 52 3 

Montana Farmers Union 14 101 43 4 

Montana Football Hall of Fame 1 3 0 0 

Montana Learning Center 2 48 33 1 

Montana Library Association 8 77 35 0 

Montana Mindfulness Project 2 16 22 1 

Montana Music Educators Association 2 38 250 0 

Montana Natural History Center 1 20 0 0 

Montana PBS 56 120 1,393 56 

Montana Pediatrics 5 5 22 5 

Montana Post Secondary Educational Opportunities 
Council 

1 5 231 0 

Montana Professional Learning Collaborative (MTPLC) 57 571 5,829 24 

Montana Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf 6 11 43 0 

Montana Repertory Theatre 2 20 0 0 

Montana School Counselor Association 19 58 477 13 

Montana Small Schools Alliance 26 133 559 12 

Montana State Literacy Association 5 60 295 0 

Montana State Music Teachers Association 1 10 1 0 

Montana Youth in Transition 1 15 0 0 

Northwest Earth and Space Sciences Pathways at 
Central Washington University 

3 45 135 3 

Northwest Montana Reading Council 2 12 183 0 

OPI Montana DRIVE Program 1 8 0 0 

Ortho Montana 5 32 85 0 

Pacific Northwest Library Association 1 21 0 0 

Park County Special Education Coop 5 30 130 0 

PESI, Inc 37 108 57 0 

Prairie View Curriculum Consortium 22 38 247 14 

Prairie View Special Services 3 14 29 0 

Professional Development Institute 1 50 0 1 

Rachel Bemis 1 4 0 0 

Reach Higher Montana 1 24 0 0 

Red Lodge Clay Center 3 35 2 0 

Region I CSPD 38 153 748 28 

Region II CSPD 51 176 498 38 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 16 of 24 
 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Region III CSPD/Montana Center 39 243 849 3 

Region IV CSPD 22 127 449 6 

School Administrators of Montana 41 543 1,608 10 

School Services of Montana 91 351 2,048 23 

Society of Health & Physical Educators (SHAPE) 
Montana 

2 19 0 0 

Special Olympics Montana Unified Champion Schools 39 58 461 0 

STRIVE 6 40 384 6 

Tamarack Grief Resource Center 2 5 23 0 

Teaching Channel 11 420 11 11 

TeachMe Professional Development 102 276 190 102 

The Clay Studio of Missoula 13 26 0 0 

The Family Tree Center 1 2 7 0 

The Gilder Lehrman Institute of American History 7 105 7 7 

The National Energy Education Development Project 3 18 20 0 

The Source for Learning 43 64 20 43 

Thrive Education 7 84 8 0 

Tim Tharp, Certified Instructor for Youth MHFA and QPR  5 21 64 0 

Transformative Reading Teacher Group 5 58 143 0 

Treasure State Orff (Montana Chapter of American Orff 
Schulwerk Association) 

14 80 321 0 

Uplevel U: Music 10 48 0 10 

Walsworth Yearbooks 1 16 0 0 

WM-CSPD 35 144 449 17 

Yellowstone Art Museum 2 15 4 0 

Yellowstone Bighorn Research Association 1 24 0 0 

Yellowstone Forever 9 360 0 0 

Yellowstone-West/Carbon County Special Services 
Coop 

4 16 94 0 

Youth Entrepreneurs 5 52 18 0 
 

  



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 17 of 24 
 

School Districts 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Absarokee Public Schools 1 8 16 0 

Amsterdam School District 1 6 9 0 

Anaconda School District #10 21 87 896 3 

Arlee Joint School District #8 2 6 43 0 

Ashland Public School 6 68 42 1 

Bainville Public School 1 16 20 0 

Baker Public Schools 6 39 52 0 

Bear Paw Cooperative 6 59 40 0 

Belfry School District 3 16 0 0 

Belgrade Public Schools 64 433 334 1 

Big Sky School District #72 2 22 18 0 

Big Timber Grade School 2 4 38 0 

Bigfork School District #38 1 60 1 0 

Billings Catholic Schools 41 438 3,061 1 

Billings Public Schools 320 2,498 2,963 134 

Bonner School 5 17 0 2 

Box Elder School District 13G 4 48 84 1 

Bozeman Public Schools 94 331 415 77 

Bridger School District 5 13 86 1 

Brockton Public Schools 19 44 335 0 

Browning Public Schools 36 847 754 5 

Butte Central Catholic High School 1 10 15 0 

Butte Central Catholic Schools 1 6 0 0 

Butte School District #1 33 142 1,079 13 

Cascade Public Schools 1 6 25 0 

Cayuse Prairie School 2 13 14 0 

Chinook Public Schools 1 4 0 1 

Choteau School District 1 5 35 57 0 

Circle Schools 8 71 0 6 

Clancy Elementary 6 29 76 0 

Colstrip Public Schools 5 8 91 4 

Columbia Falls Schools 55 411 661 3 

Corvallis School District 22 162 429 0 

Cottonwood Day School 2 18 0 1 

Culbertson K-12 Schools 11 52 185 4 

Cut Bank Public Schools 321 1,383 2,030 0 

Darby Public Schools 5 29 67 1 

De La Salle Blackfeet School 11 224 108 0 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 18 of 24 
 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Dillon Elementary 1 3 1 0 

Dodson School District 6 50 102 0 

Drummond Public Schools 3 12 30 1 

East Glacier Park Grade School  4 24 24 0 

East Helena Public Schools District #9 32 153 495 0 

Elder Grove School 5 40 84 0 

Elysian School 7 34 36 1 

Eureka Public Schools 15 63 188 6 

Evergreen School District # 50  46 219 967 0 

Fair-Mont-Egan School District #3 3 16 8 0 

Fairfield Public Schools - District #21 1 6 4 0 

Fairview Public Schools 5 10 140 0 

Florence-Carlton School 5 27 68 0 

Forsyth Public Schools 18 44 138 0 

Fort Benton High School/Middle School 1 2 0 0 

Frazer School District 1 14 0 1 

Frenchtown School District #40 6 30 472 1 

Fromberg School 3 5 49 0 

Gallatin Gateway School District #35 8 75 126 0 

Gardiner Public School 5 33 0 0 

Glasgow K-12 Schools 9 47 0 2 

Glendive Public Schools 7 26 51 0 

Great Falls Central Catholic High School  2 19 3 0 

Great Falls Public Schools 63 398 1,135 1 

Greenfield School District #75 3 27 0 3 

Hamilton K-12 Schools 26 99 406 0 

Hardin Public Schools 13 220 573 0 

Harlem Public Schools District #12 1 4 80 0 

Harlowton Public Schools 2 6 5 2 

Havre Public Schools 62 393 757 11 

Helena Public Schools 141 1,026 1,193 11 

Hellgate Elementary School District 7 102 0 0 

Heritage Academy 8 156 47 3 

Heritage Christian School 15 17 120 0 

Hinsdale Public School 1 1 1 1 

Hobson School District #25 8 340 16 4 

Huntley Project K-12 Schools 2 15 48 0 

Jefferson High School 1 2 25 0 

Joliet Public School 3 30 32 1 

Kalispell Public Schools 199 1,432 1,090 31 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 19 of 24 
 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Kila School 3 76 27 0 

Lambert Public Schools 2 14 7 1 

Lame Deer Public Schools 6 12 127 0 

Laurel Public Schools 29 104 1,625 4 

Lewistown Public Schools 4 66 105 1 

Libby K-12 Schools 19 75 643 2 

Lincoln K-12 Schools 2 12 39 0 

Livingston School District #1 and #4 15 65 230 1 

Lockwood School 14 185 74 8 

Lolo School District 2 24 108 0 

Lone Rock School District  2 11 0 0 

Malta Public Schools 2 32 16 1 

Manhattan Christian School 6 13 195 0 

Manhattan Public Schools 5 17 232 1 

Marion Public schools 2 10 0 0 

Miles City Unified School District 11 50 411 0 

Missoula County Public Schools - The Lifelong Learning 
Center 

15 178 0 0 

Missoula County Public Schools 138 862 2,576 2 

Monforton School District #27 12 38 54 3 

Montana City School 1 2 36 0 

Montana Digital Academy 28 102 106 21 

Nashua K-12 Schools 5 11 70 0 

Noxon School District #10 2 8 70 0 

Olney Bissell School District 58 1 2 0 0 

Opheim School 3 13 8 3 

Philipsburg K-12 Public Schools 6 6 102 0 

Pine Hills Correctional Facility 1 18 13 0 

Plains Public Schools 7 27 195 0 

Plentywood K-12 Schools 9 85 294 1 

Plevna School District 7 54 47 0 

Polson Public Schools 66 227 1,673 0 

Poplar Elementary 11 63 80 0 

Poplar Public Schools 1 2 80 0 

Potomac School District #11 3 14 25 0 

Ramsay Schools 2 15 0 0 

Red Lodge School District #1 2 24 20 0 

Roberts School District 1 16 0 0 

Rocky Boy Schools 4 16 68 0 

Ronan School District #30 12 24 20 0 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 20 of 24 
 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Roundup School District 55 & 55H 8 20 0 7 

Roy School District  2 8 16 0 

Scobey K-12 Schools 2 32 2 2 

Shepherd Public Schools 1 12 65 0 

Sheridan School District #5 2 2 0 2 

Shields Valley Schools  6 50 47 3 

Sidney Public Schools 3 61 27 1 

Smith Valley School District 89 14 82 209 0 

Somers School District 29 28 182 627 0 

St Regis K-12 School District 17 255 340 0 

St. Andrew School 10 60 9 4 

St. Ignatius School District 3 18 150 0 

St. Jude Thaddeus School 2 4 6 2 

St. Labre Indian Schools 7 147 0 0 

Stanford School District #12 2 6 28 0 

Stevensville Public Schools 3 16 0 1 

Swan Valley Elementary School 1 12 5 1 

Sweetgrass County High School 2 10 30 0 

Target Range School District #23 1 16 0 0 

Thompson Falls Public Schools 14 48 450 0 

Three Forks Schools 5 17 174 0 

Townsend School District #1 7 65 93 2 

Trinity Lutheran School - Billings 1 6 13 0 

Troy Public Schools 6 50 242 2 

Two Eagle River School 1 72 26 0 

Ulm Elementary School 2 12 14 0 

Valier School District #18 2 16 28 0 

Vaughn School 1 17 1 0 

West Glacier Elementary 1 3 10 1 

West Valley School District  2 4 10 0 

West Yellowstone School District 69 27 251 406 0 

Westby School District 1 21 15 0 

White Sulphur Springs School District 8 1 12 10 0 

Whitefish Public Schools 60 407 386 14 

Whitehall Public Schools 1 2 18 0 

Wibaux Public Schools 2 12 0 0 

Willow Creek Schools 1 1 0 1 

Winnett Schools 1 9 6 0 

Wolf Point School District 9 60 335 0 

Yellowstone Academy 2 20 8 0 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 21 of 24 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of 
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Yellowstone Boys and Girls Ranch 1 6 10 0 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 22 of 24 

Tribal* 

Provider Name 
Number 

of 
Events 

Number of 
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

CSKT Education Department 156 715 6,954 0 
* Note that some organizations that could be considered tribal have previously self-identified under other 
provider categories. The new system will allow entities to identify as both tribal and an additional category.



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 23 of 24 
 

Universities and Colleges 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of  
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Carroll College 1 4 2 0 

Dawson Community College 4 72 4 0 

DIG Field School - University of Washington 1 40 2 0 

Flathead Valley Community College 5 76 4 0 

Fort Peck Community College 3 90 45 0 

Great Falls College MSU 11 80 157 0 

Helena College  2 16 8 2 

Maureen and Mike Mansfield Center at the University of 
Montana  

2 2 0 2 

Michael Cunningham AGBU Armenian Virtual College, 
Yerevan, Armenia 

53 342 0 53 

Miles Community College 4 52 6 1 

Missoula College UM, Outreach Office 4 96 5 4 

Montana Early Childhood Project / MSU 2 2 2 0 

Montana State University - Modern Languages and 
Literature 

3 60 39 0 

Montana State University American Choral Directors 
Chapter 

1 12 13 0 

Montana State University Billings - Elk River Writing 
Project 

3 60 47 0 

Montana State University Dyslexia & Innovation 
Symposium 

1 3 40 0 

Montana State University Extension Directors Office 4 48 104 0 

Montana State University Music Department 2 27 0 0 

Montana State University Science Math Resource Center 5 48 14 4 

Montana State University Teacher Education Program 5 55 10 0 

Montana State University-Northern College of Arts, 
Sciences, and Education 

3 15 13 0 

Montana Team Nutrition Program 1 3 0 0 

Montana Tech - Petroleum Engineering Dept 2 62 9 0 

Montana Tech Athletics 3 21 0 0 

Montana Tech of the University of Montana 11 276 77 0 

MSU - Department of Education 2 17 4 0 

MSU Center for Research on Rural Education 13 26 264 0 

MSU Extension Family and Consumer Sciences Program 3 48 24 0 

MSU Valley County Extension 5 80 0 0 

MSU-Billings College of Education 7 14 23 0 



MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT PROVIDER SYSTEM 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page 24 of 24 

Provider Name 
Number 

of Events 

Number of 
PDUs 

Available 

Number of 
Certificates 

Issued 

Online 
Offerings 

Osher Lifelong Learning Institute at University of 
Montana (MOLLI) 

51 315 3 10 

Rocky Mountain College 5 196 5 0 

Salish Kootenai College 18 141 207 3 

spectrUM Discovery Area (University of Montana science 
museum) 

20 80 140 15 

Stone Child College 14 67 182 0 

The Art of Education 2 30 2 2 

The University of Montana - Montana Safe Schools 
Center 

1 8 0 1 

The University of Montana – Office of Educational 
Initiatives and Innovation 

5 30 20 0 

TRIO Upward Bound at the University of Montana 16 371 16 0 

UM - Center for Children, Families and Workforce 
Development 

14 86 359 8 

UM - College of Education 26 284 157 0 

UM - Rural Institute 5 15 29 3 

UM Bitterroot 1 10 4 0 

UM Dept of English 2 14 10 0 

University of Montana - Flathead Lake Biological Station 1 6 7 0 

University of Montana Conference Services 3 34 62 0 

University of Montana Department of Psychology 2 4 18 1 

University of Montana Linguistics Program 21 70 203 0 

University of Montana School of Public and Community 
Health Sciences 

10 20 09 10 

Yellowstone Writing Project 1 7 37 0 

Youth Aware of Mental Health 1 36 1 0 



PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT UNIT
PROVIDER SYSTEM UPDATES

(PDUPS)

PREPARED FOR BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION
NOVEMBER 2025

MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION



Current Definition of Terms
The Profess ional  Development Unit  Provider System (PDUPS),  manages events ,
providers ,  and users for  those providing profess ional  development for  Montana
educators.   The frequent ly  used terms in the current PDUPS System are def ined
below:

Any ent i ty  or  indiv idual  who is  providing profess ional  development for  Montana educators.  Each
provider must have at least  one user l i s ted.  

Provider

PDUPS
This  system houses the providers and users who issue off ic ia l  OPI  profess ional  development unit
cert i f icates (PDUs) which are used for  teacher l icensing.  I t  a lso preserves the events ,
cert i f icates,  and hours of  profess ional  development.

User
A representat ive of the provider who is  responsible for  maintain ing records,  data,  and communicat ion on behalf  of
the provider.  This  person is  author ized to add events and issue cert i f icates on the provider ’s  behalf .



Problem Statement

#1

Fol lowing the 2023 updates to ARM, the Standards,  Instruct ion,  and Profess ional
Learning (SIPL)  Unit  ident i f ied three pr imary issues with the current Profess ional
Development Unit  Provider System pol ic ies and funct ional i t ies ,  including
inconsistencies and non-compl iance with ARM requirements.

Inconsistent
Reporting of

Provider Data

Limited
Registration

Requirements 
for Providers

Lack of Evaluative 
Data on

Professional
Development Events 

#2 #3

RELEVANT ADMINISTRATIVE RULE OF MONTANA 10.55.714 , 10.57.215 , 10.57.216 AND 10.57.218

https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/6c0f5c72-f365-40d7-8187-5aa3ca9deebc
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/f1937be9-c102-40d1-9d70-7fbd1934f3e1
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/499a8a81-1c43-4407-b36b-070d03bacaed
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/fde24bc2-cae9-4dbe-ae5b-faf8783ac0ec


Current Provider Vetting System

The SIPL unit recently coordinated with IT to add the
compliance check boxes. This was not previously a
requirement. 

Provider submits request to PDUPS system using
the form pictured here. 

Coordinators review submitted information and
approve or deny. 

Coordinators are only able to deny if the information is
incorrect, a provider account already exists, or an
obvious violation of ARM requirements is discovered
during review of name. 

Approved providers receive their account
information, user manual, and tutorial video. 

No further actions or evaluations are conducted. 



The number of events (excluding

the Teacher Learning Hub), that

were entered into PDUPS during

FY 25. This is 3,053 more events

than FY 24. OPI has no evaluative

data regarding the objectives or

quality of the events. 

883
users across 584 provider

accounts

0%
of providers are adequately vetted by the

current system before being granted

“approved OPI provider” status. 

17%
of accounts were found to have

issues with fiscal year reporting or

inaccurate certificate counts,

including 15 accounts with major

issues spanning multiple events.

Evidence/Data 

6,772 

79
accounts retired due to inactivity



SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY &
MAINTENANCE

VETTING &
EVALUATIONS

CONTINUED
ACCOUNTABILITY 

PROVIDER
GROWTH

Solutions
Establish a robust approval and review process for providers. This process

should include a tiered system that fosters continual improvement and clarifies

procedures for revoking provider status.  

Create an effective system that collects data, communicates with existing

agency systems, increases staff capacity, and houses an internal evaluation

form tied to certificates. 

Field test and pilot the approval process with internal and external providers

to ensure alignment with agency priorities. 

Periodically offer professional development provider training. 

Identify parameters for reviewing event alignment to Professional Learning

Standards, ARM, and ISAP where appropriate.  



Updated Definition of Terms
The updated PDUP system now dist inguishes between hosts  and instructors ,  enabl ing
feedback to be col lected for  each role separately .  This  enhancement st rengthens
qual i ty  assurance by al lowing for  more targeted feedback and greater overs ight of
indiv idual  profess ional  learning events.

Any organizat ion,  ent i ty ,  or  inst i tut ion that organizes opportunit ies for  educators to engage in
profess ional  development.

Host

Instructor
An indiv idual  who del ivers  profess ional  development to educators.

User
The author ized person or  persons who act as the host  account user .  They input the event and part ic ipant data and
act as an account administ rator  on behalf  of  the host .  



 Function Old System New PDUPS System How the Update Helps

Reporting
Manual reporting; limited

data
Automated reporting of PDUs, participation,

and compliance metrics
Reduces workload, improves accuracy,

supports compliance

User Management
Contact info updates ad

hoc; no reminders
Annual pop-up reminders for users, hosts,

instructors
Ensures accurate communication and

system integrity

Search & Discovery
Limited or no search

functionality
Search by topic, category, instructor, host, or

region
Simplifies finding relevant events and

instructors

Provider Management
Manual tracking of

providers; limited history

Automated directories, weekly updates, 6-year
activity tracking, account merges, reusable

forms

Improves data management, saves time,
maintains historical records

Data Integrity &
Compliance

Manual tracking of inactive
users, privacy, and ARM

compliance

Automatic removal of inactive users/providers,
archive events after 6 years, ARM compliance

feedback

Maintains compliance, improves privacy,
ensures up-to-date data

Certificates &
Feedback

Manual certificate
issuance; feedback

collection inconsistent

Evaluations required before certificate
issuance, TeachMT integration, manual override

available

Ensures compliance, links PDUs to
licensure, improves feedback collection

COMPARISONS



 Function Old System New PDUPS System How the Update Helps

Alignment with
Standards

Inconsistent Full alignment with ARM and district ISAP goals
Ensures all PD qualifies for PDUs and

meets state standards

Communication & 
Engagement

Emails sent externally; no
opt-in lists

Direct system emails to providers; participants
can opt-in for event notifications

Improves engagement, reduces
administrative work, enhances

outreach

Event Management
Tools*

Limited editing; no bulk
upload

Bulk upload via Excel/CSV, duplicate/edit past
events, manage event types, fees, conference

settings

Saves time, simplifies management,
ensures consistency

Registration &
Attendance*

Paper-based or external
tracking

Online registration, auto-populated attendance
sheets, real-time stats

Saves time, reduces errors, links
attendance to event records

Event Calendars*
Minimal tracking; no

central calendar
Internal OPI calendar + optional external calendar

for educators and hosts

Improves transparency,
comprehensive tracking, and public

access

COMPARISONS



NEW SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS:

Automated tracking and reporting improve accuracy and compliance oversight.
Providers must document alignment to district goals, evidence-based practices,
and adult learning principles.
Dashboards and automated reminders reduce administrative workload and support
consistent compliance.
Evaluation-linked certificate issuance, ensuring every professional learning
experience is meaningful and auditable.

Direct certificate uploads to TeachMT , reducing errors and administrative burden
for educators.
Real-time attendance tracking, increasing transparency and accuracy.
Enhanced event governance , with more robust requirements for event entry.

CUSTOMER SERVICE FOCUS:

Educators receive timely, accurate PDU credit without the need for manual
uploads.
Hosts and instructors benefit from simplified workflows, clear expectations, and
timely feedback.
Administrators gain real-time, reliable data to guide planning, compliance, and
professional learning decisions.

RELEVANT ADMINISTRATIVE RULE OF MONTANA 10.55.714 , 10.57.215 , 10.57.216 AND 10.57.218

UPDATED SYSTEM HIGHLIGHTS

https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/6c0f5c72-f365-40d7-8187-5aa3ca9deebc
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/f1937be9-c102-40d1-9d70-7fbd1934f3e1
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/499a8a81-1c43-4407-b36b-070d03bacaed
https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/fde24bc2-cae9-4dbe-ae5b-faf8783ac0ec


Customer Service Enhancements
In  FY2025,  OPI  conducted outreach to 883 users across 584 provider accounts,  achieving:

95% response rate
Updated contact information
Correct ion of report ing errors
Ret i rement of  inact ive or  non-compl iant accounts

Dedicated support  for  providers and educators ,  including train ing,  FAQs,  and technical  guidance.
Streaml ined workf lows for  submitt ing events ,  approvals ,  and updates,  reducing administ rat ive
bott lenecks.
Robust  data analyt ics to ident i fy  t rends in profess ional  learning part ic ipat ion and outcomes.
Cont inuous feedback loops f rom hosts ,  instructors ,  and educators to inform ongoing system
improvements.
Scalable infrastructure designed to accommodate future growth and addit ional  report ing requirements.

Educators :  Benef i t  f rom streaml ined workf lows for  cert i f icate uploads and PDU credit  t racking and
part ic ipate in cont inuous feedback loops to improve the system and profess ional  learning
exper iences.
Hosts/Instructors:  Guidance on event setup,  attendance tracking,  and data entry .
OPI :  Enhanced overs ight and data analyt ics st rengthen qual i ty  assurance and cont inuous improvement
across the system.

CAPACITY AND SUPPORT ENHANCEMENTS:

BENEFITS BY AUDIENCE:



IT
SIPL

OPI

ROLES AND DUTIES
Professional

Learning

Manager

Establ ish goals ,  object ives ,  and key
performance indicators (KPIs)  for  the
system.

Col laborate with stakeholders ,
including educators ,  administ rators ,
and community  members ,  to gather
input and foster  support .

Faci l i tate communicat ion and
outreach regarding the new system.

Manage day-to-day operat ions of  the
profess ional  learning unit ,  including
schedul ing and logist ics for  t rain ing
sess ions and events.  ( internal)

Implement the vett ing process for
profess ional  learning providers ,
ensur ing compl iance with establ ished
standards.

Provide train ing and support  to
educators on us ing the profess ional
learning system and access ing
avai lable resources.

Support  the work as determined by
the Profess ional  Learning Manager.

 
Offer  h istor ical  context  and
exper ient ia l  knowledge. 

Support  the onboarding of the new
special ist .  

Professional

Learning

Specialist

SIPL Team

Members

Licensure
Provide feedback on system

funct ional i ty  to ensure unit  needs

compl iance.  

OPI Staff

Part ic ipate in an internal  pi lot  of
the system. 

Apply for  an internal  provider
vett ing task force that meets
per iodical ly  to rev iew
appl icat ions.  

IT  Specialist
Col laborate with the SIPL team to
create and pi lot  a funct ional
system for  PDUPS that meets both
internal  and external  needs and
overcomes the problems ident i f ied
in th is  presentat ion.  



JULY 2023 SEPT.  2024 NOV. 2024

ARM 10.55.714 was updated

to al ign with Learning Forward
Standards for  Profess ional
Learning

to include connect ion to ISAP
and graduate prof i le

to include safety ,  wel l-being
and mental  health

to include opportunit ies for
ref lect ion and feedback

to include coaching and
expert  support

Established standardized vetting
protocols for  al l  host  and instructor
appl icat ions,  as wel l  as for
indiv idual  event submiss ions.

Assigned clear responsibi l i t ies
for  communicat ions,  provider
outreach,  and technical  support .

Hired a Professional Development
Specialist  dedicated to managing
and support ing th is  work.

Approval to move forward.

Began developing the core
messaging  for  the new system and
evaluat ion tool .

 

Created FAQs  to support  c lar i ty
and understanding.

Established a communication
timeline  for  ro l lout  and outreach.

Key Partners:  S IPL team, Managers ,  Senior  Managers ,  IT ,  and Legal .  

INTERNAL TIMELINE



FEB.  2025 SEPT.  2025 DEC. 2025

INTERNAL TIMELINE

Drafted and refined the provider
application process ,  including
el igibi l i ty  cr i ter ia and required
documentat ion.

Developed the init ial  provider
appeal process for  denied
appl icat ions.

Mapped workflows  for  provider
approval ,  renewal ,  and event
submiss ions.

Began receiving sandbox
environments  and provided detai led
feedback for  system ref inements.

Finalized the standardized
Professional Learning Evaluation
Tool  and began planning and
developing associated train ing
mater ia ls .

Reviewed project milestones  and
revised implementation t imelines
to al ign with system updates and
train ing needs.

Form the  internal  task force

Internal  providers  are al lowed to
apply  and test  the evaluat ion tool .

Gather feedback and refine
communicat ion mater ia ls  as
necessary

Key Partners:  S IPL team, Managers ,  Senior  Manager ,  IT ,  and Legal .



MAY. 2026 JUNE 2026 JULY 2026

Send  init ial  email  communication  to al l
current  profess ional  learning providers
with a detai led overv iew of the upcoming
changes.  

Share a public-facing announcement  on
the OPI  website and press re leases.

Begin outreach to  our  most popular  PL
providers.  

Open  the off ic ia l  re-application
process .  A l l  communicat ions should
emphasize that al l  providers must re-
apply by the September 2026
deadl ine.

Conduct informational webinars  for
PL providers to introduce the tool ,
answer quest ions,  and provide an
in i t ia l  t imel ine for  re-appl icat ion.

Distr ibute recorded versions  of  the
webinars and supplemental  mater ia ls .

Key Partners:  Profess ional  Learning Providers including - School  Dist r icts ,  Government Organizat ions,

Profess ional  Educat ion Organizat ions,  Tr ibal  Organizat ions,  and Col leges/Univers i t ies as wel l  as any other

ent i t ies or  persons tasked with the del ivery or  administ rat ion or  profess ional  development.  

Offer a "sandbox" environment
for  hosts  and instructors to
explore the tool  and begin
prepar ing for  the re-appl icat ion
process.

Provide technical  support ,
resources,  and dedicated
contact points  for  quest ions

EXTERNAL TIMELINE



AUG. 2026 AUG. 2026JULY 2026

EXTERNAL TIMELINE

Targeted outreach  to
providers who have not yet
responded or  completed their
appl icat ions

Use regional  meet ings and
conferences to amplify
messaging  and remind
providers of  the upcoming
deadl ine.

One-month countdown
communication blasts  (emai ls ,
social  media,  website
announcements)  to ensure al l
providers understand the urgency
of complet ing the re-appl icat ion
process.

Aug 30th -  Turn off  the old
system  

Sept 1  -  Launch new system

Launch training  sessions
focused on the actual  re-
appl icat ion process us ing
the new tool .

Host  virtual  off ice hours
where providers can receive
one-on-one ass istance in
real-t ime.

Key Partners:  Profess ional  Learning Providers including - School  Dist r icts ,  Government Organizat ions,

Profess ional  Educat ion Organizat ions,  Tr ibal  Organizat ions,  and Col leges/Univers i t ies as wel l  as any other

ent i t ies or  persons tasked with the del ivery or  administ rat ion or  profess ional  development.  



Create tutor ia ls  once system is
complete and share out.

Customer support  cal ls
F inal ize provider outreach and
support  mater ia ls  to ensure a
smooth t ransi t ion.

Col lect feedback from educators ,
hosts ,  and instructors to ref ine
workf lows and enhance usabi l i ty .

F inal ize system components for
fu l l  funct ional i ty  and compl iance.

Incorporate sandbox feedback to
opt imize the user exper ience.

Phased launch:  internal  staff  f i rst ,
then al l  hosts  and instructors .

Val idate report ing and cert i f icate
processes to ensure accuracy and
rel iabi l i ty .

Review appl icat ions and approve
submiss ions to maintain qual i ty
and compl iance.

Col lect and analyze system
feedback from educators ,  hosts ,
and instructors to ref ine
workf lows.

Use data from dashboards to
guide system enhancements and
profess ional  learning decis ions.

NEXT STEPS

PROVIDER AND 
USER SUPPORT

SYSTEM READINESS 
AND TESTING

MONITORING AND
CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT



LONG TERM GOALS/WISHLIST
Special  Circumstances

Automated secure systems for  registrat ion and PDU del ivery

Conference planning tool

Statewide calendar of  profess ional  development events

Categor ies such as al ignment to graduate prof i le ,  ISAP,  etc.

Post- launch plan detai l ing ongoing technical  support ,  user
ass istance,  and system updates,  ensur ing the PDUPS cont inues to
operate smoothly  and meets user  needs after  launch.  

Badging,  Micro-credent ials ,  and more!



THANK YOU
Contact:
Eva Cox

Profess ional  Development Special ist
opipdups@mt.gov
406-444-0256



ITEM 25 

ACTION ON THE SUPERINTENDENT’S 
REQUEST TO REVISE TITLE 10, CHAPTER 

55, SPECIAL EDUCATION STANDARDS AND 
INITIAL REVIEW OF NEW RULES 

PERTAINING TO A CLASS 9 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION TECHNICIAN LICENSE 

Dr. Julie Murgel 
Patrick Cates 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 
Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Presentation for Revision Timeline for ARM Title 10, Chapter 57 
Education Licensure to include a new certificate for Special 
Education Technicians 

Presenter(s) Patrick Cates and Julie Murgel 

Position Title Senior Manager of Safety and Student Supports 
Chief Program Officer 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This agenda item is presented to the BPE to consider approval for 
the timeline and process for the revision of ARM Chapter 57: 
Educator Licensure 

Attached is a rationale statement, proposed timeline, and overview 
for the addition of a Special Education Technician Certificate.   

Requested Decision(s) Action Item 

Related Issue(s) ARM 10.57 
20-4-106, MCA

Recommendation(s) Superintendent of Public Instructions recommends approval to 
open Chapter 57 for a limited addition.   



CHAPTER 57:  Licensure Standards Revision Timeline and Overview

Rationale:  Using the rulemaking process involving independent stakeholder groups, Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, Susie Hedalen is seeking to revise Chapter 57 Educator Licensure to add a new certification option 
for a Special Education Technician. According to 20-4-106(2), MCA, “the superintendent of public instruction 
shall issue specialist certificates, and the board of public education shall adopt specialist certification policies. 
The specialist certificate may be issued to an otherwise qualified applicant who has the training, experience, 
and license required under the standards of the board of public education for the certification of a profession 
other than the teaching profession.”   

The purpose of the Special Education Technician certification is to increase the capacity of Montana’s 
paraprofessionals to provide a higher level of support to Montana students with disabilities. In particular, the 
purpose is to certify a technician, who meets requirements to provide technical services to a special education 
supervising teacher.   

FAQs: 

1. What is a special education technician? “Special education technician" means an individual who is
certified to provide services to students receiving special education, works under the direction of the
supervising special education teacher, and meets established requirements.

2. What is the difference between a special education technician and a special education para-
professional? A special education technician must complete approved online special education
modules, 1,000 hours of documented special education work, or relevant work, and 4 introductory
college education courses as determined by the State Superintendent. Whereas a paraprofessional
providing instructional support to individuals with disabilities is not required to have documented field-
work or post-secondary training or education.

3. Who can supervise a special education technician? A supervising special education teacher can
supervise a special education technician. “Supervising special education teacher” means an individual
who holds a Class 1 professional license or Class 2 standard license with a special education (PK-12)
endorsement as outlined in 10.57.410 and 10.57.411 and has a minimum of one year of teaching
experience as a special education teacher specified in 10.57.102(19).

4. What services may a special education technician provide? Special education technician under the
direction of a supervising special education teacher may:

• schedule and coordinate special education meetings;
• collect, prepare and organize student specific data and information;



• deliver instruction in 1:1 and small group settings; and
• conduct mandatory statewide assessments.

5. What services may a special education technician NOT provide?
• conduct or interpret formalized and standardized special education evaluations unless

otherwise qualified to do so;
• access the Student Information System (SIS) for purposes of creating and the development

of documents related to the special education record with the exception of the
access/contact log.

• make independent decisions of implementing the student’s IEP; or
• convene and conduct a special education meeting.

6. What are the qualifications to receive a certification of completion to become a special
education technician? The proposed requirements and qualifications for special education
technician license are:

• hold at least a high school diploma or high school equivalency credential;
• completion of the approved special education technician online modules as determined by

the Superintendent of Public Instruction;
• proof of 1,000 hours of documented special education work, or relevant work experience

(acceptable documentation of relevant work experience is determined by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction).

• verified completion of four introductory courses in education as determined by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction and provided by an approved professional
development provider pursuant to ARM 10.57.216; and

• verified completion of the online course "An Introduction to Indian Education for All in
Montana.”

7. What age group can a special education technician provide services to? A special education
technician can provide services in a school setting from early childhood through grade twelve. This may
include students ages three through twenty-one.

Proposed Timeline: 

Presentation to BPE to open Chapter 57:  November 19-21, 2025 
Board Approval of Timeline Revision:  November 19-21, 2025 
Research and Development:       November 2025 – December 2025 
Adoption Phase         January 2025 - May 2025  
Adoption       May 2025 
Implementation July 1, 2025 

Contact Information: 

Patrick Cates, Senior Manager of Safety and Student Supports: patrick.cates@mt.gov 



ITEM 26 

ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR 
PREPARATION PROIVDER REPORT 

Crystal Andrews 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 
Date: November 19-21, 2025 

Presentation Presentation for Education Preparation Program Report 

Presenter Crystal Andrews 

Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This presentation will provide an overview of Montana’s 
ten Educator Preparation providers as outlined in ARM 
Chapter 10.58.104(1) and 10.58.104(2). The report will 
cover the following topics: 
The accreditation review schedule for the eleven        
(1 alternative) educator preparation programs. 
● The accreditation status of the ten educator
preparation programs.
● The endorsement areas offered at the eleven
(1 alternative) educator preparation programs.
● Information demonstrating progress and efforts in
addressing Areas for Improvement
and/or Stipulations from prior accreditation decisions.
● Data on enrollment, number of completers, and
completers by subject area from the ten
accreditation programs.
● Information on the MACK.

Requested Decision(s) Information Item- No action required. 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) N/A 
 



 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

2025 Educator Preparation Program Report 
Compiled October 2025 

 

 
Introduction: 

 
This report provides an overview of Montana’s ten Educator Preparation providers as outlined in ARM 
Chapter 10.58.104(1) and 10.58.104(2). 

 
10.58.104 ACCREDITED PROGRAMS 
(1) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall report to the public the educator preparation 
providersꞌ accreditation status in meeting the Board of Public Educationꞌs standards for 
professional educator preparation. 
(2) Pursuant to 20-4-121, MCA, the report shall include educator preparation providers and the 
corresponding regional and national accreditation agencies. The report shall include the initial 
and expiration dates of all accredited programs. 

 
The report covers the following topics: 

● The accreditation review schedule for the eleven (1 alternative) educator preparation programs. 
● The accreditation status of the ten MT educator preparation programs, including the 

corresponding regional and national accreditation agencies, the initial and expiration dates of all 
accredited programs. 

● The endorsement areas offered at the eleven (1 alternative) educator preparation programs. 
● Information demonstrating progress and efforts in addressing Areas for Improvement and/or 

Stipulations from prior accreditation decisions 
● Data on enrollment, number of completers, and completers by subject area from the ten MT 

accreditation programs. 
● Information about the Montana Assessment for Content Knowledge Verification (MACK).

https://rules.mt.gov/browse/collections/aec52c46-128e-4279-9068-8af5d5432d74/policies/369e3479-34f7-4463-9d8a-277766626027
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0040/part_0010/section_0210/0200-0040-0010-0210.html


2 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Section 1: Accreditation Review Schedule 

MONTANA EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDERS (EPPs) 
ACCREDITATION SITE VISIT SCHEDULE 

Seven-year Cycles: Current – 2018-2025; Future – 2026-2033 

EPP SCHEDULE 2018-2025 SCHEDULE 2026-2033 

Carroll College S2019 STATE (S2021*) S2026 STATE 

Stone Child College S2019 STATE S2026 STATE 

American Board (alternative program) S2024 STATE (Initial) S2026 STATE 

University of Providence S2019 STATE (S2022*) F2026 STATE 

University of Montana-Missoula S2020 CAEP-MT (S2022*) S2027 CAEP-MT 

Rocky Mountain College F2020 STATE (S2021*) F2027 STATE 

University of Montana-Western F2022 CAEP-MT F2029 CAEP-MT 

Montana State University-Bozeman F2022 CAEP-MT (F2023*) F2029 CAEP-MT 

Salish Kootenai College S2024 STATE S2031 STATE 

Montana State University-Northern S2024 STATE S2031 STATE 

Montana State University-Billings S2024 CAEP-MT (S2025*) S2031 CAEP-MT 

* Good Cause Extension

CAEP- Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation 



3 

 
 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

 
 

 
 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

 
 
 
Section 2: Accreditation Status 

 

Mailing Address 1601 N. Benton 
Helena, MT 59625-0002 

Website Address www.carroll.edu 
Director of Teacher Education Joe Helbling, Ph.D. 

Email Address jhelbling@carroll.edu 
Licensure Official  

Email Address  
Telephone (406) 447-4354 

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 
   

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review April 2021 Required Action None 
 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate 
Date of Initial 

Approval 
Date 

Discontinued 
YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Biology Major/ 
Minor 

 1970 2019   

Chemistry Major/ 
Minor 

 1970 (no 
program 
from 91-95) 

2019 
  

Computer Science   1992 2012   
Economics   1970 1991   
Elementary 
Education Major 

 
1970 

 
YES April 2021 

Elementary Ed & 
Special Education 
Combined 

 
Major 

    
YES 

 
April 2021 

English Major  1970  YES April 2021 
English as a Second 
Language 

  
1997 2004 

  

French Major/ 
Minor 

 1992 2019   

French 7-12   1970 1982   

History Major/ 
Minor 

 1970 2019   

Latin   1970 1982   

http://www.carroll.edu/
mailto:jhelbling@carroll.edu


4 

 
 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

 
 

 
 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mathematics Major  1970  YES April 2021 
Health and Physical 
Education 7-12 

  
1970 1986 

  

Health and Physical 
Education K-12 

Major/ 
Minor 

 
1987 2012 

  

Physics Minor  1980 2019   
Government/ 
Political Science Major 

 
1970 2019 

  

Psychology Major/ 
Minor 

 1970 1991   

Psychology Minor  1992 2019   
Reading Specialists 
K-12 

Minor  1987  YES April 2021 

Science Broadfield Major  2021  YES April 2021 
Social Studies 
Broadfield Major  1970  YES April 2021 

Sociology   1970 1991   

Spanish Major/ 
Minor 

 1991 2019 
  

Spanish 7-12   1970 1990   
Special Education   1970 1985   
Special Education P-
12 

Major/ 
Minor 

 1991  YES April 2021 

Speech Drama   1970 1990   



5 

 
 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

 
 

 
 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Mailing Address 1500 University Dr. 
Billings, MT 59101 

Website Address www.msubillings.edu 
Interim Dean Melanie Reaves, Ph.D. 

Email Address melanie.reaves@msubillings.edu 
Licensure Official Melanie Reaves, Ph.D. 

Email Address melanie.reaves@msubillings.edu 
Telephone (406) 657-1670 

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 
   

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity 
Board of Public 
Education 

 
BPE Site Review 

April 2017: Joint Review with 
CAEP 
2019 MSUB COE Program 
Prioritization Updates 

 
Required Action 

 
None 

 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 Major/ 
Minor 

 
1978 

 YES 
NASAD April 2017 

Biology 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1978 2019 

 
April 2017 

 
Business Education 

   
 
1978 

Graduate 
1986 
Major/ 
Minor 1993 

  

Chemistry 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1978 2019 

 
April 2017 

Computer Science   1999 2003   

Dramatics   1978 1982   
Early Childhood 
Education P-3 Minor 

 
2016 

 
YES May 2016 

BPE Approval 
Earth Science Minor  1978 2019  April 2017 
Economics Minor  1978 2017   

Economics-
Sociology 

  
1986 1989 

  

http://www.msubillings.edu/
mailto:melanie.reaves@msubillings.edu
mailto:melanie.reaves@msubillings.edu


6 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Educational 
Technology- Area of 
Permissive Special 
Competency 

Graduate 2009 2017 

Elementary 
Education Major Graduate 1986 YES April 2017 

English/Language 
Arts 

Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES April 2017 

Exceptional Children 1978 1986 
French 1978 2005 
Geography Minor 1978 2019 April 2017 
German 1978 Major 1996 
Health Minor 1984 YES April 2017 

History 
Major/ 
Minor 1978 

Graduate 
1996 YES April 2017 

History- Political 
Science 1986 1997 

Library Media K-12 1978 1992 

Mathematics 
Major/ 
Minor 1978 

Graduate 
1996 YES April 2017 

Music K-12 Major 1978 
Minor 1985, 
Graduate 
1996 

 
YES NASM April 2017 

Physical Education 
and Health 

Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES April 2017 

Physical Science 1978 

Discontinued 
from 
1981-1991 
and in 1997 

 

Physics Minor 1978 2019 April 2017 
Government / 
Political Science Minor 1978 YES April 2017 

Psychology Minor 1978 2019 April 2017 
Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor Graduate 1978 Major 1985 YES April 2017 

Science Broadfield Major 1978 YES April 2017 
Social Studies 
Broadfield Major 1978 YES April 2017 



7 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Sociology Minor  1978 2019  April 2017 

Spanish 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1978 2019 

 
April 2017 



8 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Special Education K-
12 

Double 
Major Graduate 1978 YES April 2017 

Speech-
Communication Minor 1978 2017 

Speech- Drama Minor 1982 2019 April 2017 
Special Education 
Supervisor Graduate 1978 YES April 2017 

School Counseling Graduate 1978 YES April 2017 



9 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Mailing Address PO Box 172940 
Bozeman, MT 59717-2940 

Website Address www.montana.edu 
Dean Tricia Seifert, Ph.D. 

Email Address ehhddean@montana.edu 
Licensure Official Rhona Coombs 

Email Address rhonda.coombs@montana.edu 
Telephone (406) 994-6227 

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 
   

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review September 2023: Joint 
Review with CAEP Required Action None 

 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Agriculture Major Graduate 
1986 1973 

 
YES September 2023 

American Indian 
Education 

  
1973 1983 

  

Art K-12 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Biology 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Business Education   1973 1983   

Chemistry 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Computer Science Minor  2019 2024  September 2023 
Distributive 
Education 

  
1973 Minor 1981, 

Major 1989 
  

Drama   1973 2002   
Earth Science Minor  1973  YES September 2023 
Economics Minor  1973  YES September 2023 
Early Childhood 
Education P-3 Major 

 
2017 

 
YES September 2023 

http://www.montana.edu/
mailto:ehhddean@montana.edu
mailto:rhonda.coombs@montana.edu


10 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Elementary 
Education Major 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 



11 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

English 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 Minor 2012 Major YES September 2023 

ESL (English as a 
Second Language) 

 
Graduate 2025 

 
YES 

 

Family and 
Consumer Sciences 

Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

French Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Geography   1973 1985   

German Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Government Minor  1980  YES September 2023 
Health   1973 2001   

History Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Industrial Trades & 
Technology Ed 

Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Library Media K-12 
 

Graduate 1973 Major 1986 
Minor 2010 YES September 2023 

Mathematics Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Music K-12 Major  1973 Minor 1983 YES September 2023 
Physical Education 
and Health Major 

 
1973 Minor 1998 YES September 2023 

Physical Science   1973 Major 2000   

Physics Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Psychology   1973 2001   

Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Science Broadfield Major  1973  YES September 2023 
Social Studies 
Broadfield Major 

 1973, 
Minor 1980 Minor 1982 YES September 2023 

Sociology   1973 2002   

Spanish 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1973 

 
YES September 2023 

Speech-
Communication 

  
1973 1985 

  

Theatre Art   1980 2002   



12 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

K-12 Principal  Graduate 1950  YES September 2023 
Superintendent  Graduate 1950  YES September 2023 



13 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Supervisor  Graduate 1950 2018   

School Counseling 
 

Graduate 1993 
 YES 

CACREP September 2023 



14 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Mailing Address P.O. Box 7751 
Havre, Montana 59501 

Website Address www.msun.edu 
Dean Beth Durodoye, Ed.D, NCC 

Email Address beth.durodoye@msun.edu 
Licensure Official Beth Durodoye 

Email Address beth.durodoye@msun.edu 
Telephone (406) 265-3735 

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 
   

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

 
BPE Site Review 

 
April 2024 

 
Required Action 

Areas of stipulation 
will be addressed in 
Spring 2026 to retain 
accreditation. 

 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate 
Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 Minor  1982  YES April 2024 
Biology   1977 2001   

Business Education Major/ 
Minor 

 
1977 2013 

  

Chemistry   1977 2001   

Computer Science Minor 
 

1995 2008   

Drama   1977 2000   

Elementary 
Education Major Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
2005 YES April 2024 

English Language 
Arts Major 

 
1977 

Minor 2021 
YES YES April 2024 

French   1977 1997   
Health   1977 1989   

History   1977 2001   
Industrial Trades 
and Technology 
Education 

 
Major Graduate 

(1988) 
1977, 
Minor 1982 

 
Minor 1990 

 
YES 

 
April 2024 

http://www.msun.edu/
mailto:beth.durodoye@msun.edu
mailto:beth.durodoye@msun.edu


15 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

K-12 Principal  Graduate 2001 2012   



16 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Mathematics Major 
 

1977 Major 2021, 
Minor 2000 

  

Music K-12 
  1977, 

Minor 1982 
Major 1982 
Minor 1990 

  

Health and Physical 
Education Major 

 
1977 Minor 2017 YES April 2024 

Government/ 
Political Science 

  
1977 1989 

  

Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor 

 1977, 
Minor 1982 Major 1986 YES April 2024 

School Counseling  Graduate 1977, 
Minor 1984 

Major/ 
Minor 2004 YES April 2024 

Science Broadfield 
5-12 Major 

Graduate 
(1992) 1982 

 
YES April 2024 

Social Studies 
Broadfield 5-12 Major 

 
1977 

 
YES April 2024 

Supervisor  Graduate 1986    

Trade and Industry Major Graduate 
(1988) 1977 Major 2016, 

Minor 1986 
  

Traffic Education Minor  1977  YES April 2024 



17 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Mailing Address 1511 Poly Drive 
Billings, MT 59102 

Website Address www.rocky.edu 
Director of Educational 

Leadership 
Jodi Carlson, M.Ed. 

Email Address jodi.carlson@rocky.edu 
Licensure Official Jodi Carlson, M.Ed. 

Email Address jodi.carlson@rocky.edu 
Telephone (406) 657-1046 

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 
   

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review March 2021 Required Action None 
 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 Major/ 
Minor 

 1977, 
Minor 1996 

 
YES March 2021 

Biology 
Major/ 
Minor 

 
1977 

 
YES March 2021 

Business Education   1977 1986   

Chemistry   1977 2005   

Earth Science   1977 1992   

Economics   1977 2005   
Elementary 
Education Major 

 
1977 

 YES March 2021 

English/Language 
Arts Major 

 
1977 

 
YES March 2021 

English Education Minor  2008  YES March 2021 
Geology   1977 1983   

History Major/ 
Minor 

 1977, 
Minor 1989 

 YES March 2021 

History- Political 
Science Major 

 
1977 

 YES March 2021 

http://www.rocky.edu/
mailto:jodi.carlson@rocky.edu
mailto:jodi.carlson@rocky.edu


18 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Mathematics Major 
 

1977 
1992, 
Reinstated YES March 2021 



19 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Music K-12 Major 1977 YES March 2021 
Physical Education 
and Health K-12 

Major/ 
Minor 1977 YES March 2021 

Government/ 
Political Science 

Minor 1977 YES March 2021 

Psychology Major/ 
Minor 1977 YES March 2021 

Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor 2008 YES March 2021 

Science Broadfield- 
*Broadfield with 
Chemistry or 
*Broadfield with
Biology

Major 1977, 2012 
1999, 
Provisional 
2012 

YES March 2021 

Social Studies 
Broadfield Major 1977 YES March 2021 

Spanish 1977 1991 
School 
Principals, 
Superintendents, 
Supervisors, and 
Curriculum Directors 

Graduate 2008 YES March 2021 

Theatre Arts in 
Education 2005 



20 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Mailing Address 58138 Hwy 93 
PO Box 70 
Pablo, MT 59855 

Website Address https://education.skc.edu/ 
Education Division Chair and 

Licensure Official Douglas S. Ruhman – Dean of Education Division 

Email Address douglas_ruhman@skc.edu 
Telephone (406) 275-4763

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity 
Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review November 2024 Required Action 2024 Approval 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Broadfield Science Major 2010 YES May 2024 
Early Childhood 
Education Major 2015 YES May 2024 

Elementary 
Education Major 2007 YES May 2024 

Mathematics Major 2014 YES May 2024 
M.Ed. in Curr. & Instr.-
K-12 Reading Graduate 2023 YES May 2024 

https://education.skc.edu/
mailto:douglas_ruhman@skc.edu


21 

Mailing Address 8294 Upper Box Elder Rd 
Box Elder, MT 59521 

Website Address www.stonechild.edu 
Education Department Head Wilma Tyner 

Email Address wtyner@stonechild.edu 
Telephone 406-395-4875 ext. 1217

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review November 2019 Required Action None 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate 
Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Elementary 
Education Major 2019 YES November 2019 

http://www.stonechild.edu/
mailto:wtyner@stonechild.edu
Tyler Capece
Cross-Out

Tyler Capece
Cross-Out

Tyler Capece
Cross-Out

Tyler Capece
Cross-Out

Tyler Capece
Pencil



22 

Mailing Address 32 Campus Drive 
Missoula, MT 59812 

Website Address www.umt.edu 
Dean Daniel Lee, Ed.D. 

Email Address dan.lee@umontana.edu 
Licensure Official Kristi Steinberg 

Email Address Kristine.steinberg@mso.umt.edu 
Telephone (406) 243-2121

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review April 2022: Joint Review 
with CAEP and BPE Required Action None 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 Major 1977 
Graduate 
1982, 
Minor 1996 

Major YES April 2022 

Biology Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Business Education Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 

Major/ 
Minor 2018 
Graduate 
1982 

Chemistry Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Computer Science Minor 2017 2022 

Theatre Major/ 
Minor 1977 

Graduate 
1982; 
Minor 2006 

Major YES 
Minor 
reinstated 
2015 

April 2022 

Earth Science Major Graduate 1977 
Major 2025 
Graduate 
1982 

April 2022 

Economics Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

http://www.umt.edu/
mailto:dan.lee@umontana.edu
mailto:Kristine.steinberg@mso.umt.edu
Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



23 

Early Childhood 
Education P-3 

Major/ 
Minor Graduate Minor 2015, 

Major 2017 
 

YES April 2022 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



24 

Elementary 
Education Major Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
1982 Major YES April 2022 

English Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

English as a Second 
Language Minor 1992 2025 April 2022 

French Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Geography 
Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
1982 

Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

German 
Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
1982 

Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

History Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

K-12 Principal Graduate 1977 YES April 2022 

Latin Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Library Media K-12 Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 
1982 Minor YES April 2022 

Mathematics Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Music K-12 Major Graduate 1977 
Graduate 
1982 Major YES April 2022 

Physical Education 
and Health K-12 Major Graduate 1977, 2024 

Graduate 
1982, Minor 
2006 

Major 
Reinstated 
2024 

September 2024 

Physics Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Government/ 
Political Science 

Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Psychology Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Minor 
YES April 2022 

Russian Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Science Broadfield Major Graduate 1977 Graduate 
1982 Major YES April 2022 

Social Studies 
Broadfield Major Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
1982 Major YES April 2022 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



25 

Sociology 
Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 

Graduate 
1982 

Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Spanish Major/ 
Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 
Major/ 
Minor YES April 2022 

Special Education K-
12 Minor Graduate 1977 Graduate 

1982 Minor YES April 2022 

School Counseling Graduate 1977 YES 
CACREP Spring 2022 

School 
Principals, 
Supervisors, and 
Curriculum Directors 

Graduate 1977 YES April 2022 

School Psychologists Graduate 1977 YES NASP April 2022 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



26 

Mailing Address 710 South Atlantic St. 
Dillon, MT 59725 

Website Address www.umwestern.edu 
Education Department Chair Shay Kidd 

Email Address shay.kidd@umwestern.edu 
Licensure Official Luke Lewis 

Email Address Luke.lewis@umwestern.edu 
Telephone (406) 683-7319

Regional Accreditor Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity 
Board of Public 
Education, CAEP, 
NWCCU 

BPE Site Review October 2022: Joint Review 
with CAEP Required Action None 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate 
Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 
Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Biology Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Business 
Education 

Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Chemistry Minor 1978 2009 
Computer Science Minor 1999 YES October 2022 
Theatre Minor 1999 YES October 2022 
Early Childhood 
Education P-3 

Major/ 
Minor 2002 YES October 2022 

Earth Science 
Major/ 
Minor 2006/ 1998 YES October 2022 

Elementary 
Education Major 1978 YES October 2022 

English Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

History Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

http://www.umwestern.edu/
mailto:shay.kidd@umwestern.edu
mailto:Luke.lewis@umwestern.edu
Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



27 

Industrial Trades 
and Technology 
Education 

Minor 1978 2015 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



28 

Library Media K-12 Minor 1981 YES October 2022 

Mathematics Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Music K-12 
Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Physical Education 
and Health K-12 

Major/ 
Minor 1978 YES October 2022 

Physical Science Major/ 
Minor 1978 2004 

Physics Major 1978 1986 
Reading Specialist 
K-12 Minor 1981 YES October 2022 

School Counseling Graduate 1983 1989 
General Science 
(Broadfield) Major 1978 YES October 2022 

Social Studies 
Broadfield Major 1978 YES October 2022 

Special Education Minor 1999 YES October 2022 

Tyler Capece
Line

Tyler Capece
Line

Tyler Capece
Line

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



29 

Mailing Address 1301 20th St. S. 
Great Falls, Montana 59405 

Website Address www.uprovidence.edu 
Education Program Lead Jodie Smith Ed.D. 

Email Address jodie.smith@uprovidence.edu 
Licensure Official Jodie Smith Ed.D. 

Email Address jodie.smith@uprovidece.edu 
Telephone (406) 791-5390

Accreditation Status Regular Accreditation Accrediting Entity Board of Public 
Education 

BPE Site Review October 2022 Required Action None 

Program/ Title Undergrad Graduate Date of Initial 
Approval 

Date 
Discontinued 

YES if 
active 

Month/ Year of Site 
Review-Approval 

Art K-12 Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

Biology Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

Chemistry Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

Computer Science 1992 Major 1996 
Minor 1998 

Elementary 
Education Major Graduate 2020 Graduate 

1990 
YES October 2022 

English/ Language 
Arts 

Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

French 1979 1981 
German 1979 1981 

History Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

History and Political 
Science 1979 1997 

K-12 Principal Graduate 1988 2001 
Library Media K-12 1979 1981 
Master of Arts in 
Teaching Graduate 1995/ 2006 2012 

http://www.uprovidence.edu/
mailto:jodie.smith@uprovidence.edu
mailto:jodie.smith@uprovidece.edu
Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



30 

Master of Education Graduate 1996/2005 2012 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



31 

Mathematics 
Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

Music K-12 1979 Major 1981 
Minor 1996 

Permissive Special 
Competencies: 
Gifted Education 

Emphasis 2019 

Physical Education 
and Health K-12 

Major/ 
Minor 2020 YES October 2022 

Government/ 
Political Science Minor 1979 2019 

Psychology Minor Reapproved 
2005 2019 

Reading Specialists 
K-12 Minor 1979 2019 

School Counseling 
K-12 Graduate 1998 2001 

Science Broadfield Major 1983 2019 
Social Studies 
Broadfield Major 1979 2019 

Sociology Major/ 
Minor 1979 2019 

Spanish Minor 1979, 
Minor 1994 

Minor 2019 
Major 1981 

Special Education 
K-12 Major 1979, 

Minor 1998 2019 

Speech- 
Communication 1979 2001 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



32 

 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 
Section 3 Endorsement Areas 

 

M = Major 
m = Minor 
G = Graduate 
C= Certificate 

Montana Educator Preparation Programs 

Endorsement 
Areas 

Carroll 
College 

 
MSU-B 

 
MSU 

 
MSU-N 

Rocky 
Mountain 
College 

Salish 
Kootenai 
College 

Stone 
Child 
College 

 
U of M U of M 

Western 
U of 

Providence 
American 

Board 

Agriculture 5-12   M         

Art K-12  Mm Mm m Mm   M Mm   

Biology 5-12   Mm  Mm   Mm Mm  C 
Business Ed         Mm   

Chemistry 5-12   Mm     Mm   C 
Computer 
Science 

        
m 

  

Drama/Theatre        Mm m   

Early Childhood 
P-3 

 
m M 

  
M 

 
MmG Mm 

  

Earth Science 
5-12 

  
m 

     
Mm 

  

Economics 5-12   m     Mm    

Elementary K-8 M M M M M M M M M M C 
Elem/Sp. Ed. 
Combo M 

         
C 

English 5-12 M Mm Mm M Mm   Mm Mm  C 
ESL   G         

FCS   Mm         

French K-12   Mm     Mm    

Geography        Mm    

German K-12   Mm     Mm    

Government  m m  m   Mm    

Health 5-12  m          

History 5-12  Mm Mm  Mm   Mm m  C 
Indus. Trades & 
Tech. Ed. 

  
Mm M 

       

Latin        Mm    



33 

 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 
 
 
 

Library Media 
K-12 

  
G 

    
m m 

  

Mathematics 5-12 M Mm Mm  M M  Mm Mm  C 
Music K-12  M M  M   M Mm   

PE & Health K-12  Mm M M Mm   M Mm Mm  

Physical Science            

Physics 5-12   Mm     Mm   C 
Political Science 
5-12 

 
m 

  
m 

  
Mm 

   

Principal K-12   G  G   G    

Psychology 5-12     Mm   Mm    

Reading K-12 m mG m m m G  m m   

Russian        Mm    

School Counselor  G G G    G    

School 
Psychologist 

       
G 

   

Science BF 5-12 M M M M M M  M M  C 
Social Studies BF 
5-12 M M M M M 

  
M M 

  

Sociology 5-12        Mm    

Spanish K-12   Mm     Mm    

Special 
Education Mm MG 

     
m m 

 
C 

Superintendent   G  G   G    

Supervisor  G   G   G    

Tech Ed 5-12            

Traffic Ed    m        

Teaching Elem   G         

Teaching 
Secondary 

  
G 

        

Curriculum & 
Instruction 

 
G 

  
G 

  
G 

   



34 

 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 
 
Section 4: Title II Higher Education Report 

 
The 2025 Montana State Report includes data reported to the Department in October 2025. For many 
data elements, such as the number of individuals enrolled in teacher preparation programs, the OPI 
reported on AY 2023-2024 data. 

Total State Enrollment 

Year Total Enrolled Subset of Program 
Completers 

2021-2022 1824 555 
2022-2023 1755 547 
2023-2024 1479 495 

Comparison of Completers over 3 years 
Year This Year Last Year Change over 1 

Year 
2023-2024 495 547 -9.51% 
2022-2023 547 555 -1.44% 
2021-2022 555 649 -14.48% 

Total Enrollment by Program 2023-2024 

Program Total Enrolled Subset of Program 
Completers 

Carroll College 33 14 
Montana State University-Billings 231 84 
Montana State University-Bozeman 227 103 
Montana State University-Bozeman Alt 53 16 
Montana State University-Northern 33 12 
Rocky Mountain College 63 16 
Salish Kootenai College 29 11 
Stone Child College 25 4 
University of Montana 184 87 
University of Montana-Western 569 142 
University of Providence 32 6 



35 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Section 6: Updates on Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulation 
Summary of EPPs’ Reported Progress by Standard 

10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice 

● We have now had students complete their student teaching and multi-model assessments were
used in EDU 489 & EDU 490. In addition, all student teachers are assessed by mentor teachers
and a university supervisor in their placements.

● Helping build the CORE school in Great Falls and working more with other districts for what is
expected during the 40+ days of field experience prior to student teaching.

● Clinical experiences have been a focus of the Department of Teaching and Learning and the
accreditation team for the past three years directly through the work of the Clinical Experiences
Committee (CEC). The committee’s scope shifted from policy issues to the broader work of
clinical partnerships and practice.

10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality, Recruitment, Progression, and Support 

● The college made two significant programmatic changes in 24-25 as a direct effort to recruit and
retain quality educators. The first is a streamlined and remote-available post-bac secondary
education program, and the second is a shift of the school counseling program to an online
modality. With a rural state the size of Montana, there is a direct need in the field for these types
of programs. We are also finalizing agreements with three additional community colleges across
the state to expand our current 2+2 elementary education cohort program, beginning formally in
Autumn 2026. The 2+2 cohorts allow candidates to complete their elementary education
degrees remotely from five communities across the state which do not currently have teacher
preparation programs thereby reaching areas of the state with teacher shortages.

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact 

● Completer and Employer Surveys and an Alumni interview for 2023-2024 were completed,
shared, and contextualized with initial program faculty and staff. The 2024-2025 Completer and
Employer Surveys and Alumni interviews will be disseminated in November 2025 for a January
2026 completion date.

● Data is collected on completers and used for continuous quality improvement.

● Determining what additional surveying could be successful without conflict or overlap with the
state tools in place. Revision of our lesson plan assessment tool and working on the Teacher
Work Sample is in progress.

10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement 

● The EPP held a Data Day event in April 2025 for initial (and advanced) faculty and stakeholders to
analyze assessment data, and evaluate, revise, and implement program Action Plans for
continuous improvement. A visual design of the EPPs quality assurance system was formally
presented to introduce stakeholders to the Elementary Education program's online mode of
delivery. Continuous improvement was further exemplified by the hiring of a full time Teacher



36 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

Education faculty member in August 2025, complimenting the hiring of a part-time Teachers-in-
Training Faculty Mentor in September 2024. Three faculty earned Quality Matters certification for 
their online courses in Fall 2024. 

● The EPP’s Division of Education worked during the 2024-2025 academic year to complete the
Critical Assignments Database which captures the measures of candidate progress aligned with
the PEPPS, InTASC Standards, and the EPP’s Central Beliefs as part of its comprehensive Quality
Assurance system. This database serves to inform department faculty of both student progress
and program effectiveness and will be an important component in future self studies. The CAD
has been completed and is in use for the Early Childhood Education P-3 and Elementary
Education K-8 programs. Work is continuing with the revision of the Secondary Broadfield
Science and Secondary Mathematics degrees due to changes in leadership in those programs,
and therefore some of the courses and course assignments are still in development. Once this
curriculum development work is finalized this fall term, the EPP will be able to populate and
implement the database for those programs as well. That work is on track to be completed this
fall and full implementation of the CAD in all state-accredited programs in the Division will be
achieved prior to the end of the current 2025-2026 academic year.

● The EPP has improved our assessment collection & analysis methods so that we can aggregate
and disaggregate data for evaluations at the student-level as well as the program level. A major
change we've made involves the creation of electronic data collection (e.g., Google Forms /
Microsoft Forms and Questionnaires embedded within our LMS) so that data can be exported to
a spreadsheet. Previously, our data was largely kept in paper form (e.g., in folders within filing
cabinets). This worked fine for student-level analysis, but not for program level. We now have a
system in place to measure student performance on teaching standards (10.58.501) throughout
the program with increasing levels of proficiency. Rubrics with evaluative criteria have been
created for each component of the 501s. These rubrics break down each component into
subcomponents so that we can analyze student performance as well as our program's coverage
& effectiveness at a more granular level. In a similar fashion, our dispositions and
field-experience evaluation system has been improved. We use the same evaluative criteria for
dispositions and teaching performances so that progress can be measured more accurately
across multiple field experiences. These assessments are completed by the cooperating
teachers, the college field supervisors, and by the preservice teachers (self-assess). We are now
in a position where we can make better data-informed decisions about our students' progress,
provide interventions as needed, and evaluate our program and make program changes as
needed. We have already taken steps to improve our program based on aggregated data
analysis and stakeholder/community partners feedback. This includes new program
requirements such as increased GPA requirements for admission to the program and admission
to student teaching, new course requirements (e.g. Middle School Teaching), new course
proposals (e.g. Science Concepts for Elementary Education, Social Studies for Elementary
Education), increased attention to English Language Learners, Social & Emotional needs of
students, and Teacher Wellness in our courses, and improved advising for our 1st year students.

The EPP held a Data Day event in April 2025 for initial (and advanced) faculty and stakeholders to



37 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

analyze assessment data, and evaluate, revise, and implement program Action Plans for 
continuous improvement. A visual design of the EPPs quality assurance system was formally 
presented to introduce stakeholders to the Elementary Education program's online mode of 
delivery. Continuous improvement was further exemplified by the hiring of a full time Teacher 
Education faculty member in August 2025, complimenting the hiring of a part-time 
Teachers-in-Training Faculty Mentor in September 2024. Three faculty earned Quality Matters 
certification for their online courses in Fall 2024. 

10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation 

● Completer and Employer Surveys for 2023-2024 were completed, shared, and contextualized
with advanced program faculty and staff. The 2024-2025 Completer and Employer Surveys will
be disseminated in November 2025 for a January 2026 completion date. The EPP held a Data Day
event in April 2025 for advanced (and initial) faculty and stakeholders to analyze assessment
data, and evaluate, revise, and implement program Action Plans for continuous improvement.

10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement 

● Updated information from the last report includes the implementation of Advanced Education
Advisory Council meetings since Fall 2024. In August 2025, the university hired a temporary,
full-time Counselor Education faculty member/CACREP Process Facilitator with a background in
School Counseling and Clinical Mental Health Counseling to strengthen curriculum alignment
and support student success.

● The work during the 24-25 academic year focused on creating assessments with rubrics and
finishing revisions on the clinical experiences model. As a result of these changes, the Quality
Assurance System (QAS) isn’t simply tightening up what we’re currently doing, but looking at
overall program and assessment revisions. Members of the leadership team and the QAS
committee have reviewed the curriculum and assessment changes and will begin the review of
new assessment data after the summer collection cycle



40 

 

 

Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 

 
 

 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 
Section 7: Montana Assessment for Content Knowledge (MACK) 
Information 
Information from August 21, 2024. 

 



ITEM 27 

UPDATE ON CORRECTIVE ACTION FOR 
MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY 

NORTHERN EDUCATOR PREPARATION 
PROGRAM PROVIDER ACCREDITATION 

Crystal Andrews 



 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: November 19-21, 2025 

  

Presentation Update from Montana State University- Northern 
on progress of stipulations from 2024 State Exit 
Report. 

  
Presenter Crystal Andrews                       
 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Senior Manager 
 Office of Public Instruction 
Overview This presentation provides the Board of Public 

Education with a brief update from Montana 
State University- Northen on the progress of the 
three stipulations that they received in their 2024 
State Exit Report. 

  
Requested Decision(s) Information Item- No action required. 
  
Related Issue(s) None  
  
Recommendation(s) N/A 
  



  

 
 
 
 
 
Montana State University Northern 

 
Stipulation: A standard or component is not met. The site visiting team identified a deficiency related to one or more components or the BPE standard. A stipulation is of 

sufficient severity that a standard may be determined to be unmet. A stipulation must be addressed within two years to retain accreditation. 

 
Initial Standards 

ARM TITLE STATUS 

10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical Knowledge Met with Notation 

10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice Met with Area for Improvement 

10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality Recruitment, Progression, and Support Met with Area for Improvement 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Stipulation 

10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement Stipulation 
 
 
Advanced Standards 

ARM TITLE STATUS 

10.58.605 Advanced Content and Pedagogical Knowledge Met with Notation 

10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and Practice Met with Notation 

10.58.607 Advanced Candidate Quality, Recruitment, Progression, and Support Met with Area for Improvement 

10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation Stipulation 

10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement Met with Area for Improvement 

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil

Tyler Capece
Pencil



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Descriptions Evidence 
(1) The provider:
(a) demonstrates the effectiveness of its
completers' instruction on P-12 student
learning and development and completer
and employer satisfaction with the
relevance and effectiveness of preparation;

The Unit demonstrates the impact of program completers on P-12 student 
learning and application of professional knowledge, skills, and dispositions in P-12 
classrooms, completer satisfaction, and employer satisfaction via Completer and 
Employer Surveys. 

• Completer Survey January
2025

• Employer Survey January
2025

(b) demonstrates that program completers
effectively contribute to P-12 student
learning using valid and reliable data,
including employer and program
completer surveys;

The Completer Survey provides insight into program completers’ satisfaction with, 
and perceptions of effectiveness of The Unit’s programs. OPIs Final State Exit 
Report 2024 provided recommendations for MSUNs EPP to address stipulations by 
expanding Completer and Employer data beyond 2022-2023. 

Completer and Employer Satisfaction Surveys were completed in January 2025 and 
analyzed. A third year of Completer and Employer Satisfaction data will also be 
administered in January 2026 and analyzed. 

• Completer Survey January
2025

• Employer Survey January
2025

(c) demonstrates, through structured and
validated instruments, including, but not
limited to, surveys, interviews, and
observations, that program completers
effectively apply the professional
knowledge, skills, and dispositions as
described in ARM 10.58.501;

One Completer responded to the 2023-2024 Initial Programs Alumni Interview 
invitation following the administration of the Initial Completer and Employer 
surveys. Four interview questions were posed, including one inquiring about any 
additional comments. The program balanced the feedback with the small sample 
size. The first question asked about the best features of the program that prepared 
Completers for their on-the-job responsibilities. 

The Completer answered with their “Instructors,” and the instructor-completer 
relationships that were formed. They appreciated their hands-on experience with 
Adjunct Faculty on the Great Falls Campus. Their courses in Classroom 
Management and Lesson Planning were also noted positively with the Completer 
stating, “I still use things I learned then.” In terms of least liked aspects of their 
preparation, the Completer indicated that some evening courses covered too 
much information at night, which was difficult to handle at the end of the day. 

When asked about what the Completer would change in the preparation program, 
they responded that the program should make sure to let Student Teachers know 
that it would be okay to switch Cooperating Teachers if there were significant 
conflicts. It was emphasized that this message should be advertised even more in 
Practicum. In response to the additional response question, the completer said of 

• Initial Programs Alumni
Interview Template



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Descriptions Evidence 
 their experience “Everyone was on your side and wanted things to work for you.” 

The interview ended with the Completer providing an overall preparation rating of 
“Very Effective” on a scale ranging from “Not 
Effective” to “Very Effective.” 

The Completer’s overall evaluation of their preparation suggests a high level of 
satisfaction and perceived readiness for teaching. Program preparation strengths 
include supportive faculty, practical experiences provided by Adjunct Faculty, 
impactful coursework, and a student-centered program. Evening course structure 
on the Great Falls Campus and the need for better policy directives and early 
program alerts related to switching classes were noted as areas for improvement. 
The faculty will review course scheduling, course sequencing for support earlier in 
the program, and effective program policy delivery. 

 

(d) demonstrates, using valid and reliable 
data, that employers are satisfied with the 
program completersꞌ preparation for their 
responsibilities working with P-12 students 
and their families; and 

Four Employers responded to the Initial Employer Satisfaction Survey 2023-2024, 
consisting of 19 content items plus one item to share additional comments about 
satisfaction with teacher preparation. Responses ranged from “Very Satisfied” to 
“Somewhat Unsatisfied.” All Employers were "Very Satisfied" with the teacher's 
respect for families and legal applications. Seventy five percent of Employers 
viewed each of the following areas positively overall: collaboration to meet 
language needs of students, demonstration of content knowledge, and 
participation in professional development opportunities. 

Employers indicated general approval for the majority items that fell between the 
“Somewhat Satisfied” and “Very Satisfied" responses. These items included 
instruction based on learner development, differentiated instruction for English 
Learners, student engagement, use of instructional technology, encouraging 
critical thinking, data analysis, planned instruction, instruction aligned with state 
content standards, use of varied instructional strategies, impact of instructional 
choices, and the incorporation of IEFA. 

Several items suggested a need for more attention. Seventy-five percent of the 
Employers were "Somewhat satisfied" and 25% were “Somewhat Unsatisfied” with 
teacher responses to negative behavior and engaging with colleagues in a 
professional manner. The initiation of professional conversation with a supervisor 
was even more divided amongst Employers, with 50% "Very Satisfied,"25% 
"Somewhat Satisfied," and 25% "Somewhat Unsatisfied." Two Employers elected 
to leave comments. One Employer praised the teacher as wonderful, they 

• Employer Survey January 
2025 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Descriptions Evidence 
 encouraged "more teacher intensive prep on classroom management. The second 

Employer provided contextual information including how teachers were regularly 
involved in professional development, the use of collaboration in the elementary 
setting, and content specific classes falling under 10 students. 

The small sample size of four Employers still allows for several directional insights. 
Overall, Employer responses reflect a strong foundational satisfaction with teacher 
preparation. Additional teacher support in professionalism and classroom 
management may be suggested. The faculty will focus on adding these areas as 
workshop topics for the program’s in-person and online EdExcellence forums. 
These areas can also be edified with student presentations by the program’s TNT 
Faculty Mentor. 

 

(e) demonstrates, using valid and reliable 
data, that program completers perceive 
their preparation as relevant to the 
responsibilities they encounter on the job 
and that the preparation was effective. 

One Completer provided responses to the Initial Program Completer Satisfaction 
Survey 2023-2024, which consisted of 20 content items plus one item for additional 
comments. The distribution of responses was 0% “Very effective;” 10% “Effective,” 
65% “Somewhat effective,” and 25% “Not effective.” 

The Completer suggested strong satisfaction with the program’s preparation in the 
use of instructional technology and with the encouragement of critical thinking. 
Modest satisfaction was expressed in the areas of instruction based on learner 
development, differentiated instruction for English Learners, student engagement, 
teacher responses to negative behavior, demonstration of content knowledge, 
instruction aligned with state content standards, use of varied instructional 
strategies, data analysis, teacher's respect for families, legal applications, 
engagement with colleagues in a professional manner, the initiation of professional 
conversations with a supervisor, and relevant preparation for one’s teaching 
responsibilities. The Completer did not perceive their training to be effective in the 
areas of collaboration to meet language needs of students, instruction based on 
knowledge of students in their community context, participation in professional 
development opportunities, impact of instructional choices, and the incorporation 
of IEFA. Additional comments were not provided. 

The Completer’s overall evaluation of their preparation suggested a perception 
that there are many areas where the program appears to perform moderately. 
However, there remain several areas that require strengthening, particularly those 
related to diversity, professional development, and student community/ 
instructional choice contexts. The program will review curriculum in support of 

• Completer Survey January 
2025 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Descriptions Evidence 
 culturally responsive education and community-based instruction content. The 

program will also develop additional opportunities for professional development 
and reflection. 

 

 
History: 20-2-114, MCA; IMP, 20-2-121, MCA; NEW, 2014 MAR p. 2936, Eff. 7/1/15; AMD, 2023 MAR p. 86, Eff. 7/1/23. 

https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0020/part_0010/section_0140/0200-0020-0010-0140.html
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0020/part_0010/section_0210/0200-0020-0010-0210.html


Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

10.58.315: 
Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

Descriptions Evidence 

(1) The provider: 
(a) develops a quality assurance system 
that consists of valid and reliable data 
from multiple measures of candidatesꞌ and 
completersꞌ positive impact on P-12 
students and supports continuous 
improvement that is sustained and 
evidence-based. The provider uses the 
results of inquiry and data collection to 
establish priorities, enhance program 
elements and capacity, and highlight 
innovations; 

Data collection is essential to students, instructors, and the EPP. It monitors 
student progress, helps inform instruction, and has become a part of the continual 
improvement cycle for MSUN. This philosophy of the importance of data to drive 
our work creates assessments that measure and inform us in each stage of the EPP. 

In previous years of accreditation, students submitted lesson plans from each 
course with critical assessment rubrics that documented aligned InTASC Standards. 
Student feedback told us that students did not understand this process but rather 
saw it as a checklist that needed to be completed without reflection, 
understanding, or application. Because of this, we knew we needed to make a 
change in what data was collected, how it was collected, and how it was used. 

We started with a calibration discussion that helped us build a shared and 
consistent understanding of what graduates need to be successful in education and 
how MSUN needed to respond to those needs. Central to this discussion was the 
importance of using one continual thread of data collection throughout the 
program. The state of Montana utilizes the Danielson Model for teacher 
evaluation. Therefore, it was decided that using the Danielson Framework for 
teaching, which has already been aligned with InTASC (see Danielson Alignment 
Chart), would allow us to provide Teacher Candidates the instruction and reflection 
needed to later succeed as Montana educators. Additionally, the Danielson model 
encourages reflective practice, and we wanted to emphasize reflection to create 
teacher clarity and growth. We then knew that all data collected through each 
stage of the Teacher Preparation Program would need to be aligned and consistent 
with the Danielson Framework. 

• Danielson Alignment Chart 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

10.58.315: 
Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

Descriptions Evidence 

(b) implements and maintains a quality 
assurance system comprised of multiple 
measures that can monitor candidate 
progress, completer impacts, and provider 
operational effectiveness. The provider 
documents the process of data entry and 
how data are reported and used in 
decision making to make programmatic 
improvement; 

The BOR approved the EPPs online Elementary Education (K-8) program on May 
16, 2024, enabling this new mode of delivery to go into effect AY 2024-2025. 

In-person and virtual meetings with stakeholders were held over the previous 
year in response to the transition. Program review of the data collected over the 
previous year in anticipation of the transition indicated stakeholder concern with 
the efficacy of online classes and the need for in-person experiences. 

The EPPs three faculty members submitted one course each for review by Quality 
Matters (a quality assurance system for online learning). All three courses 
achieved QM certification by the end of Fall 2024. Faculty will apply the Quality 
Matters Rubric to the remainder of their classes. 

EdExcellence Forums were built into the program, allowing students to meet with 
their peers and professors in-person three times a semester. In response to 
subsequent student feedback about the Forums, the option was provided for 
students to join the Forums online. 

A more personalized learning experience was also provided with the hiring of a 
part-time Teachers iN Training (TNT) Faculty Mentor in Fall 2025, to work closely 
with Pre-Education and Education majors both in person via a dedicated Teachers’ 
Lounge and Resource Lab space, and online. 

• EDU Elementary Ed Online 
Flyer EdExcellence Forum 

• Schedule AY2024-2025 
EdExcellence Survey 

• QM Certification 
Exemplars 

• TNT Faculty Mentor 
Calendar AY 2024-2025 

(c) ensures that the quality assurance 
system relies on relevant, verifiable, 
representative, cumulative, and actionable 
measures to ensure interpretations of data 
are valid and consistent; 

Many of the rubrics the programs use have been updated over the past few years. 
This is partially due to state requirement/standards changes and partly due to what 
the data are telling the faculty. Throughout the first four sections of this report, 
data, assessments, and stakeholder feedback have shown how and why changes 
have been made to the programs. Based on the data, best practices, and 
stakeholder feedback, faculty have implemented changes to improve student 
learning and create a continuous improvement cycle. 

• Program and Block 
Objectives Employer 
Survey 2022-2023 

• Employer Survey 2023-
2024 Completer Survey 

• AY2022 – 2023 Completer 
Survey 

• AY2023-2024 Data Day 
2025 Agenda 

• MSUN EDU Quality 
Assurance Map 
(PowerPoint) 

• Education Handbook 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

10.58.315: 
Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

Descriptions Evidence 

  Student Edition 2024-2025 
• Level 1 Application – 

Elementary 
• Level 1 Application - 

Secondary Praxis Summary 
(d) regularly and systematically assesses 
program performance against its goals and 
relevant standards, monitors results over 
time, tests innovations, and uses results to 
improve program elements and processes; 

Faculty review data annually, solicit stakeholder feedback on a consistent basis, and 
compare data longitudinally. The information provided in the previous four 
sections provide details on ways in which faculty look at data, the changes that 
have been implemented based on the data, and the consistent outreach to 
stakeholders for feedback for programmatic improvement. Faculty have made 
numerous changes to assessments over the past few years, testing what is working 
or not working for their programs and making changes based on that information. 
As faculty monitor their candidates’ progress through the programs, changes have 
been made to improve student learning. One notable change in 2024 involved 
moving the Elementary Education (K-8) program online and including personalized 
elements throughout to foster student success. This change was made based on 
student feedback, partner feedback, and assessment data. 

• Employer Survey 2023-
2024 Data Day 2025 
Agenda 

• MSUN EDU Quality 
Assurance Map 
(PowerPoint) 

• Initial Education Advisory 
Council Meeting Minutes 
3-13-25 

• EDU Elementary Ed 
Online Flyer 

(e) ensures that data from the quality 
assurance system are based on established 
best practices; summarized, analyzed, 
shared widely, and acted upon in decision 
making related to programs, resource 
allocation, and future direction; and 

The programs show alignment to state standards, along with Danielson (which is 
the state model), and InTASC Standards. Completer, Employer, and Partner surveys 
continuously allow the program to be responsive to stakeholder interests and 
needs. Moreover, data are shared widely with faculty, staff, and administrators 
internally, and externally with partners, employers, and the Initial Education 
Programs Advisory Council. Data and feedback are used to make programmatic 
improvements. 

In terms of resource allocation, continuous efforts have been made to reduce 
reliance on Adjunct Faculty to deliver courses and to replace an open faculty line. A 
new Assistant Professor of Teacher Education was hired with an effective start date 
of Fall 2025. The EDU program now has three full-time core faculty. The Education 
Department also has a dedicated Administrative Associate IV/Education Advisor. In 
addition to advising, this position's duties include licensure and certification 
support for initial and advanced programs. 

• Program and Block 
Objectives 

• Hi-Line Mass Agenda Feb 
1, 2024 

• Employer Survey 2023-
2024 

• Completer Survey 2023- 
32024 Data Day 2025 
Agenda 

• MSUN EDU Quality 
Assurance Map 
(PowerPoint) 

• Faculty Weekly Meeting 
Agendas 10-17-24 and 2- 
20-25 

• Initial Education Advisory 
Council Meeting Minutes 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

10.58.315: 
Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

Descriptions Evidence 

  3-13-25 

(f) assures that internal and external 
stakeholders, including, but not limited to, 
faculty staff, candidates, completers, 
employers, practitioners, and school and 
community partners are engaged in 
program design, evaluation, and 
continuous innovative improvement 
processes. 

In AY2024-2025, Education Faculty held one-hour program meetings two times per 
month. These meetings provided faculty many opportunities to review and assess 
its online program format and quality of candidate interactions within the 
courses. For example, faculty worked together in the fall to decide on which 
online courses to begin submitting for QM certification via support from the Office 
of Teaching and Learning Excellence. EDU 201 was the first to be certified and 
then moved through the course revision process at the college and University 
levels. 

Faculty also monitored their work for one year on grants, including one for “A 
Culturally Responsive Approach to Online Teacher Education” via MUS Educator 
Prep Program Distance Delivery Support funds. This grant assisted faculty to infuse 
cross-cultural distance delivery pedagogy into such courses as EDU 340 Classroom 
Management and EDU 382 Assessment, Curriculum, and Instruction. Faculty also 
used regular meetings to assess online course format and the quality of candidate 
interactions to ensure candidates are effectively prepared through a Fall 2024 
survey of EdExcellence Forum students. Faculty collaborated in department 
meetings and online to follow up on the results. Feedback resulted in changing 
the EdExcellence Forums from 2 in person meetings per month to 1 online and 1 
in-person meeting per month for Spring 2025. 

The EPP held its first Data Day event in Spring 2025 to formally introduce initial 
and advanced stakeholders to the current quality assurance system. Three 
interconnected levels were illustrated representing major components of the 
quality assurance system process that serves as the foundation of the virtual 
needs of the online program. Major stakeholders were updated to include MSUNs 
Office of Teaching and Learning Excellence, which offers online teaching 
alignment, support, and resources at an institutional level. Figures were also used 
to highlight the program’s annual Fall/Spring/Summer assessment cycle involving 
analyses, recommendations, and decisions continuously impacting the assessment 
process, decisions, and goals. Formative “in-the-moment feedback” data indicated 

• OTLE Online Resources Link 
• MSUN EDU Quality 

Assurance Map 
(PowerPoint) 

• Data Day 2025 Agenda 
• Education Department 

Meeting Agendas for 11-14-
24, 1-9-25, and 2-20-25 

• Initial Education Advisory 
Council Meeting Minutes 3-
13-25 

• OCHE Distance Delivery 
Support Grant 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

10.58.315: 
Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

Descriptions Evidence 

 that the program was well received, with collated information presented to initial 
and advanced Fall 2025 advisory council meetings. Data Day will occur 
each spring semester. 

 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

10.58.608 Advanced Program 
Satisfaction with Preparation 

Descriptions Evidence 

(1) The provider: 
(a) demonstrates, using valid and reliable 
data that employers are satisfied with the 
advanced program completersꞌ 
preparation for their responsibilities 
working with P-12 students and their 
families; and 

One employer provided responses to the Advanced Program Employer 
Satisfaction Survey 2023-2024, which consisted of 19 content items and one item 
for open-ended commentary. The response distribution was as follows: 84% “Very 
satisfied;” 16% “Somewhat satisfied.” School counseling strengths were 
suggested in program effectiveness; collaboration and consultation; application of 
relevant theories; academic, career, and personal/social development; 
intervention and prevention; stakeholder collaboration; use research to inform 
school counseling practices; accountability and data use; promotion of student 
success; deliver developmentally appropriate curriculum; provision of effective 
counseling interventions; professional development; provide effective school 
counseling services to students at risk; professional affiliations; ethics and 
integrity; incorporation of the ASCA model; and constructive feedback and self-
improvement. 

 
Three “Somewhat satisfied” responses suggested improvement for specialized 
content areas including counseling for diversity; staying current with SPED 
knowledge and application; and medication knowledge and impact. The 
employer's open-ended commentary noted that their "Somewhat satisfied" 
responses meant that the student might not be involved in the topics at that point 
in their program or could still be learning in these areas. 

The employer response suggests strong overall program effectiveness. The 
somewhat satisfied responses did not appear to suggest program flaws; 
nevertheless, there remains an opportunity to strengthen these areas. As we 
balance the feedback with the fact that there is a small sample size, faculty will 
review the program’s academic map in Fall 2025 (for implementation in Fall 2026) 
to determine course sequencing that places specialized content earlier in the 
program. Faculty will also review didactic and clinical course content to reinforce 
areas related to specialized content. 

• Employer Survey 2023-2024 

(b) demonstrates, using valid and reliable 
data, that advanced program completers 
perceive their preparation as relevant to 
the responsibilities they encounter on the 
job, and that the preparation was 
effective. 

Four School Counseling Completers provided responses to the Advanced School 
Counseling Completer Satisfaction Survey 2023-2024, consisting of 19 content 
items and one item for open ended commentary. Responses ranged from “Very 
Satisfied” to “Somewhat Unsatisfied.” Seventy five percent of completers viewed 
each of the following program areas positively overall: effectiveness, relevance, 
collaboration with stakeholders, promotion of student success, current SPED 

• Completer Survey 2023-2024 



Susie Hedalen, Superintendent 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

Phone: 406.444.3680 
opi.mt.gov 

 

 

 

10.58.608 Advanced Program 
Satisfaction with Preparation 

Descriptions Evidence 

 knowledge and application, and delivery of a comprehensive School Counseling 
program. 

Completers were split between “Somewhat Satisfied” and “Very Satisfied” in the 
areas of preparation for counseling services for diverse students, current research 
to inform School Counseling practice, delivery of developmentally appropriate 
curriculum, provision of effective counseling interventions, accountability and data 
use, effective school counseling services to students at risk, ethics and integrity, 
and constructive feedback and self-improvement. Most completers were 
“Somewhat Satisfied” with collaboration and consultation. While reflecting 
moderate satisfaction overall, the results suggest that these topics would benefit 
from strengthened consistency and depth. 

Targeted areas for improvement in the program include professional preparation 
involving academic, career, and personal/social development; professional 
development; medication knowledge and impact; and professional affiliations. 
Each of these areas was deemed “Somewhat Unsatisfactory” by 25% of the 
Completers. These results indicate a need to review and address potential gaps in 
the program. Completers opted not to share any additional comments regarding 
their preparation. 

While the completer responses suggest numerous program strengths, they also 
suggest inconsistencies and areas in need of improvement. Balancing the 
feedback with the small sample size, faculty will crosswalk syllabi with updated 
CACREP standards to improve advanced curriculum planning, encompassing 
professional preparation involving academic, career, and personal/social 
development counseling and the impact of medication on K-12 student 
populations. Faculty will focus on distributing information and highlighting 
activities to support professional school counselor identity through organizational 
affiliations and networking. Students will also be encouraged to continuously 
enhance their awareness, knowledge, and skill-building through participation in a 
range of professional development opportunities, including those that are no or 
low cost. 

 

History: 20-2-114, MCA; IMP, 20-2-121, MCA; NEW, 2014 MAR p. 2936, Eff. 7/1/15; AMD, 2023 MAR p. 86, Eff. 7/1/23. 



 MACIE LIAISON – (Item 28)

Julia Maxwell 

ITEM 28 

MACIE REPORT 

Jordann Lankford Forster 

ACTION ITEMS: 

•  Regalia Protections Letter



MONTANA ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INDIAN EDUCATION 
ADVISORY TO THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 

Montana Board of Public Education 

MACIE Summary 

November 2025 

Presentation 

Presenter 

Position Title 

Overview 

Related Issue(s) 

Recommendations 

MACIE Report  

Jordann Lankford Forster 

MACIE Chair 

The purpose of MACIE is to provide recommendations 

and guidance to the Board of Public Education and the 

Office of Public Instruction on initiatives and actions 

aimed at increasing American Indian student 

achievement. As your advisory board, and partner in 

American Indian education improvement, we offer the 

following report: 

October MACIE Meeting 

November MACIE Meeting 

Approve Signing on to the MACIE Regalia 
Protections Letter 



  

  

On behalf of the Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE), the Montana Office 

of Public Instruction, and the Montana OPI Indian Education Unit, we affirm our unwavering 

support for the rights of Native students across the United States to wear their tribal regalia at 

public ceremonies, including graduations. Wearing regalia is a deeply significant expression of 

cultural identity, spiritual tradition, and personal achievement for Indigenous students and their 

families. These garments are not “decorations.” Instead, they are often handmade, passed down 

through generations, and serve as powerful symbols of personal achievement and cultural pride. 

The ability to wear regalia in spaces of academic recognition honors the sovereignty and dignity 

of Native nations and acknowledges the resilience and perseverance of Native youth within 

educational systems that have not always embraced them.  

  

The passage of the Montana Code Annotated § 2-1-315 stands as a powerful example of how 

state-level legislation can protect and uplift Indigenous cultural expression in public institutions. 

We encourage other districts, states, and educational leaders to follow this model by adopting 

inclusive dress code policies that recognize and respect tribal sovereignty and student identity. 

Denying Native students the right to wear regalia is not only culturally insensitive but harmful 

and erases visibility at moments of pride and success. We urge schools and lawmakers across the 

country to stand in solidarity with Native communities and ensure that every Indigenous student 

has the right to fully express their heritage at milestone events that celebrate their academic 

journey.  

Respectfully,  

The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education  

The Montana Office of Public Instruction  

The OPI Indian Education Unit   

    

   

https://archive.legmt.gov/bills/mca/title_0020/chapter_0010/part_0030/section_0150/0020-0010-0030-0150.html


 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – (Item 29)

Renee Rasmussen 

ITEM 29 

ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING AND TIMELINE 

PERTAINING TO RULEMAKING IN ARM 
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, EARLY LITERACY 
TARGETED INTERVENTIONS AND TITLE 

10, CHAPTER 63, EARLY CHILDHOOD 
EDUCATION STANDARDS, AND 

AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH 
THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR 
PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 

McCall Flynn 



1Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION

NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING
MAR NOTICE NO. 2025-479.1

Summary
Amendment of ARM 10.54.901 through 10.54.903 pertaining to the Early LIteracy Targeted
Interventions Standards and ARM 10.63.101 through 10.63.107, 10.63.109, and 10.63.115
pertaining to the Early Childhood Education Standards.

Hearing Date and Time
Tuesday, January 6, 2026, at 10:00 a.m.
Virtual Hearing Information
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/81268592378
Comments
Comments may be submitted using the contact information below. Comments must be
received by Tuesday, January 6, 2026, at 5:00 p.m.

Accommodations
The agency will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to
participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative accessible format of this notice.
Requests must be made by Tuesday, December 23, 2025, at 5:00 p.m.



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 2

Contact
McCall Flynn
(406) 444-6576
bpe@mt.gov

General Reasonable Necessity Statement
REASON: In 2023, Representative Brad Barker (HD 55) sponsored HB 352 to provide targeted
interventions to support 3rd grade reading proficiency. The bill established duties of the Board
of Public Education to identify an evaluation methodology to determine whether the child is
above, at, or below a developmental trajectory leading to reading proficiency upon completion
of 3rd grade. The Board of Public Education was also required to choose a home-based early
literacy program and design a framework for jumpstart programs for early literacy targeted
interventions in schools.
Building upon this foundation, in 2025, Representative Melissa Romano (HD 80) sponsored HB
338 to provide targeted interventions to support 3rd grade numeracy proficiency. The bill
established duties of the Board of Public Education to identify an evaluation methodology to
determine whether the child is above, at, or below a developmental trajectory leading to
numeracy proficiency upon completion of 3rd grade. It also allowed for enrollment and
program screening year-round.
The Board of Public Education presents these rules to align to the requirements in statute and
maintain consistency throughout other necessary rules. ARM 10.54.9 should be renamed as
“Early Targeted Interventions”.

Rulemaking Actions
AMEND
The rules proposed to be amended are as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter
underlined:
10.54.901 EVALUATION METHODOLOGY FOR EARLY LITERACY TARGETED INTERVENTIONS

(1) The local board of trustees shall adopt and ensure use of an evaluation
methodology to identify, enroll, and admit children to early literacy targeted
interventions. The evaluation methodology used must be overseen by and include
application of professional judgment of qualified employees. A child may not be
evaluated for the purposes of these interventions unless requested by the child's



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 3

parent or guardian. The district must maintain evidence of the request. The
evaluation methodology may be administered in April, May, or June, and must
assess at least one of the following literacy skills:
(a) For four-year-olds:

(i) oral language;
(ii) phonological awareness;
(iii) alphabet knowledge.

(b) Prior to kindergarten:
(i) oral language;
(ii) phonological awareness;
(iii) alphabet knowledge.

(c) Prior to first grade:
(i) phoneme awareness;
(ii) listening comprehension;
(iii) developmental spelling;
(iv) vocabulary (expressive or receptive);
(v) word reading (nonsense or real);
(vi) reading composite.

(d) Prior to second grade:
(i) listening comprehension;
(ii) developmental spelling;
(iii) vocabulary (expressive or receptive);
(iv) word reading (nonsense or real);
(v) connected text reading fluency;
(vi) connected text accuracy;
(vii) reading composite.

(e) Prior to third grade:
(i) developmental spelling;
(ii) vocabulary (expressive or receptive);



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 4

(iii) word reading (nonsense or real);
(iv) connected text reading fluency;
(v) connected text accuracy;
(vi) reading comprehension;
(vii) reading composite.

(2) The list of approved evaluation methodology screening tools must be reviewed in
odd years through a process of review complying with the provisions of Title 2,
chapter 3, MCA, to ensure continuous adherence to developmentally appropriate
and research-based screening tool requirements. Any changes to the list must be
published and made publicly available by the Board of Public Education no later
than 30 days after adoption of any changes. The removal of an evaluation
methodology screening tool shall not be effective until July 1 following such
removal.

(3) A local board of trustees adopting and using one of the approved evaluation
methodology screening tools shall be construed to have complied with this rule.
(a) Use of one of the approved evaluation methodology screening tools shall not,

however, be required, provided that the district's adopted evaluation
methodology screening tool conforms to the requirements of (1).

(4) For the purposes of this rule, "evaluation methodology" means an age-appropriate
research-based methodology, instrument, or assessment selected by the Board of
Public Education to determine, based on a child's age or grade level, whether the
child is above, at, or below a developmental trajectory leading to reading or math
proficiency on completion of third grade.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.54.902 JUMPSTART PROGRAM FRAMEWORK FOR EARLY LITERACY TARGETED
INTERVENTIONS

(1) The local board of trustees may offer a jumpstart program to support early literacy
targeted interventions based on evaluation methodology identified in ARM
10.54.901 as aligned to the Montana Early Childhood Education Standards and the
Montana Content Standards for English Language Arts and Literacy and
Mathematics.



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 5

(2) The jumpstart program must be overseen by and include application of professional
judgment of qualified employees and must be designed in a manner to increase the
likelihood of a child being evaluated at the end of the ensuing school year to be at
or above a trajectory leading to reading or math proficiency at the end of third
grade.

(3) For the purposes of this rule, "jumpstart program" means a program that is at least
four weeks in duration and provides at least 120 instructional hours and takes place
during the time between the end of one school calendar year and the start of the
next school calendar year, as determined by the trustees, preceding a child's entry
into kindergarten, first grade, second grade, or third grade.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.54.903 EARLY NUMERACY INTEGRATION FOR 2025-26 SCHOOL YEAR EVALUATION
METHODOLOGY FOR EARLY NUMERACY TARGETED INTERVENTIONS

(1) A local school district that administered the evaluation methodology for early
literacy targeted interventions in accordance with ARM 10.54.901 in preparation for
the 2025-2026 school year may admit qualified students in the classroom-based
program for 4-year-olds.The local board of trustees shall adopt and ensure use of
an evaluation methodology to identify, enroll, and admit children to early targeted
interventions. The evaluation methodology used must be overseen by and include
application of professional judgment of qualified employees. A child may not be
evaluated for the purposes of these interventions unless requested by the child's
parent or guardian. The district must maintain evidence of the request. The
evaluation methodology must assess at least one of the following numeracy skills:
(a) For four-year olds:

(i) number naming;
(ii) one-to-one correspondence;
(iii) oral counting;
(iv) quantity comparison.

(b) Prior to kindergarten:
(i) number naming;
(ii) one-to-one correspondence;



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 6

(iii) oral counting;
(iv) quantity comparison;
(v) cardinality.

(c) Prior to first grade:
(i) oral counting;
(ii) quantity comparison;
(iii) cardinality;
(iv) subitizing;
(v) numeral identification;
(vi) math composite.

(d) Prior to second grade:
(i) subitizing;
(ii) number order;
(iii) strategic counting;
(iv) numeral identification;
(v) number comparison;
(vi) addition and subtraction;
(vii) math composite.

(e) Prior to third grade:
(i) numeral identification;
(ii) number comparison;
(iii) addition and subtraction;
(iv) problems in context;
(v) math composite.

(2) The early targeted interventions may include both English Language Arts and
Literacy and Mathematics and Numeracy Content Standards as described in ARM
10.63.110(2).The list of approved evaluation methodology screening tools must be
reviewed in odd years through a process of review complying with the provisions of
Title 2, chapter 3, MCA, to ensure continuous adherence to developmentally
appropriate and research-based screening tool requirements. Any changes to the
list must be published and made publicly available by the Board of Public Education



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 7

no later than 30 days after adoption of any changes. The removal of an evaluation
methodology screening tool shall not be effective until July 1 following such
removal.

(3) A local board of trustees adopting and using one of the approved evaluation
methodology screening tools shall be construed to have complied with this rule.
(a) Use of one of the approved evaluation methodology screening tools shall not,

however, be required, provided that the district's adopted evaluation
methodology screening tool conforms to the requirements of (1).

(4) For the purposes of this rule, "evaluation methodology" means an age-appropriate
research-based methodology, instrument, or assessment selected by the Board of
Public Education to determine, based on a child's age or grade level, whether the
child is above, at, or below a developmental trajectory leading to reading or math
proficiency on completion of third grade.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.101 APPLICATION AND PROCEDURES

(1) The early childhood education standards are focused on developmentally
appropriate supports and strategies to enhance learning outcomes for a child
between the ages of 3 and 5 for preschool programs and between the ages of 4 and
5 for early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-
based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding
kindergarten. Use of these standards for a public preschool program is subject to
the funding limits of 20-7-117(2) and 20-9-311(7)(a), MCA. Use of these standards
for early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-based
program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten is
subject to the provisions of Title 20, chapter 7, part 18, MCA.

(2) The trustees of a school district, pursuant to Title 20, chapter 6, MCA, may establish
a public early childhood education program to meet the unique developmental
needs for children between the ages of 3 and 5 for preschool programs and
between the ages of 4 and 5 for early literacy targeted interventions implemented
through the classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart
program preceding kindergarten. When early childhood education programs are
established they must be an integral part of the public school and must be
governed according to the following accreditation standards for the early childhood



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 8

education standards of early learning content and accreditation in coordination
with the standards outlined for schools within ARM Title 10, chapter 55, excluding
10.55.601, 10.55.602, 10.55.603, 10.55.704, 10.55.705, 10.55.709, 10.55.710,
10.55.712, 10.55.715, and ARM Title 10, chapter 55, subchapters 10 through 21. For
the purposes of the accreditation process detailed in ARM 10.55.606, early
childhood education programs will be assessed on the programꞌs assurance
standards only.

(3) Early childhood education programs shall meet this chapterꞌs curriculum,
instruction, and program delivery standards, supporting childrenꞌs development of
the knowledge and skills outlined in the content standards in ARM 10.63.110, which
describe the expectations for what young children should know, understand, and be
able to do across the four core developmental domains of learning upon entrance
to kindergarten.

(4) Montanaꞌs early childhood education standards shall be reviewed and revised on
a recurring schedule with input from representatives of accredited schools.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.102 DEFINITIONS

(1) For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms apply:
(a) ʺAccreditationʺmeans certification by the Board of Public Education that a

school meets the adopted standards of the Board of Public Education for a
specified school year.

(b) ʺAssessmentʺmeans the gathering, organizing, and evaluation of information
about student learning in order to monitor and measure student learning, the
effectiveness of the instructional program, and to inform local policies and
decisions.

(c) ʺDevelopmental domainʺmeans the broad, interrelated categories or
dimensions of early childhood development reflective of early childhood
education childrenꞌs learning and growth. The four core domains include
social and emotional, physical, language, and cognitive.

(d) ʺEarly childhood curriculumʺmeans an articulated educational plan for young
children, which is grounded in research-based understandings of child



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 9

development and developmentally appropriate practices. Curriculum guides
the teaching process from identifying what to teach, including early content
standards in each of the four developmental domains and how to teach,
including developing learning experiences based upon individual and group
outcomes, and assessing what was learned then using this data to inform
future planning and teaching. For early literacy targeted interventions
implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and
summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten, the curriculum must
embrace the four developmental domains while focusing on the subjects of
literacy and numeracy with a goal of establishing a trajectory leading to
reading or math proficiency at the end of third grade.

(e) ʺLearning centerʺmeans a self-contained area of the classroom featuring a
wide variety of hands-on materials that children can choose and use
independently which are organized around a curriculum area (science, math,
art, music, dramatic play, literacy) or a specific kind of play material (blocks,
sensory, manipulative).

(f) ʺParaprofessionalʺmeans an adult with the qualifications detailed in ARM
10.63.105 who works under the direct supervision of a teacher and who may
work independently in a teacher's absence, but for the majority of the time
works directly with the teacher in the same space with the same group of
students.

(g) ʺTeacherʺmeans a licensed individual as defined in ARM 10.55.602, with
primary responsibility for a group or class of early childhood
education students.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.103 LEADERSHIP

(1) The early childhood education program leadership shall effectively implement
policies, procedures, and systems that support stable staff and strong personnel,
fiscal, and program management so all students, families, and staff have high-
quality experiences.



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 10

(2) Professional development for early childhood education educators as required by
ARM 10.55.714 should be tailored to early childhood development and learning.

(3) Professional development completed by elementary (K-8) educators providing early
literacy targeted interventions should be tailored to such interventions. The
elementary (K-8) educators providing early literacy targeted interventions, the
employing districts, and accredited educator preparation providers, pursuant to
ARM 10.58.102, are encouraged to collaborate to develop professional
development options that support attainment of qualifications leading to an early
childhood education (P-3) endorsement.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.104 TEACHER ASSIGNMENTS AND QUALIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC PRESCHOOL AND
EARLY LITERACY TARGETED INTERVENTIONS

(1) Teachers shall be assigned at the levels for which they are licensed and endorsed in
accordance with state statutes and Board of Public Education rules.

(2) Teachers with an early childhood (P-3) endorsement shall be considered to be
appropriately licensed, endorsed, and assigned to teach in an accredited preschool
program.

(3) While teachers with an early childhood (P-3) endorsement are encouraged,
teachers with either an early childhood (P-3) endorsement or an elementary (K-8)
endorsement shall be considered to be appropriately licensed, endorsed, and
assigned to teach early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the
classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program
preceding kindergarten. Teachers with an elementary (K-8) endorsement who are
teaching early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-
based program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding
kindergarten are encouraged to pursue professional development as outlined in
10.63.103 to ensure delivery of high-quality early literacy targeted interventions.



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 11

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.105 EARLY CHILDHOOD PARAPROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.106 EARLY CHILDHOOD PARAPROFESSIONAL SUPERVISION

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.107 CLASS SIZE

(1) There must be one appropriately licensed and endorsed teacher for ten 10
students, with an early childhood paraprofessional for any additional students over
ten, for up to no more than 18 total students in a classroom with two adults. The
school district must assign qualified human resources that comply with all
fingerprint and background check requirements when exceeding maximum class
sizes at a rate of 1 1/2 hours per day, per student overload. An overload of five
students per classroom is considered excessive.

(2) With classrooms exceeding 10 students, an early childhood paraprofessional is
required at a rate of one hour per day, per student overload up to 16 students. At
16-18 students, a minimum of one appropriately licensed and endorsed teacher and
one early childhood paraprofessional are required.

(3) School districts are encouraged to exceed these standards for classrooms exceeding
10 students with additional staffing beyond the requirements in (2).

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 12

Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.109 ENROLLMENT ELIGIBILITY

(1) A child must have reached three years of age before the districtsꞌ official start date
of the preschool program or have been enrolled by special permission by the board
of trustees.

(2) A child who is 4 years of age or older on or before September 10th of the year in
which the child is to participate in early literacy targeted interventions
implemented through the classroom-based program for 4-year-olds and summer
jumpstart program preceding kindergarten and who has not completed
kindergarten and who is determined through the evaluation methodology process
outlined in ARM 10.54.901 or ARM 10.54.903 to be below a trajectory leading to
reading or math proficiency at the end of third grade is eligible for enrollment in
early literacy targeted interventions implemented through the classroom-based
program for 4-year-olds and summer jumpstart program preceding kindergarten.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

10.63.115 FAMILY AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

(1) The early childhood education program staff shall establish and maintain
collaborative relationships with each childꞌs family and community to foster
studentꞌs development in all settings.

(2) To ensure collaborative relationships between the community, school, and
families, early childhood education programs shall have protocols which:
(a) establish intentional practices designed to foster strong reciprocal

relationships with families;
(b) ensure that families are an integral part of the decision-making team through

communication and family conferences which promote dialogue and
partnership regarding their studentꞌs educational goals and services;



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 13

(c) collaborate with families to help students participate successfully in early
childhood settings;

(d) ensure that all families, regardless of family structure, socioeconomic, racial,
religious, and cultural diversity, gender, abilities, or preferred languages are
included in their childꞌs educational experience;

(e) assist families in locating, contacting, and using community resources that
support the studentꞌs well-being, development, and goals;

(f) promote awareness and understanding of the unique legal and political
structures of Montana Tribal Nations in order to best meet the needs of
Indian students and families;

(g) collaborate with community-based programs to ensure that parents and
families have the resources they need to be involved in their studentꞌs
education, growth, and development; and

(h) provide access to health screenings and referrals for all students in the
program.

Authorizing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101, 20-7-1803, MCA
Implementing statute(s):Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-7-101, 20-7-117, 20-7-1803, MCA

Small Business Impact
The Board of Public Education adopts rules that primarily impact teachers, administrators, and
school district operations. The Board works in cooperation with public schools across the state
to implement the rules that are adopted. Given that the Board does not work directly with
small businesses, the small business impact analysis performed as required under 2-4-111,
MCA, indicates that no small businesses are likely to be directly impacted by the proposed rule
changes.

Bill Sponsor Notification
The bill sponsor contact requirements apply and have been fulfilled. The primary bill sponsor
was contacted by email on May 7, 2025.



Issue No. 23 - December 5, 2025 14

Interested Persons
The Board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking
actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall
make a written request that includes the name, email, and mailing address of the person to
receive notices and specifies for which program the person wishes to receive notices. Notices
will be sent by email unless a mailing preference is noted in the request. Such written request
may be mailed or delivered to the contact person above or may be made by completing a
request form at any rules hearing held by the Board.

Rule Reviewer
McCall Flynn
Approval
Dr. Tim Tharp
Board Chair



FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
January 15-16, 2026  

Helena, MT 
Exiting Board Member – Last Meeting & Recognition 

MACIE Update 
Review Community Choice School Annual Reports 

Action on ABCTe Program Approval 
Action on Authorizing Public Charter Schools 

Transportation Report 
Assessment Update 

Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 

Teacher Licensure Report 
Qualify Advanced Opportunity Grant Applications 

Action on Transformational Learning Phase II Grants 
Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 

Content Standards Revision Update 
Youth Risk Behavior Survey 

Annual HiSet Report 
MSDB Superintendent Performance Evaluation & Contract 

Extension Discussion 



Friday, November 21, 2025 

 BOARD OF EDUCATION LUNCH

 12:00 PM University of Montana, University Center

 BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING
 
 1:00 PM University of Montana, University Center,       
Ballroom 



AGENDA 
 

 



Greg Gianforte Kristen Juras
GOVERNOR  LT. GOVERNOR 

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
STATE OF MONTANA

State Board of Education Meeting 

November 21, 2025 ∙ 1:00 p.m. 
University of Montana Missoula, University Center Ballroom 

1:00 Call to order and attendance 
 Lieutenant Governor Kristen Juras 

1:05 Approval of 2024 State Board of Education Minutes- ACTION 

1:07 Motion to adopt the agenda- ACTION 

1:10 Welcome and Opening Remarks 
 Lieutenant Governor Kristen Juras 

1:15    Remarks on behalf of the Office of Public Instruction 
Superintendent Susie Hedalen 

1:20 Remarks on behalf of the Board of Regents 
Chair Todd Buchanan 

1:25 Remarks on behalf of the Board of Public Education 
Chair Tim Tharp 

1:30 Board of Regents and Board of Public Education Joint Resolution Supporting FAFSA 
Completion and Direct Admissions - ACTION 

1:40 Public Comment 
Limited to 3 minutes. Comments may also be emailed to Rachel.green@mt.gov 

Adjourn after public comment 

mailto:Rachel.green@mt.gov


 

Minutes 
Montana Board of Education 

November 22, 2024 | MSU-Bozeman 
 

Friday, November 22, 2024 

Members present: Governor Gianforte, Board of Regents Chair Buchanan, Regent 
Dombrouski, Regent Lozar, Regent Bough, Regent Folkvord, Regent Mortenson, Board 
of Public Education Chair Tharp, Board Member Hedalen, Board Member Slinger, 
Board Member Hamman, Board Member Quinlan, Board Member Schmidt, 
Superintendent Arntzen, Commissioner Christian. 

Members excused: Regent Southworth and Board Member Rasmussen 

  

Opening by Governor Gianforte | 00:02:55 

Governor Gianforte called the meeting to order and took attendance. 

 

 Approval of 2023 Board of Education Minutes 

Governor Gianforte asked for any corrections or additions to the minutes. There were 
none so the minutes stood approved. 

 

 Adoption of the 2024 Board of Education agenda 

Chair Buchanan moved and Regent Folkvord seconded adoption of the agenda. It was 
unanimously approved on a voice vote. 

 

 Remarks by Governor Gianforte | 00:04:48 

Governor Gianforte began his remarks by acknowledging that the Board’s primary 
responsibility today is to approve the unified education budget proposal for the 2025 
legislative session. He thanked the Board staff and Budget Office staff for their work in 
compiling the unified budget. The Governor then spoke about the success that has 
been achieved in education in the current biennium before highlighting his educational 
goals for the upcoming legislative session. These include increasing teacher pay, 
expanding personalized learning, expanding career and technical education, reducing 
youth time on cell phones and social media, and investments in school infrastructure. 
He also spoke of post-secondary funding to support infrastructure and modernization on 
campuses as well as a continued focus on supporting college CTE programs.  



 

  Remarks by Chair Buchanan | 00:13:08 

Chair Buchanan began by acknowledging Governor Gianforte’s election to another term 
and Susie Hedalen’s election as the new Superintendent of Public Instruction and that 
he looks forward to continuing to work with them. He then noted the university system’s 
budget includes investments in infrastructure and present law adjustments to combat 
inflation. He stated that the MUS is well-prepared to respond to changing economic 
conditions and diverse student learning needs. He then spoke about accountability to 
taxpayers and the legislature, shared policy goals, accessibility, affordability, diverse 
pathways for students, public-private partnerships, K-12 partnerships, innovation and 
career oriented short-term training.  

 

  Remarks by Superintendent Arntzen and Chair Tharp | 00:17:45 

Superintendent Arntzen began by acknowledging successful new education initiatives 
through partnerships with the Board and Regents. She handed out a memo outlining 
her legislative priorities. She then turned it over to Chair Tharp. Chair Tharp began by 
explaining what the Board of Public Education does and that they have been extremely 
busy with a focus on innovation and flexibility for schools. Examples he cited include 
charter schools, changes to math standards, changes to teacher licensure regulations, 
and accreditation reform. He also complimented the budget focus on infrastructure.  

 

• Recognition of Montana Teacher of the Year | 00:25:25 

Superintendent Arntzen recognized the 2025 Montana Teacher of the Year Dawn 
Sievers and Ms. Sievers spoke briefly about her experience.  

 

• Presentation and Action on the 2025 Unified Education Budget | 00:28:20 

Budget Office analysts Nancy Hall and Ben Ternes walked the Board through the 2025 
unified education budget. The only Board discussion was by Superintendent Arntzen 
requesting further dialogue on proposed legislation impacting adult education and Board 
Member Quinlan requesting clarification on how school infrastructure funding will flow. 
Board Member Hedalen and Superintendent Arntzen offered their support of the budget. 
There was one public comment that was meant for general public comment, not on the 
unified budget. Board Member Slinger moved and Regent Bough seconded a motion to 
approve the budget. It passed unanimously on a voice vote. 

 

• Joint Resolution Supporting Math Attainment and Proficiency | 00:41:15 



 

Chair Tharp gave background on the Board of Public Education and Regents separately 
passing resolutions supporting a third year of math in high school and greater emphasis 
on math proficiency resulting in a joint resolution for the Board’s consideration. Chair 
Buchanan and Board Member Hedalen expressed their support and flexible pathways 
for math attainment. No public comment. Dr. Tharp moved and Regent Dombrouski 
seconded a motion to support the resolution which passed unanimously on a voice vote.  

 

• General Public Comment | 00:46:00 

In-person public comment was received from: 

Gary Lusin, Bozeman Trustee who spoke of his recent meeting to provide stakeholder 
feedback to the constitutional education officers. The meeting was meant to be a 
consensus building forum to discuss the worst and best case scenarios if we make 
change or fail to make change in education. 

Trevor Nichols, Bozeman High School science teacher who attended the meeting 
organized by Gary Lusin who spoke about the future of education as a current teacher 

Laslo Baumgartner, Gallatin high school student who attended the meeting organized 
by Gary Lusin and gave his perspective on the future of education as a current student  

Sandy Wilson, retired teacher, trustee, and Bozeman parent who attended the meeting 
organized by Gary Lusin 

Carrie Fischer, Belgrade schools business officer who attended the meeting organized 
by Gary Lusin 

Tim Tharp spoke as a private citizen to thank the Governor for his efforts to reduce cell 
phone use in schools and more broadly talked about mental health challenges in youth 
related to social media and constant online access 

Bridger Beach, MSUN student who spoke about college faculty pay being too low 

Tricia Seifert, Dean of MSU College of Education and Health, spoke about her 
participation in Gary Lusin’s meeting and the role of teacher prep programs 

Sarah Hays, school administrator from Bozeman who spoke about her participation in 
Gary Lusin’s meeting 

Written public comment was received by Laura Crist of Great Falls. She is a parent and 
recent graduate who spoke about her participation in Gary Lusin’s meeting. A joint 
written comment was submitted by Pam Birkeland (Madison Co. Supt.), John Nielson 
(Gallatin Co. Supt.), and Rhonda Long (Fergus Co. Supt.) speaking to their participation 
in the meeting organized by Gary Lusin. 

• Meeting Adjourned | 01:05:55 



Montana Board of   Montana Board of 
       Regents  Public Education  
 

 Montana Board of Education 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Montana Constitution and the Montana Board of Education affirm that access to 
educational opportunity is essential to the well-being of Montana’s students, families, and 
communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, Montana’s high schools play a vital role in helping students explore and prepare for the 
full range of postsecondary and career options available in Montana, including pathways through 
colleges, universities, apprenticeships, and workforce training programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, completing the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) is a key step in 
accessing financial aid, including grants, scholarships, work-study programs, the upcoming 
Workforce Pell, and federal student loans, that can make higher education and workforce training 
more affordable for Montana families; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2024, Montana’s FAFSA completion rate was 44 percent, compared to the national 
average of 54 percent, leaving an estimated $12 million in financial aid unclaimed by Montana 
students; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Montana University System’s proposed Direct Admissions initiative will help simplify 
the college exploration process by proactively informing high school students of the in-state 
postsecondary options for which they already qualify, without requiring any application fee or 
obligation to enroll; and 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Education encourages all Montana 
public high schools to: 
1. Improve students’ and families’ understanding of, and completion of, the FAFSA by incorporating 

FAFSA awareness into financial literacy curriculum, hosting FAFSA completion events; and 
2. Participate in the Montana University System’s Direct Admissions initiative to help students and 

families better understand their postsecondary opportunities in Montana; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Education encourages the Montana Office 
of Public Instruction and the Montana Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education to assist 
interested school districts in these efforts through technical assistance, data-sharing protocols, and 
outreach to families and communities; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Montana Board of Education shall charge a stakeholder 
working group, including representatives of the Montana University System, the Montana Office of 
Public Instruction, school administrators, counselors, families, and community partners, to develop 
coordinated approaches that strengthen access to postsecondary opportunities and support local 
implementation efforts. 
 
RESOLVED BY THE MONTANA BOARD OF EDUCATION ON NOVEMBER 21, 2025. 

 
 
Todd Buchanan       Dr. Tim Tharp 
Chairperson        Chairperson 
Board of Regents       Board of Public Education 


	Item 9 -- Variance to Standards.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary_VTS 11.2025.pdf
	SY 25-26 - BPE - Initial Application Summaries.pdf
	1. Billings Public Schools - Skyview High School 9-12 (SC: 1628), Billings West High School 9-12 (SC: 1251), Billings Sr High School 9-12 (SC: 1250), Billings Early
	2. Billings Public Schools - Billings Multilingual Academy High School 9-12 (SC: 3004), Billings Multilingual Academy Middle School 6-8 (SC: 3003)
	3. Billings Public Schools - Billings Opportunity School 9-12 (SC: 3006)
	4. Billings Public Schools - Billings Early College School 9-12 (SC: 3005)
	5. Cascade Public Schools - Cascade Elementary PK-5 (SC: 0158), Cascade 6-8 (SC: 1661), Cascade High School 9-12 (SC: 0157)
	6. Clancy Elementary - Clancy School District (SC: 0452), Clancy Elementary PK-5 (SC: 0606), Clancy Middle School 6-8 (SC: 1713)
	7. Elysian Elementary - Elysian Elysian Middle School 6-8 (SC: 1831), Elysian School PK-5 (SC: 1295) – Pending Board Approval on November 4th
	8. Frontier Elementary - Frontier School PK-6 (SC: 1411), Frontier 7-8 (SC: 1757)
	9. Hardin Public Schools – The Big Horn Academy (SC: 3036)
	10. Helena Flats Elementary - Helena Flats School PK-6 (SC: 0432)
	11. Lewiston Public Schools - Central MT CTE Academy 9-12 (SC: 3030)
	12. Lewiston Public Schools - Lewistown 7-8 (SC: 1410), *Lewistown Public Schools (K-12 System) (LE: 0258)
	13. Marion Elementary - Marion School PK-6 (SC: 0455), Marion School 7-8 (SC: 1697)

	SY 25-26 Variance to Standards Renewal Applications Summary Sheet.pdf
	1. Eureka Public Schools – Eureka Elementary (SC: 0710) & Eureka Middle School 5-8 (SC: 1724)
	2. Hellgate Elementary - Hellgate Lower 2-3 (SC: 1573), Hellgate Primary PK-1 (SC: 1863), Hellgate Intermediate 4-6 (SC: 1859)
	3. Independent Elementary - Independent School PK-6 (SC: 1304)
	4. Shelby Public Schools - Shelby Elementary School PK-5 (SC: 1176)
	5. Three Forks Public Schools - Three Forks Elementary PK-5 (SC: 0482), Three Forks 6-8 (SC: 1658), Three Forks High School 9-12 (SC: 0483)


	Item 10 -- Corrective Plans for Schools in Deficient Status.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary_Corrective Plans 11.2025.pdf
	SY 25-26 Remaining Corrective Plans.pdf
	FY2025 Remaining Corrective Plans
	Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer School: Corrective Plan
	Lame Deer Public Schools – Lame Deer 7-8: Corrective Plan
	Lustre Christian High – Lustre Christian HS: Corrective Plan


	Item 11 -- Intensive Assistance Process Update.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary_Intensive Asst. Process-11.2025.pdf
	RA_IA Task Force Membership .docx (3).pdf
	IA Task Force Meeting Schedule.pdf

	Item 16 -- MAST Overview & Review of Statewide Proficiency Data.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary-Overview of MAST and Review of Statewide Prof Scores November 2025.pdf
	2025-2026 MAST Overview v2.pdf

	Item 17B -- Public Charter Schools Powerpoint.pdf
	Slide 1: HB 549 Public Charter Schools 101
	Slide 2: First a reminder…
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	Slide 6: PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL TIMELINE
	Slide 7: LIST OF APPROVED PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS
	Slide 8: WHAT’S NEXT…
	Slide 9: QUESTIONS?

	Item 19 -- Superintendent Update.pdf
	Supt Update-Assessment November 2025 BPE Update.pdf
	Federal Update- Nov. BPE.docx.pdf
	Supt Update- Content Standards November 2025 Update. v2.pdf
	Montana ELA & Literacy Standards Revision

	Supt Update_Accreditation Update.Nov.2025 v2.pdf
	Annual Data Collection Update.pdf

	Item 21 -- Public Charter School Fall Enrollment Counts.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary-Public Charter Enrollment Data November 2025.pdf
	2025.11.20 Public Charter School Fall Enrollment Data BPE November Meeting.pdf

	Item 24 -- Annual Professional Development Unit Provider List.pdf
	BPE _ExSummary_ PDUPS Update - November 2025.pdf
	PDUPs 2025 Annual Report  - BPE - November 2025.pdf
	Professional Development Unit Provider System Overview
	Provider Criteria and Requirements
	System Outreach and Cleanup Update
	Data Analysis
	Fiscal Year 2025 Provider Report Summary
	Key Data Points
	Highlights

	Professional Development Unit Opportunities Per Provider Type
	Professional Development Units (PDUs) Issued Per Provider Type
	Certificates Issued per Provider Type
	Online Reporting Data
	Categories in the Professional Development Unit Provider System
	Categories in the Teacher Learning Hub
	Appendix A- Professional Development Data Tables by Type


	PDUPS Updates - BPE - November 2025.pdf

	Item 25 -- Revise Title 10, Chapter 57 Action.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary_CH_57_Revision. SpEdTech.pdf
	Ch.57 Revision.Special Education Tech.pdf

	Item 26 -- EPP Provider Report.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary-EPP Report 11.2025 (2).pdf
	EPP Report 2025.docx.pdf
	2025 Educator Preparation Program Report
	Compiled October 2025

	Section 2: Accreditation Status
	Section 3 Endorsement Areas
	Section 6: Updates on Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulation
	10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice
	10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality, Recruitment, Progression, and Support
	10.58.314 Initial Program Impact
	10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement
	10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation
	10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement

	Section 7: Montana Assessment for Content Knowledge (MACK) Information


	Item 27 -- MSU-N Corrective Action.pdf
	BPE_ExSummary_MSUN Update 11.2025.pdf
	MSU N Update Stip. 1.pdf

	Item 5a -- 2025 November MSDB BPE Report.pdf
	11072025_Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind Board of Publ
	11022025_COMMENTS
	11072025_Montana School for the Deaf and Blind

	Item 5 -- Reduced.pdf
	11072025_Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind Board of Publ
	11022025_COMMENTS
	11072025_Montana School for the Deaf and Blind

	Item 16a -- 24-25 Statewide Data Presentation for BPE and Public Release.pdf
	2024-2025�Statewide Assessment�Data Overview
	Data Overview
	Statewide Data Release Timeline
	Why MAST Creates a New Baseline
	Grades 3-8 Math & ELA Results
	Grades 3-8 �2024-26 Math & ELA Achievement 
	Slide Number 7
	Math Subgroup Performance
	ELA Subgroup Performance
	NAEP Longitudinal Data
	Grades 3-8 Math & ELA�Key Points 
	ACT �Composite Score Trend
	Grade 11 Proficiency rates 
	Grades 5 and 8 Science Proficiency rates
	Grade 11 and Science �Key Points 
	Gems.opi.mt.gov/student-data
	Contact 

	Item 3a -- MTGU November 2025 BPE Presentation.pdf
	Montana GEAR UP: 2024-2031 Grant Update
	Quick Facts
	Quick Facts
	Partnerships
	Partnership Highlight: MSU Expedition Science Collaboration with Dr. Jamie Cornish
	Questions?

	Financials.pdf
	ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl




